
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




 
 


    
 
 
MEETING  NUMBER  FOUR  HUNDRED  AND  SEVENTY  OF  THE  BOARD  OF  GOVERNORS  OF 
ALGONQUIN COLLEGE WILL BE HELD ON MONDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2012, BEGINNING AT 5:00 
P.M. IN THE ROSSER BOARD ROOM, WOODROFFE CAMPUS 


 
 


AGENDA 
 


1.  Conflict of Interest Declaration 
   
2.   Approval of Previous Minutes of December 12, 2011 
 
3.  Business Arising 
   
4.  Presentations 
   


1.    Strategic Programs & Services Planning Project Update  
2.    Information Communications Technology & Business Intelligence Update  
 


5.  Decision Items & Reports 
 


1. Program Proposal:  Financial Services 
2. Program Proposal:  Non Profit Sector Management 
3. Program Proposal:  Office Administration ‐ Medical 
4. Governance Committee Report   
5. Audit Committee Report  
6. 3rd Quarter Business Plan Report 
7. 3rd Quarter Financial Report 
8. CAAT Supplementary Pension Plan Amendment 
9. 2012/13 Fees Schedule & Ontario Tuition Grant Update  
10. Advisory Committee Report 
   


6.   Report of the Chair 
1.   Approval of President Criteria and Position Description 


 
7.   Report of the President  
 
8.  Management Summary Report 
 
9.  Other Business (if applicable) 


 
10.   In Camera Session  
   








                                 BOARD OF GOVERNORS  


DRAFT 


MINUTES  OF  MEETING  NUMBER  FOUR  HUNDRED  AND  SIXTY  NINE  OF  THE  BOARD  OF 
GOVERNORS OF ALGONQUIN COLLEGE WHICH WAS HELD ON MONDAY, DECEMBER 12, 2011, 
AT 4:30 P.M. IN THE ROSSER BOARDROOM, C539, WOODROFFE CAMPUS 


Present  Michael Dunlop, Chair  
Eric Agyemang  
Denise Amyot  
Jeanine Chiasson  
Lynne Clark 
Pauline Edmonds 
Barbara Farber  
Robert Gillett, President 
Doreen Hume  
Louis Lamontagne 
Kathyrn Leroux 
James McIntosh 
John Owens 
Andrew Pridham 
Mark Sutcliffe 


Regrets 
 


Doug Orendorff, Vice Chair 
Debbie Robinson  
 


Vice 
Presidents:
 
 
 
 
 
Recording 
Secretary 


Gerry Barker, Human Resources 
Kent MacDonald, Academic 
Joy McKinnon, Business    
  Development 
Duane McNair, Administration  
Deborah Rowan‐Legg, Student  
   Services 
 
Anna Cobus 


Observers  Jo‐Ann Aubut, Acting Dean, Academic Development 
Claude Brulé, Dean, Faculty of Technology and Trades 
Jennifer Daly‐Cyr, Acting Director, Strategic Programs & Services Planning Project 
Cathy Dempsey, Director, Finance & Administrative Services 
Barbara Foulds, Acting Dean, Faculty of Health, Public Safety & Community Studies
Russell Mills, Dean, Faculty of Arts, Media & Design 
Doug Ouderkirk, Director, Academic Operations & Planning 
Brenda Rothwell, Executive Director, Foundation 
Michel Savard, Dean, School of Hospitality and Tourism 
Mike  Sparling,  Director,  Information,  Institutional  Research  and  Technology 
Services 


 
The meeting was called to order at 4:30 p.m.   


 
11‐71   CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION 


Governor  Pridham  indicated  that  he  would  abstain  from  voting  on  the Mobile  Application 
Design  and  Development  program  proposal  and  the  Business  Intelligence  Systems 
Infrastructure program proposal as  they were being presented  from his program area within 
the College.  


 







B.G. #469    December 12, 2011 
Page 2 


 
11‐72  APPROVAL OF THE PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
RESOLUTION 
 
MOVED & SECONDED – Edmonds & Amyot 
 
That the minutes of November 14, 2011 be approved as presented. 
 
 
11‐73 BUSINESS ARISING 
 
None. 
 
 
11‐74 DECISION ITEMS AND REPORTS 
 
PROGRAM PROPOSAL:  MOBILE APPLICATION DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT 
 
Claude Brule and Russell Mills presented a proposal  to offer a  two year diploma program  in 
Mobile Application Design and Development which is designed to prepare students for careers 
in  the expanding  and  evolving  fields of mobile web  and  application development.    Students 
learn the design of user interfaces, user experience, usability of mobile solutions, online mobile 
marketing, and security considerations. Real‐world applications and solutions are created with 
a variety of technologies and programming  languages.   Graduates may find employment  in all 
levels  of  government,  including  health  care,  education,  business,  marketing,  and 
communications. 
 
Questions/Comments: 
 


‐ Governor Leroux:  How is the enrolment projection determined?  Initially, the projections 
are conservative with the ability to offer a flow through with some attrition built in.  The 
total enrolment reflects two semesters worth of enrolment, not  just the first semester 
in  the  fall.    It  is  anticipated  that  the projections may be  conservative because of  the 
current demand in application development. 


‐ Governor Edmonds:   Is the ratio of retention comparable to other programs  in the field 
of  development?    No.  It  is  not  however;  it  is  a  combined  design  and  development 
program. 


‐ Governor Amyot:  Do other provinces offer such programs?  It is unknown; however, it is 
assumed that there are other provinces that do offer such programs. 


‐ Governor Clark:  Are the instructors current employees or will there be new instructors?  
If so, where do they come from within the community? There are some instructors with 
expertise  in  this  area  that would want  to  join  the  program.    It will  be  a matter  of 
assigning work  to  talent  and  then  supplementing with  non  full  time  employees  until 
such time that the program becomes sustainable.   







B.G. #469    December 12, 2011 
Page 3 


 
‐ Governor  Dunlop:    Offered  congratulations  on  the  collaborative  effort  between  the 


schools.   
 
RESOLUTION 
 
MOVED & SECONDED – Edmonds and Owens 
 
That the Board of Governors approve the Mobile Application Design and Development Ontario 
College  Diploma  program  effective  fall,  2012,  and  seek  validation  of  the  program  title  and 
outcomes from the Credentials Validation Service and approval for funding from the Ministry of 
Training, Colleges and Universities. 


CARRIED 


1 Abstention – A. Pridham 
 
PROGRAM PROPOSAL:  HORTICULTURE INDUSTRIES 
 
Russell Mills presented a proposal to offer an Ontario College Diploma Program in Horticulture 
Industries.    The program was developed  in  response  to  the  Strategic Programs  and  Services 
Planning  Project  final  report  and  recommendation  to  transition  to  a  new  offering  after  the 
phase  out  of  the Horticulture  Technician  program.  The Horticultural  Industries  program will 
prepare graduates  to meet  the evolving and diversified horticultural  industry  in  the areas of 
sustainable urban  agriculture,  green  roof  and  living wall  technology, nursery production  and 
management,  as  well  as  urban  and  rural  green  infrastructure  design,  installation  and 
maintenance.  In addition to earning an Ontario College Diploma, students will be prepared to 
challenge  the  entire  Landscape  Industry  Certification  Designation  at  the  technician  level  as 
provided  by  Landscape Ontario. Mobile  technology  is  integrated  into  the  program  in many 
areas to enhance student success.  


In  addition  to  supervisory  and  project  management  opportunities,  graduates  may  find 
employment  in  urban  food  production  co‐ops;  nurseries  and  garden  centres;  park  systems; 
landscape design,  construction  and maintenance  firms;  tree  care  industry;  sales and  service; 
consulting; and relative horticulture‐related teaching. 


Questions/Comments: 


‐ Governors Owens:  How many students would be in the co‐op portion of the program at one 
time?    25  students would  be  in  co‐op  during  each  of  the  12 week  periods.    Industry  is 
absolutely supportive of this program and there will be no difficulty securing placements for 
students.  The program has an excellent advisory committee. 


‐ Governor Edmonds:    Is this the right name  for this program?   Will  it market well? A  lot of 
work has been undertaken in developing the program name including focus groups in high 







B.G. #469    December 12, 2011 
Page 4 


 
schools  and with  current  students.   The  three  subtitles will  also be used  to describe  the 
curriculum whenever possible.   


‐ Governor Leroux:  Is it expected that there would be a larger number of mature students in 
the program?  It is possible.  


‐ Governor Farber:  Commended the College for the new iteration of the program and for the 
passion and hard work that came out of the SPSP process. 


‐ Governor Dunlop:  Compared to the program that is being replaced, will there be additional 
employment opportunities as a result of the changes that have been made?   Yes,  it  is felt 
that the curriculum changes will open create new opportunities for students. 


RESOLUTION 
 
Moved and Seconded – Farber and Amyot 
 
That  the  Board  of  Governors  approve  the  Horticultural  Industries  Ontario  College  Diploma 
program effective  fall, 2012, and seek validation of  the program  title and outcomes  from  the 
Credentials Validation Service and approval for funding from the Ministry of Training, Colleges 
and Universities. 


CARRIED 
  


PROGRAM PROPOSAL:  BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE SYSTEMS INFRASTRUCTURE 
 
Claude  Brule  presented  a  proposal  to  offer  a  one‐year Ontario  College Graduate  Certificate 
program  entitled  Business  Intelligence  System  Infrastructure  delivered  in  collaboration with 
IBM.  It  prepares  students  for  entry  to  careers  requiring  specialized  technical  knowledge  to 
support  corporate  use  of  Business  Intelligence.  Students  develop  technical  and  soft  skills  to 
analyze,  design,  build,  support  and manage  systems  to  aid  business  decisions  through  data 
analysis using complex databases and data warehouses. Business and statistics courses provide 
the foundation for developing solutions to meet business needs. 


It  is  a  mobile  learning  program  that  engages  students  in  a  collaborative,  mobile  learning 
environment to help them become skilled, confident users of the technology they are expected 
to use  in  the workplace. Students who maintain a College‐prescribed academic  standing and 
who  possess  the  appropriate  level  of  business  communication  skills  may  take  part  in  a 
cooperative  placement  at  the  end  of  Level  02  for  one  14‐week  paid  work  term.  
 
Graduates may  find employment  in private,  industrial, governmental and service sectors such 
as  service  organizations  focused  on  software  installation,  support  and  maintenance, 







B.G. #469    December 12, 2011 
Page 5 


 
information  service  providers  and  technical  support  units  of  government  organizations. 
 


Questions/Comments: 


‐ Governor Owens:  The course development fee for this program is $253K versus $75 for the 
Mobile Application Design and Development Program.   Why  is  the cost  so much greater? 
That  is an upper  limit of  the price point  for  the curriculum.   Discussions are  still ongoing 
with IBM about the price point and the way in which the curriculum will be used.  This is a 
worst case scenario and it is expected that the price will be substantially discounted.   


‐ Governor Owens:  Is there no attrition expected?  Past experiences with the former program 
indicate that it will be a mature audience with no attrition expected. 


‐ Governor  Amyot:    Requested  further  information  about  the  relationship with  IBM.    The 
relationship with  IBM  is centered on 30% of the course hours.   The  level 2 courses will be 
based on  IBM  curriculum; a  large part of  the $253K  is  the  licensing  fee  ($200K), and  the 
remainder  is  to  develop  the  other  courses.    The  College will  secure  licensing  for  IBM’s 
curriculum  for  the  Cognos  BI  and  they will  provide  us with  software  licenses,  and  some 
classroom presence of their own  instructors.   IBM delivers the same courses through their 
own  training  force  for  twice  the  cost  of  the  entire  program;  therefore,  students  are 
receiving all that IBM offers and more, at a significantly lower cost. 


‐ Governor Agyemang:  How much of a role will IBM play in the co‐op option of the program?  
Part of the program  is based on IBM products however, other products are also reviewed.  
Students could go to IBM or other areas, and the College could also seek co‐op students to 
advance its own BI initiatives.   


‐ Governor Edmonds:   Will the College be required to pay  for upgrading the software  in the 
future once  it purchases the curriculum?   Yes, upgrades are at an additional fee; however, 
some updates will be included.  The upgrades to newer versions are at 25% of the original 
cost which is built into the costing model.  All programs of this nature undergo upgrades on 
a regular basis including Oracle, Cisco, etc.   


 
RESOLUTION 


MOVED & SECONDED – Chiasson & Owens 


That  the Board of Governors approve  the Business  Intelligence System  Infrastructure Ontario 
College Graduate Certificate program effective  fall, 2012, and seek validation of  the program 
title and outcomes  from the Credentials Validation Service and approval  for  funding  from the 
Ministry of Training, Colleges and Universities. 







B.G. #469    December 12, 2011 
Page 6 


 
CARRIED 


1 Abstention – A. Pridham 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 


The  Chair  reported  that  the  Board  received  the  draft  strategic  plan  from  the  President’s 
Executive Committee and outlined the process that was undertaken to arrive at the draft plan.  
Before  moving  to  the  recommendations,  the  Chair,  on  behalf  of  the  Board  of  Governors, 
thanked everyone from all campuses of the College for the energy with which the strategic plan 
was revisited and revised, and for taking  into account where the College  is today versus when 
the original plan was written.  He indicated that the President’s Executive Committee provided 
an extensive background to the recommendations contained  in the draft plan and also guided 
Governors through many variations of themes concerning what the College must do to remain 
current with  industry.   The  information generated significant discussion and helped the Board 
to understand the realities and challenges of the future.   


The Board accepted  the directions  set within  the plan and asked  the  team  to move  forward 
with detailing the directions and implications of each strategy. 


RESOLUTION 


MOVED & SECONDED – Sutcliffe and Leroux 


That  the  Board  supports  in  principle,  the  directions  contained  in  the  Draft  Strategic  Plan 
document; 


That  the Board  requests  that administration bring  forward  specific details with  regard  to  the 
implications of the directions in the Strategic Plan in its 2012/13 Business Plan and Budget; 


That the Board reserves final approval of the Strategic Plan until all of the  implications of the 
Plan  are  fully  understood  following  presentation  of  the  new  Business  Plan  and  Budget  for 
2012/13; and, 


That  the  Board  authorizes  administration  to  distribute  the  draft  Strategic  Plan  to  the 
community for discussion and consultation. 


CARRIED 


 
 
11‐75 REPORT OF THE CHAIR 
 
The Chair reported the following: 
 







B.G. #469    December 12, 2011 
Page 7 


 
‐ The  College  held  its  United Way  Touchdown  Event  on  Friday  November  18th.    This 


year’s campaign raised approximately $105,000. 


‐ All services at the College will be closed as of the end of the business day on December 
24th and will re‐open on Monday, January 2nd. During this period, both ITS and Physical 
Resources  undertake  a  large  amount  of  work  which  cannot  be  completed  when 
students and  staff are on campus.   Secretary’s Note:    It was  subsequently determined 
that the College will close at 12:00 noon on December 24th.   


‐ A note of heartfelt thanks was sent to the Board from John Paul Tapp after receiving the 
certificate of appreciation presented to him on behalf of the Board of Governors at the 
ACCE building opening on November 22nd.   


‐ Five meeting feedback forms were received following the November 14th meeting of the 
Board.  The responses were very positive. One suggestion for improvement was that the 
Board may  need  to more  fully  delegate  to  consultants  in  public.    The  Board  Chair 
indicated  that he would  further  investigate  this concern.   Governors were once again 
encouraged to continue to provide their feedback.   


‐ The  Colleges  Ontario  Governor  Orientation  and  Board  Chairs/Vice  Chairs  Planning 
meetings were  recently  held  in  advance  of  the  Colleges Ontario  Conference  in  late‐
November.  Governors  who  attended  provided  their  feedback  which  was  overall 
positive.   


‐ The annual President’s Christmas Coffee Break will be held on  Friday, December 16th 
beginning at 10:30 a.m. in the Observatory (Student Lounge). 


 
11‐76  REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT 
 
The President reported the following: 
 


‐ Colleges continue to work on their budgets; a session is being held in December with the 
Committee of Presidents to review programs in the province to determine if they can be 
sustained elsewhere. 


‐ Colleges  Ontario  is  attempting  to  encourage  new  Minister  Glen  Murray  to  release 
MTCU’s directions for the future; however, it may be January or February until there is a 
response to that request as he has  indicated that  it  is difficult to provide a perspective 
on this until the Premier sets the direction and the Minister of Finance announces the 
budget.   
 


 
11‐77  MANAGEMENT SUMMARY REPORT  
 







B.G. #469    December 12, 2011 
Page 8 


 
The management summary report is available online at www.algonquincollege.com/board.  The 
report was accepted as presented.   
 
 
11‐78  OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Governor Owens reported that the Constructing Our Future capital campaign for the Algonquin 
Centre for Construction Excellence has surpassed its lofty goal of $7M and reached $7.5M.  The 
additional funds will be set aside to create a bursary for deserving students. 
 
Governor Leroux suggested that a future agenda item may include a discussion surrounding risk 
management  and  international  activities  as  recommendations have  come  from  a number of 
colleges to set up a separate corporation in order to undertake international initiatives. 
 
Kent MacDonald observed that bags of coffee were once again available for Governors and  is 
aligned to the work that faculty, staff and students undertake in Costa Rica. 
 
 
The regular meeting adjourned and the Board of Governors moved in camera for a discussion at 
5:20 p.m. 
 
 


                           


       Michael Dunlop, Chair              Anna Cobus, Recording Secretary 


 



http://www.algonquincollege.com/board






2/6/2012


1


Strategic Programs and Services g g
Planning (SPSP)


Context and Update


www.kentmacdonald.com


Kent MacDonaldKent MacDonald
February 13, 2012February 13, 2012


SPSP and Demand Driven College 
Historical Context


< 2008 


Sept. 2008 


www.kentmacdonald.comKent MacDonald   Vice President, AcademicKent MacDonald   Vice President, Academic







2/6/2012


2


Considerations


www.kentmacdonald.comKent MacDonald   Vice President, AcademicKent MacDonald   Vice President, Academic


SPSP and Demand Driven College 
Historical Context


< 2008 


Sept. 2008 Jan. 2009 


www.kentmacdonald.comKent MacDonald   Vice President, AcademicKent MacDonald   Vice President, Academic







2/6/2012


3


Considerations


www.kentmacdonald.comKent MacDonald   Vice President, AcademicKent MacDonald   Vice President, Academic


SPSP and Demand Driven College 
Historical Context


< 2008 


Sept. 2008 Jan. 2009 May 2010* June 2010 


www.kentmacdonald.comKent MacDonald   Vice President, AcademicKent MacDonald   Vice President, Academic


> 2010 


* SPSP Process commenced with President’s Call to Action – May 2009.        Formal committee work commenced September 2009.







2/6/2012


4


Considerations


www.kentmacdonald.comKent MacDonald   Vice President, AcademicKent MacDonald   Vice President, Academic


Algonquin Program Data (OCAS) Since 2009


No. Program Type Number 


1. Regular College Program* 130


2. Collaborative Programs 4g


3. Distance Education Delivery 11


4. Bridging or Direct Entry Programs 2


5. Programs to Respond to Ministry Projects (Contract) 4


6. Part‐time Programs on OCAS for Admission Purposes 4


7. Programs Suspended – SPSP1 19


8. Programs Suspended as Part of Regular Processes 8


www.kentmacdonald.comKent MacDonald   Vice President, AcademicKent MacDonald   Vice President, Academic


* Regular College Programs: Programs that do not fall within designations (2-9) or are new and remain in start-up phase 


9. Programs Recommended to be Suspended               
(or to be Moved Online)


7


TOTAL PROGRAMS 189







2/6/2012


5


Academic Program Activity (2001 – 2009)


New Program Offerings Program Suspensions


Year Programs Year ProgramsYear Programs


2001‐02 5


2002‐03 11


2003‐04 10


2004‐05 6


2005‐06 8


2006‐07 2


Year Programs


2001‐02 8


2002‐03 5


2003‐04 10


2004‐05 3


2005‐06 3


2006‐07 3


www.kentmacdonald.comKent MacDonald   Vice President, AcademicKent MacDonald   Vice President, Academic


2007‐08 8


2008‐09 12


TOTAL 62


2007‐08 7


2008‐09 2


TOTAL 41


Next Steps – Strategic Programs and Services


Programs:  To continue to launch and suspend academic 
programs based upon student and industry demand and/or 
results of other financial and quality indicators.q y


Services:  To continue to complete the College College Service 
Performance Analysis and provide the SPSP Services Report to 
the Board in June 2012.


www.kentmacdonald.comKent MacDonald   Vice President, AcademicKent MacDonald   Vice President, Academic







2/6/2012


6


Strategic Programs and Services g g
Planning (SPSP)


Context and Update


www.kentmacdonald.com


Kent MacDonaldKent MacDonald
February 13, 2012February 13, 2012








        Caring.     Learning.     Integrity.     Respect. 


The Digital College – Preparing for Growth 
 


Information & Communication Technology 
and Business Intelligence Updates 


 


Algonquin College Board of Governors 


2012.02.13 







        Caring.     Learning.     Integrity.     Respect. 


Our Digital History 


2 


1996 Algonquin commits to using technology to enhance the delivery of programming 
and services and begins to re-structure our enabling infrastructure 


2002 College commits to add hybrid programs 


2003 Algonquin leads in creation of OntarioLearn to meet demand for course delivery 
online 


2007 New Strategic Plan developed with commitments to leveraging all e-learning 
technologies 


2008 Algonquin commits to going mobile by 2016 


2009 Algonquin commits to creating a Virtual College 


2011 Approval of funding from MTCU for the Digital College project 







        Caring.     Learning.     Integrity.     Respect. 


Creating Delivery Choices for Students 


3 


Market Leadership 
The Digital College Vision 


Market Creation 
Defining the Vision 


Enhancing the 
Digital College 
Foundation and 
Scaling for 
Growth 







        Caring.     Learning.     Integrity.     Respect. 


BI & ICT Readiness 5 Priorities to Scale 
1. Resiliency and currency of base business software 


systems and technology infrastructure 


2. Skills and competencies of staff to meet emerging needs 


3. College readiness for mobile learning in terms of support 
infrastructure and services 


4. Legacy technology system implications for business 
survivability and continuity (software, platforms and 
processes) 


5. Quality, clarity and access to data for informed, timely 
decision making (evidence-based decision making) using 
current data management methodologies 


4 







        Caring.     Learning.     Integrity.     Respect. 


BI & ICT Readiness Phased Approach  


5 


P
h


as
e 


I -
 F


o
u


n
d


at
io


n
 


• GeneSIS & HR/PAY 


• PeopleSoft 


• Blackboard 


• Staff skills & 
training 


• Strategy for hosting 
and continuity 
(Data Centre & 
cloud) 


• BI roadmap 


• ITS organizational 
realignment 


• Integrate “shadow 
ICT” 


P
h


as
e 


II
 -


 S
ca


le
 


• Examine business 
case for an 
integrated SIS 
(student 
information) and 
ERP (HR & Finance)  
solution 


• Fully enable m-
learning 
capabilities in 
Blackboard 


• Examine data 
warehouse concept 


• ICT organization 
leadership 


P
h


as
e 


II
I –


 L
ea


d
 


• Implement digital 
college priority 
projects (ERP etc.) 


• Shift to a fully m-
learning enabled 
campus 


• Implement a 
resilient enterprise 
architecture 


1 – 12 Months 12  – 36 Months 36 - 60 Months 







        Caring.     Learning.     Integrity.     Respect. 


Organization Design Client-Centric Clusters 


6 


Infrastructure Hosting (virtualization, clouds & networks) 


Data Administration (access, storage, security & analysis) 


Support Services (support, communities & communication) 


Marketing 
Automation 
 
 
CRM, web sites 
& recruitment 
technology 


Student 
Information 
Systems 
 
GeneSIS, EMS, 
Syllabus, ACSIS, 
etc. 


Admin. 
Systems 
 
 
ERP, HRIS, BUS, 
etc. 


Education & 
Teaching 
Systems 
 
Blackboard, 
simulation, 
audio-video 
delivery, etc.


  


Automation 
& End-User 
Systems 
 
Sharepoint 
(collaboration, 
team-sites & 
knowledge 
mgmt.), office 
automation, etc. 


Project  and Resource Management ( PMO & RMO) 







        Caring.     Learning.     Integrity.     Respect. 


De-risking Enterprise Portfolio Administration 
Peoplesoft 


– Creating a Peoplesoft team  (ITS  and Finance) 
– Migrating to new (supported) DBMS in Q4 f2011-12 
– Planning system migration for Q3/Q4  f2012-13 
– Focused on performance improvement  and stability 


 
Blackboard 


– Creating a Blackboard team (ITS and LTS) 
– Significant restructuring of Blackboard infrastructure has taken place and will be 


completed by end Q4 f2011-12 
– By Q3, f2012-13 provide 24-hour access for all students (local  and international) 


 
GeneSIS & HR/PAY 


– Developing migration plan to virtualized hardware / OS and  host on supported 
database software 


– Developing an improvement plan to open specific business processes to other uses 
– Improving reliability of batch processes  
– Improving system security  and user account management (audit) 


7 







        Caring.     Learning.     Integrity.     Respect. 


De-risking Enterprise Portfolio Automation 
Sharepoint 


– Implementing a Sharepoint 2010 enterprise portal 


– Transitioning future automation projects to this platform 
• Integrated security, reporting hierarchy and digital signatures 


• Workflow engine 


• Advanced forms management (InfoPath) 


• Business data management framework (analysis, access and storage) 


• Multi-platform access (browser, mobile, office) 


– Host knowledge sharing and collection sites 
• Improve collaboration between teams and roles 


• Preserve College intellectual property 


– Platform to host data warehouse 
• Business data management framework rationalizes data access from 


core business systems (GeneSIS, HR/PAY, Peoplesoft, etc.) 


8 







        Caring.     Learning.     Integrity.     Respect. 


BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE 


Institutional Research and Planning 


9 







        Caring.     Learning.     Integrity.     Respect. 


BI Strategy Projects 


10 


End-User Analysis & 
Reporting 


• Empower College employees with 
secure access  to clean data and 
training to use  standard  tools  to 
achieve business goals 


• Technology:  Microsoft Sharepoint, 
Office Excel , Word & Powerpoint 


• Status:  Environment being built out to 
host automation & analysis projects in 
f2012  


Business Intelligence 
 


• Empower College employees with 
advanced analysis, scenario planning 
(what-if) and reporting needs. 


 


• Technology:  QlikView or Cognos 
Express  


• Status:  Qlikview pilot completed, 
Cognos pilot starts late February, 
strategic recommendation follows. 


Causal & Predictive 
Analytics 


• Train a subset of College employees in 
advanced analytic modeling and 
methods to create a service group 
focused on strategic questions. 


• Technology:   Cognos BI v10  or IBM 
SPSS 


• Status:  Needs assessment in f2012-13, 
implementation in  f2013-14 


Data Dictionary, Warehouse and Access Policy & Controls 







        Caring.     Learning.     Integrity.     Respect. 


THE DIGITAL COLLEGE 


Alignment to the broader business plan 


11 







        Caring.     Learning.     Integrity.     Respect. 


The Digital College ICT & BI 


12 


Digital  
Teaching & 
Learning 


Digital 
Leadership & 
Entrepreneurship 


Digital 
Services 


Digital 
Innovation 


Digital Foundation 








 


Financial Services -1- February 13, 2012 
 


 
      


PRESENTATION TO THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
 


  Program Title:   Financial Services 
  Credential:  Ontario College Graduate Certificate 
  Program Length:  One Year 
  School:   Business   
  Dean:   Dave Donaldson 
  Proposed Start Date:   Winter 2013 
 
 
PURPOSE 
This one‐year Ontario College Graduate Certificate program prepares students for careers in the customer sales and 
service area of banking, insurance and independent financial planning industries in Canada. Building on the students’ 
previous business administration, banking, insurance, economics and finance knowledge and professional experience, 
this program introduces students to industry‐specific accreditation courses, financial products and services, leadership in 
customer sales and services and  financial advising. Through the development of a professional portfolio and  field 
placements students gain experience with, and insight into, the Canadian financial workplace.  
 
Graduates of the Financial Services program can be licensed to sell mutual funds by their employer; are qualified to 
challenge the first exam of the Certified Financial Planner (CFP) professional certification; and are prepared for the 
Provincial Life License Qualification (LLQP) examination. Successful completion of Personal Financial Services Advice, 
Financial Planning I and Canadian Securities Course I qualifies students for a Certificate in Financial Services Advice from 
the Canadian Securities Institute (CSI).  Employment opportunities may include positions as financial advisors in a broad 
range of the financial institutions including retail banks, credit unions, financial planning offices, insurance companies, 
brokerage firms, and other businesses dedicated to providing personal financial advice and services. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Financial Services was piloted at Algonquin College as the International Finance and Administration Professional (IFAP) 
bridge  training  program  through  Citizenship  and  Immigration  Canada  (Federal)  and Ministry  of  Citizenship  and 
Immigration (Provincial) targeting internationally‐trained and educated finance professionals. Through the pilot, the 
major employment gap faced by many of these students was industry recognized certification, a gap shared by Canadian 
educated and trained second‐career individuals. In recognition of the anticipated student demographic, that will include 
mature individuals who may need to work at survival jobs in addition to studying, classes will be delivered online with 
Friday evening and Saturday morning seminars enhancing the learning. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS 
 
(i) Evidence of Need 
  The majority of new jobs created in the industry will be due to the rising retirement rate which will facilitate a 


substantial number of annual openings. The aging population will particularly benefit from financial planning and 
wealth management professions. Short‐term certification programs in financial services occupations – leading to 
designations of Certified Management Accountant, Personal Financial Planner, and Canadian Securities Course 
certification – appear to be relatively prevalent throughout Canada and Ontario, but are usually delivered as 
online correspondence courses, with significant drop‐out and failure rates. The program delivery design includes 
face‐to‐face support and cohort‐based sections which will be more appealing to the adult learner. 


 
  Similar programs are available at Brock University, Fanshawe College, Ryerson University, Seneca College and 


Humber College.  St.  Lawrence College plans  to  introduce a  similar program  in 2013. Each has a  residency 







 


Financial Services -2- February 13, 2012 
 


requirement which makes it difficult for students living and working in Ottawa to attend. None of the programs 
focus on customer service and sales and professional development, both of which are essential competencies for 
retail finance professionals. 


    
(ii)   Student Interest 
  There were 97 applicants for the piloted IFAP program, all referred by LASI World Skills and Algonquin College’s 


Access Program (ACAP). LASI has some 77 Accounting and Finance clients who are looking for finance certification 
programs and ACAP has a waiting list of 27 internationally‐trained and educated finance professionals who would 
be interested in attending the Financial Services program. Additionally, it is expected that Canadian educated 
professionals who wish to enter the financial services field, or are currently under‐employed in the industry will 
be attracted to this program. 


 
(iii)  Staffing  
  In the first year of the program staffing costs will be attributed to part‐time professors. Consideration will be given 


to a full‐time professor hire as program enrollment stabilizes. 
 
(iv)  Admissions Requirements 
  Program Eligibility: 


• College diploma or degree, university diploma or degree in areas of finance, economics, business, marketing, 
social services, communications, or equivalent.  


• Qualified applicants, who do not have a business‐related diploma or degree, will be sent the Financial Services 
Eligibility  Package  via  mail.  Applicants  will  be  required  to  complete  and  return  the  following  three 
components:  
1. A letter of intent, which requires the applicant to state their previous experience related to finance, 


banking or insurance, their program expectations and what skills, knowledge and attitudes they bring to 
the program 


2. Applicant's Curriculum Vitae  
3. Copy of applicant's transcript 


  Applicants with International transcripts must provide proof of a TOEFLiBT score with at least a total score of 90, 
with the following minimum section requirements: Reading: 21; Listening: 20; Speaking: 27; Writing: 22. 


 
(v)  Advisory Committee Support 
  Effective March 23, 2011, all members of the ad‐hoc Financial Services Advisory Committee had emailed their 


approval and recommendation for approval by the Board of Governors. 
 
(vi)    Strategic Alignment  


The implementation of this program reflects the strategic directions of the College including the commitment to 
digital learning with 67% online, alternative delivery, leveraging of our relationships with business and industry, 
and meeting the needs of students and the community. This program was identified as an “enhance/modify” in 
the Strategic Programs and Services Planning Project Report. 


 
Appendix 1:  Program of Study 
Appendix 2:  Cash Flow Analysis 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That the Board of Governors approve the Financial Services Ontario College Graduate Certificate program effective 
Winter 2013 and seek validation of the program title and outcomes from the Credentials Validation Service and approval 
for funding from the Ministry of Training, Colleges and Universities. 







 


Financial Services -3- February 13, 2012 


 
APPENDIX 1 ‐ PROGRAM OF STUDY 


 
LEVEL 1 – 15 Weeks 


 
COURSE 
NUMBER 


COURSE 
TITLE 


Hours  


Th
eo


ry
  


La
b 


Fi
el
d 
/ 
Cl
in
ic
al
 


To
ta
l H


ou
rs
 


In
 c
la
ss
 


O
nl
in
e 


In
 c
la
ss
 


O
nl
in
e 


FINXXX1  Personal Financial Services Advice    45        45 


FINXXX2  Financial Planning I  12  48        60 


FINXXX3  Canadian Securities Course I  12  48        60 


FINXXX4  Customer Behaviour and Financial Needs  30  15        45 


FINXXX5  Professional Portfolio Development I  5  20        25 


MKTXXX1  Marketing Financial Products and Services    45        45 


TBDXXX1  Field Placement I          40  40 


  TOTAL LEVEL HOURS  59  221      40  320 


 
 


LEVEL 2 – 15 Weeks 


 
COURSE 
NUMBER 


COURSE 
TITLE 


Hours  


Th
eo


ry
  


La
b 


Fi
el
d 
/ 
Cl
in
ic
al
 


To
ta
l H


ou
rs
 


In
 c
la
ss
 


O
nl
in
e 


In
 c
la
ss
 


O
nl
in
e 


FINXXX6  Canadian Securities Course II  12  48       60 


FINXXX7  Financial Planning II  12  48       60 


FINXXX8  Personal Financial Planning  12  48       60 


FINXXX9  Professional Portfolio Development II  5  20       25 


FIN XX10  Life License Qualification Program 
(elective – choose one of two) 


22  23       45 


FINXX11 
Consumer Credit  
(elective‐choose one of two) 


22  23        N/A 


TBDXXX2  Field Placement II          40  40 


  TOTAL LEVEL HOURS  63  187      40  290 


Certificate Program Total Hours:     610 


 







0 0 0 0 0


FINANCIAL SERVICES
Ontario College Graduate Certificate
Cash Flow Analysis


TOTAL ENROLMENT 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Year 1** 15 33 43 49 54 63


Tuition Fee per Semester 2,018 2,068 2,118 2,168 2,218 2,268


REVENUE
Fees 30,270 68,244 91,074 106,232 119,772 142,884
Grant* 10,895 34,864 66,096 90,792


Total Revenue 30,270 68,244 101,969 141,096 185,868 233,676


EXPENSES
FT Academic + Fringe (22.04%)
Temp Acad +  Fringe (9%) 39,286 65,604 65,604 65,604 65,604 65,604
FT Supp + Fringe (26.47%)
Temp Supp + Fringe (10%)


Operating 16,600 7,980 8,379 8,798 9,238 9,700
Total Expenses 55,886 73,584 73,983 74,402 74,842 75,304


CONTRIBUTION BEFORE -25,616 -5,340 27,986 66,694 111,026 158,372


INVESTMENTS
Equipment
C D l tCourse Development 30 00030,000 0 0 0 0 0
Renovations


Total Capital 30,000 0 0 0 0 0


NET CONTRIBUTION -55,616 -5,340 27,986 66,694 111,026 158,372


% -183.73% -7.82% 27.45% 47.27% 59.73% 67.77%


* Grant Value $ 4,358 
Program Weight 1.0, Funding Unit 1.0 (Estimate)
A number of variables are considered when calculating tuition and expenses; these are changed based on government 
direction as required


Note:


The purpose of the Cash Flow Analysis for a new program is to capture the direct revenues and expenses associated


with the program. The resulting contribution indicates the funds the program will generate to help support


the current operations of the Academic Area. Therefore, pre-existing costs such as department overheads 


and space costs are not included in the cash flow. These costs are captured in the annual Program Costing exercise.


Enrolment Detail**
Level 01 15 20 25 25 30 35
Level 02 13 18 24 24 28


15 33 43 49 54 63





		05.1.a.  BOG - Financial Services OCGC - February 13 2012

		05.1.b.  BOGCashflowFinancial ServicesOCGC February 13 2012

		 Cash Flow








 


Nonprofit Sector Management -1- February 13, 2012 
 


 
      


PRESENTATION TO THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
 
  Program Title:  Nonprofit Sector Management 
  Credential:   Ontario College Graduate Certificate   
  Program Length:   One Year   
  School:   Business   
  Dean:   Dave Donaldson 
  Proposed Start Date:   Spring 2013 
 
 
PURPOSE 
 
The Nonprofit  Sector Management program  is a one‐year Ontario College Graduate Certificate  that will provide 
students with the skills and competencies necessary to work  in nonprofit organizations. Students will  learn about 
strategic planning, human  resources management, volunteer management, marketing and communications,  legal 
and ethical  issues, governance, program planning and evaluation, advocacy and governmental  relations,  financial 
management, technology, resource development and risk management.  
 
This graduate certificate will appeal to working professionals who are in the nonprofit sector or who are pursuing a 
career  in  the  sector.  Employment  opportunities  exist  in  a  variety  of  nonprofit  organizations,  such  as  charities, 
foundations and professional associations. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The nonprofit sector employs a significant portion of Canadian employees and most organizations are concentrated 
in Ontario and Quebec. The majority of these organizations are small nonprofit organizations with a median of five 
employees. Management of these organizations is highly complex since executive directors and managers have to 
be able to perform management functions, as well as front “line” duties.  In addition, the work of most nonprofit 
organizations involves complex social issues.  
 
Several  studies  have  been  conducted  highlighting  the  need  for  governance  and  accountability  in  the  nonprofit 
sector,  noting  the  “serious  need  for  resources,  institutions  and  programs  aimed  at  sustaining  and  expanding 
research  and  training.”  Recent  initiatives  by  various  organizations  have  highlighted  the  need  for  expanded 
education in management of nonprofit organizations. These include the Canadian Revenue Agency’s (CRA) Charities 
File, Imagine Canada’s standards initiative, and Charity Village’s web training seminars.   
 
Existing facilities will be used to deliver the program on campus with classes scheduled at off‐peak times. Courses 
will be offered in hybrid and online formats. In‐class sessions will be scheduled to run two weekends out of three, 
and  approximately  two‐thirds  of  the  program  hours  will  be  delivered  online.  This  format  is  designed  to 
accommodate mid‐career working professionals who need to develop their skills, while still working. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS 
 
(i) Evidence of Need 
  The labour market analysis has identified a growing demand for training and development by employers and 


employees. The non‐profit sector  in Ontario employs 960,000 people, or 15% of the workforce. Ottawa, as 
the Nation’s Capital,  is home to at  least 2,500 nonprofit organizations. Nonprofit  jobs, particularly those  in 







 


Nonprofit Sector Management -2- February 13, 2012 
 


management,  increasingly  require  formal  training  and/or  certification  and  business  competencies  are 
becoming ever more important. The “leadership deficit” and skill gaps in the sector are expected to grow in 
the coming years.   


 
  Many universities and colleges in Canada offer management programs and courses tailored to the nonprofit 


sector. Most of these programs are more narrowly focused on specific functions, such as fundraising and/or 
volunteer management. 


 
(ii)   Student Interest 
  Student interest was gauged in two ways: 


- An  in‐house  survey was  conducted,  both  online  and  in  person,  of  various  programs where  students 
would work for nonprofit organizations with 70 of the 130 students surveyed indicating an interest in the 
program. 


- While on  sabbatical  in  2009/10,  a  faculty member  connected with  the nonprofit  sector by  attending 
conferences  and  workshops  both  as  an  attendee  and  as  a  presenter.  Anecdotal  information  from 
discussions with  various  people  at  nonprofit  seminars,  conferences  and  events  indicates  unanimous 
support for the program. 


- The Canadian Society for Association Executives (CSAE) has expressed interest in possibly using some of 
the courses from this program for their certification program. 


   
(iii)  Staffing  
  Program teaching costs will be attributed to part‐time professors.  A full‐time faculty member will coordinate 


the program.  Alternate staffing plans may be undertaken based on program performance. 
 
(iv)  Admissions Requirements 
  Program Eligibility: 


• College diploma (minimum) or equivalent 
• Qualified applicants who do not have a business‐related diploma or degree, will be sent the Nonprofit 


Sector Eligibility Package via mail. Applicants will be required to complete and return the following three 
components: 
 
1. A  letter of  intent, which  requires  the  applicant  to  state  their previous  experience  related  to  the 


nonprofit sector, their program expectations and what skills, knowledge and attitudes they bring to 
the program 


2. Applicant’s Curriculum Vitae 
3. Copy of applicant’s transcript 


 
  Applicants with International transcripts must provide proof of a TOEFLiBT score with at least a total score of 


90, with the following minimum section requirements: Reading: 21; Listening: 20; Speaking: 27; Writing: 22. 
 
(v)  Advisory Committee Support 
  An Advisory Committee was established to provide input and guidance into the development of the program. 


Members  endorsed  the need  for  the program  in  the  community  and  recommended  it  for  approval  to  the 
President’s Executive Committee and to the Board of Governors. The motion was presented and carried at the 
committee  meeting  on  September  7,  2011.  The  motion  was  subsequently  re‐presented  and  carried  for 
approval by email on October 6, 2011. 


 
(vi)  Strategic Alignment  
  The implementation of this program reflects the strategic directions of the College including the commitment 


to digital  learning with 70% online,  alternative delivery,  leveraging of our  relationships with business  and 
industry, and meeting the needs of students and the community. This program was not identified at the time 
of the Strategic Programs and Services Planning Project Report; however, it provides additional opportunities 
and was deemed as a valuable addition to our offerings. 


 







 


Nonprofit Sector Management -3- February 13, 2012 
 


Appendix 1:  Program of Study 
Appendix 2:  Cash Flow Analysis 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Board of Governors approve the Nonprofit Sector Management program effective Spring 2013 and seek 
validation of the program title and outcomes from the Credentials Validation Service and approval for funding from 
the Ministry of Training, Colleges and Universities.   







 


Nonprofit Sector Management -4- February 13, 2012 


Appendix 1:  Program of Study 
 
 
LEVEL 1 – 15 weeks 
 


 
COURSE 
NUMBER 


COURSE 
TITLE 


Hours 


Th
eo


ry
  


La
b 


Fi
el
d 
/ 
Cl
in
ic
al
 


To
ta
l H


ou
rs
 


In
 c
la
ss
 


O
nl
in
e 


In
 c
la
ss
 


O
nl
in
e 


MGT1105  Introduction to Nonprofit Management  30  30        60 


MGT1106  Information Technology Management  30  30        60 


ENL1102  Communication Strategies  30  30        60 


MGT1107  Governance and Organizational Structures    60        60 


MGT1108  Human  Resource  and  Volunteer 
Management 


  60        60 


  TOTAL LEVEL HOURS  90  210        300 


 
LEVEL 2 – 15 weeks 
 


 
COURSE 
NUMBER 


COURSE 
TITLE 


Hours 


Th
eo


ry
  


La
b 


Fi
el
d 
/ 
Cl
in
ic
al
 


To
ta
l H


ou
rs
 


In
 c
la
ss
 


O
nl
in
e 


In
 c
la
ss
 


O
nl
in
e 


FIN1201  Financial Management  45  45        90 


LAW1201  Legal Issues    60        60 


MKT1206  Community Development and Advocacy    60        60 


MGT1204  Strategic Planning and Leadership  45  45        90 


  TOTAL LEVEL HOURS  90  210        300 


     
600     Certificate Program Total Hours:    


 


 







0 0 0 0 0


NONPROFIT SECTOR MANAGEMENT
Ontario College Graduate Certificate
Cash Flow Analysis


TOTAL ENROLMENT 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
Year 1** 27 28 38 48 51 58


Tuition Fee per Semester 3,529 3,579 3,629 3,679 3,729 3,779


REVENUE
Fees 95,283 100,212 137,902 176,592 190,179 219,182
Grant* 19,611 39,948 67,549 82,802


Total Revenue 95,283 100,212 157,513 216,540 257,728 301,984


EXPENSES
FT Academic + Fringe (22.04%)
Temp Acad +  Fringe (9%) 66,463 66,463 66,463 66,463 66,463 66,463
FT Supp + Fringe (26.47%)
Temp Supp + Fringe (10%)


Operating 13,450 7,850 8,243 8,655 9,087 9,542
Total Expenses 79,913 74,313 74,706 75,118 75,550 76,005


CONTRIBUTION BEFORE 15,370 25,899 82,807 141,422 182,178 225,979


INVESTMENTS
Equipment
C D l tCourse Development 30 00030,000 0 0 0 0 0
Renovations


Total Capital 30,000 0 0 0 0 0


NET CONTRIBUTION -14,630 25,899 82,807 141,422 182,178 225,979


% -15.35% 25.84% 52.57% 65.31% 70.69% 74.83%


* Grant Value $ 4,358 
Program Weight 1.0, Funding Unit 1.0 (Estimate)
A number of variables are considered when calculating tuition and expenses; these are changed based on government 
direction as required


Note:


The purpose of the Cash Flow Analysis for a new program is to capture the direct revenues and expenses associated


with the program. The resulting contribution indicates the funds the program will generate to help support


the current operations of the Academic Area. Therefore, pre-existing costs such as department overheads 


and space costs are not included in the cash flow. These costs are captured in the annual Program Costing exercise.


Enrolment Detail**
Level 01 15 15 20 25 27 30
Level 02 12 13 18 23 24 28


27 28 38 48 51 58





		05.2.a  BOG - Nonprofit Sector Mgmt OCGC - February 13 2012

		05.2.b BOGCashflowNonprofitSectorManagementOCGCFebruary 13 2012

		 Cash Flow

































G = On Target for Completion          Page 1 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


 
BUSINESS PLAN UPDATE TO THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 


FEBRUARY 13, 2012                                            
 
1.  RECRUITMENT:  The College will increase the number of applications for programs outside of the top sixty high demand programs by 10%. 


 


Goals  Initiatives  Measures  3rd  Quarter Report 
 


Status 


1.1  Continue to seek 
productivity 
improvements in all 
areas of College 
operations. 


Introduce follow‐up client 
survey as standard 
operating process for 
recruitment presentations, 
campus tours, and 
recruitment events. 


200 client surveys completed.  198 client surveys completed to date. 
 


G 


Pilot Recruitments 
Salesforce CRM and email 
marketing automation. 


Results presented to PEC by 
December 31, 2011. 


Completed.  G 


Automate production of 
printed monographs using 
GeneSIS data. 


Project completed by December 
31, 2011. 


Project well underway. Last meeting held January
3rd. Monograph process map completed. ITS 
support identified. Project to be completed by 
March 31st. 


G 


1.2  Increase College 
recruitment efforts to 
targeted groups where 
growth is possible and 
there are good 
employment prospects. 


Implement College 
Recruitment and Marketing 
Plans. 
 
 
 


Increase to 42% in first choice Fall 
semester applications in target 
areas. 


As of January 23, 2012, first choice Fall 2012 
semester applications are at 40%, the same level 
as 2011. Algonquin continues to have the highest 
percentage of first choice applications as a % of 
total applications. Efforts are underway to 
improve the results for total number of 
applicants.


Y 


Increase by 7% applications for 
programs outside the top sixty high
demand programs. Increase 
applications for all other programs 
by 3%. 


 
As of January 23, Algonquin Fall 2012 
applications (College Choices) are down 1.50% 
year‐over‐year. This is significantly better than 
the decline of 5.6% across the College system.   


Y 


Increase by 15% the number of 
unique website visits to program 
websites outside the top sixty high 
demand programs. Increase by 6% 
the number of unique website 
visits to all other program 
websites, school websites and the 
prospective student website. 


Program page website traffic has increased 
12.3% by the end of Q3. Prospective student 
website traffic increased 3%, 6% and 7% year‐
over year for the months of November through 
January, averaging an overall 4.2% increase by 
end of Q3.  


G 


Annual Recruitment Plans 
presented and approved by the 
College Enrolment Management 
Committee by October 31, 2011. 


Presentation booked for the February meeting of 
the Strategic Enrolment Management 
Committee.  


G 


Stage 3 of College branding 
exercise completed by July 31, 
2011. 


Final designs presented and approved by PEC on 
February 1, 2012. 


G 


1.3  Identify post‐
secondary best 
practices in 


Best practices reports 
drafted annually. 


5 Best practices reports submitted 
to the College Enrolment 
Management Committee by 


Completed. 
 


G 







G = On Target for Completion          Page 2 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


recruitment, marketing 
and communications. 


December 31, 2011. 


1.4 Commit to the 
introduction of new 
technologies in the 
recruitment of 
prospective students. 


Develop a College virtual 
tour environment. 


Phase 1 of Virtual Tour microsite 
launched by July 31, 2011. 


Completed.  G 


Review College website 
information architecture 
and identify benefits of 
moving to portal 
environment for 
prospective students, 
current students, 
employees and alumni.  


Website Information Architecture 
and Portal Strategy presented to 
CTC by Dec. 31, 2011. 
 


Discussions ongoing.  Y 


Develop online recruitment 
virtual open house 
capabilities. 


Host minimum of 5 online 
recruitment virtual open houses. 


Inaugural Virtual Open House held Dec 22 
targeting home school students. Two additional 
sessions held Jan. 17 and Jan. 19. 


G 


2.  ENROLMENT:  The College will find unique ways to create more access to the top sixty high demand programs while also increasing 
enrolment in the middle ninety programs by 10%. 
 


Goals  Initiatives  Measures  3rd Quarter Report 
 


Status 


2.1  Support the 
academic area’s 
initiatives related to 
Curriculum Design and 
Strategic Enrolment 
Management. 


Identify the implications for 
academic scheduling of: 
● Common core courses 
● Smart Classroom 2.0 
● Mobile program 
conversion 
● SPSP recommendations 
re: programs 


Implications identified and 
evaluated and a plan developed to 
accommodate appropriate changes
in academic offerings and delivery 
modalities by October, 2011. 


Processes and structure related to curriculum 
design are under review.  An external consultant 
is completing this work, which will be submitted 
to the Vice President, Academic, for review in 
late February. 
  


The College’s Mobile Learning transformation is 
underway.  Over 40 additional programs have 
been identified for implementation in 
September, 2012. 
  


Recommendations from the SPSP1 report have 
been obtained for programs and most services. 
Individual program reports have been prepared 
and a summary of Financial, Quality and Access 
metrics for programs has been prepared. The 
annual academic program review is being 
completed; recommendations identifying 
program opportunities and program suspensions 
for 2012‐13 are being reviewed. 


G 


2.2  College‐wide 
Strategic Enrolment 
Management Plan and 
structure developed 
and in place. 


Develop and implement a 
strategic enrolment 
management plan. 


Framework ready by September, 
2011. 
 


A number of Strategic Enrolment Management 
Committee activities are underway including: 
1.  A draft Marketing plan to be presented to 
SEMC in Feb 2012. 
2.  A longitudinal study on student persistence (in 
collaboration with Dr. R Finnie from U of O).  The 
results will inform the retention strategy plans. 
3.  A student survey will be conducted (in early 
March after KPI survey) on determinants of 
retention in collaboration with the College 
Students Association, 
4.  A pilot project using a Business Intelligence 
(BI) software will try to integrate our myriad of  
databases related to enrolment and provide 
more user‐friendly information that can be used 


G 







G = On Target for Completion          Page 3 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


for evidence‐based decision making 
5.  Continued development of an academic multi‐
year programming plan that will inform 
enrolment plans and align with the new 2012‐16 
Strategic Plan. 


Develop an optimal growth 
model (to include WFUs 
and premiums attached to 
International, Second 
Career and WSIB). 


Increase the projected average 
WFUs for the College within two 
years from 1.20 to 1.24.   


Program costing methodology updated to ensure 
WFU values are assigned to new and existing 
programs so that existing program grant values 
are not affected by introduction of new 
programs. 


G 


2.3  Increase 
international student 
enrolment to become 
4th largest Ontario 
College by 2013. 


Develop an International 
student enrolment plan to 
guide recruitment 
activities.  


Plan developed by June 30, 2011. 
 


Plan set to identify international seats by 
program. 2012‐13 enrolment targets reviewed 
with Deans and Chairs. Final projections for 2012‐
13 to be completed by January 31 and sent to 
India and China offices. Longer term plan to be 
completed by March 31.  


G 


Increase International 
student enrolment in FTPS 
and ESL programs through 
expansion of pathway 
agreements with 
international partners and 
increased use of web 
recruitment. 


1047 FTE International post‐
secondary students enrolled by 
March 31, 2012. 


1027 FTE International post‐secondary students 
enrolled as of January 20, 2012. 


G 


2511 FTE ESL students enrolled by 
March 31, 2012. 


To date 2685 FTE ESL students enrolled in 2011‐
12, an increase of 12% over 2010‐11 and 
exceeding the 2011‐12 target of 2511 FTE ESL 
students. 


G 


2.4  Expand 
opportunities to 
provide staff,  students 
and clients with 
international and inter‐
cultural experiences. 


Increase the overseas 
presence of the Algonquin 
Language Institute. 


ESL assessment and delivery 
launched by March 31, 2012 at one
new overseas campus. 


 
ESL assessment of 207 students completed at 
Suzhou Institute of Trade and Commerce (SITC‐
Suzhou, China) in November, 2011.  


G 


  Deliver international 
programs in partnership 
with off‐shore institutions. 


Two new programs offered in 
partnership with off‐shore 
institutions by March 31, 2012. 


MOU completed with a college in Sarajevo 
(FMPHTM) to deliver Business Administration‐ 
Ontario College Advanced Diploma‐ 3yrs and 
Hospitality Management ‐ Hotel & Restaurant ‐ 
Ontario College Diploma‐ 2 yrs. Program delivery 
will commence in September 2013. 
 
MOU finalized with Liaoning Forestry Vocational‐
Technical College, Liaoning, China to deliver joint 
hospitality program. 


G 


2.5  Expand applied 
research opportunities 
for staff, faculty and 
students.  


Engage faculty and clients 
to work towards more 
applied research projects 
involving students. 


500 students engaged in applied 
research projects by March 31, 
2012. 


325 students engaged in applied research 
projects from October to December, 2011.  


G 


2.6  Create an 
Algonquin College 
Personal Development 
Institute (PDI).  


Implement PDI business 
plan. 


PDI business plan Phase 1 
implemented. Secured $1.5 M in 
revenue by March 31, 2012. 


70% of revenue ($1,049 M) from PDI activities 
has been secured to date in 2011‐12. 


G 







G = On Target for Completion          Page 4 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


 
3.  RETENTION:  The College will increase its semester retention rate from 81.9% to 83%. 


 


Goals  Initiatives  Measures  3rd Quarter Report 
 


Status 


3.1  Increase student 
retention to 83% and 
graduation rate to 64%. 
 
 


Provide initiatives which 
enhance faculty 
competence for dealing 
with retention challenges. 


Deliver PD for faculty based on the 
Professor of the 21st Century to 
help increase student engagement 
and increased retention. 


The Professor of the 21st Century document is 
under review and will be updated to reflect the 
directions set out by the College’s new Strategic 
Plan.  Both FT and PT teacher orientation 
programs are also being reviewed. It is 
anticipated that both programs will be enhanced 
to better reflect emerging teaching and 
pedagogical realities at Algonquin and to take 
into account the College’s Mobile/Digital learning 
initiatives. 


G 


Implement the Student 
Success Centre, including 
Student Success Specialists 
and Academic Advisors, as 
well as key additional 
services during peak times. 


Client service enhancements in 
place and client demand tracked.  
Design plans finalized for Student 
Success Centre in Student 
Commons. 


The Student Success Centre is currently tracking 
detailed information regarding in‐person client 
service and client service delivered through the 
Live Chat application.  A few examples of 
information gathered thus far: in December 
2011, 41% of the Live Chat interaction occurred 
on Fridays; 22% of the questions were 
concentrated during the 10am‐11am and 2pm‐
3pm hours during the day; 48% of the questions 
originated from current students and 46% of the 
questions originated from prospective students. 
Development work is underway in adapting the 
database application for Academic Advisors to 
meet the needs of the Student Success 
Specialists.  This project is scheduled for 
completion by the end of the fiscal year. 
Process‐mapping for the One‐Stop Service model 
in the Student Commons is underway. 


G 


3.2  Work 
collaboratively with 
Student Success 
Specialists and 
Academic Advisors to 
promote student 
retention. 


Provide one‐stop service 
where students go for help 
and information, as well as 
student success strategies. 


Services tracked and measured 
against improved enrolment and 
retention targets.   


Collaboration of the student success specialists 
and the academic advisors continues in the 
student success centre and academic advising 
and coaching activities monitored by the Student 
Success Committee on a monthly basis. 
 


G 


3.3  Work 
collaboratively with 
appropriate college 
departments and 
individuals to promote 
student retention. 


Academic identification and 
tracking of students at risk 
established within the first 
3 weeks of class.  Student 
Services will provide the 
appropriate follow‐up 
services (some of which are 
available online) to 
students identified at risk, 
within the first 5 weeks of 
class. 


Analysis of results of outreach 
contacts to at‐risk students and 
subsequent academic performance
provided within three weeks of 
term end. 


 


Automated telephone campaign to all Level 01 
students (~8,000 students, of which ~25% were 
deemed as at‐risk).  Successful automated phone 
contact with ~60% of the 8,000 students. 
Personal telephone follow‐up with at‐risk 
students who had indicated their request for 
assistance – of this group, 53% were contacted 
by Student Success Specialist/Student Success 
Centre.  The “Welcome” telephone campaign to 
all 1st year students in the 7 programs with the 
lowest retention rates (one of the original 8 
programs was removed from the campaign), a 
population of 1009 students:  24% (242) of the 
students were reached directly and appreciated 
the call but did not require further assistance, 
51% (510) were left a voicemail message with the 
web link to support services, 3% (31)asked for 


G 







G = On Target for Completion          Page 5 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


further follow‐up of which 75% (23)were assisted 
and satisfied. 


  Enhance Client Service and 
“closing” rates through the 
expansion of the electronic 
Late Applicant Process and 
online fee deferrals. 


Increase of 10% in “closing” rates 
of Late Applications.   
 


Completed, as reported, in November 2011.   G 


  Increase the number of 
students involved in 
volunteering experiences 
on campus to help improve 
student retention and 
utilize Community Learning. 


Number of ongoing student 
volunteers increased from 25 to 50 
by December, 2011. 


This goal has been achieved.  The Student Affairs 
and Orientation (SAO) department formulated 
and implemented a strategic approach to 
recruiting and engaging Student Leader 
volunteers on campus.  The approach was 
successful.  50 Student Leader volunteers were 
recruited and trained to provide assistance 
during Fall Orientation 2011 and Winter 
Orientation 2012.  These volunteers also provide 
support to the SAO team during the academic 
year to assist with the delivery of many student‐
oriented events.                                                            


G 


3.4  Enhance service 
provided to students 
via the Student Success 
Desk by opening the 
Student Success Centre 
in appropriate space. 


Increase services provided 
in the Student Success 
Centre, including Student 
Success Specialists, 
Academic Advisors, IEC rep 
and other key services 
during peak times.  


Monitor student activity.  Develop 
an at‐risk student list and follow‐
up on requests for assistance. 


The Student Success Centre is currently tracking 
detailed information regarding in‐person client 
service and client service delivered through the 
Live Chat application.  Full integration of the 
Student Information Desk and Student Success 
Centre was achieved in November 2011. 
Development work is underway in adapting the 
database application for Academic Advisors to 
meet the needs of the Student Success 
Specialists.  This project is scheduled for 
completion by the end of the fiscal year.  


G 


Foster cross‐learning 
amongst the various 
services; clarify the roles of 
Student Success Specialists, 
Academic Advisors, 
Coordinators; and 
Counsellors; and provide 
data for ongoing update of 
ASK Algonquin (FAQ) 
application. 


ASK Algonquin implemented as a 
mobile application and updated on 
a regular basis, by tracking of 
questions being asked at the 
Student Success Centre and 
through Live Chat. 


Cross‐training is ongoing, as is continual review 
and update of ASK Algonquin (FAQ) application.  


G 


3.5  Define and 
promote the One‐Stop 
Service model, 
engaging other related 
services in the 
discussion. 


One‐Stop Service model 
defined for telephone, 
virtual and in‐person 
service.  
 
 


One‐Stop Service model defined 
for telephone, virtual and in‐
person service, with consequent 
business and software 
requirements documented by 
October, 2011. 


Ongoing.  Progress on process‐mapping and 
defining of the One‐Stop Service delivery model 
was delayed with the retirement of the Director, 
SSS and is now underway.  Full integration of the 
Student Information Desk and Student Success 
Centre was achieved in November 2011.  


G 
 
 
 
 


With allocation of 
Advancement resources for 
web development and 
social media, implement a 
Student Services web 
presence to ensure direct 
access to one‐stop service 
for all Student Services 
departments. 


Fully integrated Student Services 
web presence, enabling one‐stop 
online service implemented by 
November, 2011. 


Launch of the Student Portal and Student 
Services web presence was delayed due to delay 
in finalization of the overall College web 
template and structure.  Advancement is 
planning to have full Student Services web 
presence in production prior to the end of fiscal 
year. 


G 







G = On Target for Completion          Page 6 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


Develop short videos to 
market online the Student 
Support Services in the 
Residence.  This will help 
many students prepare 
better for move‐in as well 
as give information to 
students before they move 
in (e.g. International 
students). 


Videos descriptive of Student 
Support Services in Residence 
launched online by mid‐April.  
Track the number of hits. 


In addition to the videos descriptive of Student 
Support Services in Residence (launched in April 
2011), work is now underway on three short 
videos of Welcome to the following student 
groups: students with disabilities, International 
students, and Aboriginal students. The videos will 
be posted on website prior to Spring Orientation 
2012.  


G 


Every Student Support Service has 
a specific email inquiry link.  
Inquiries are tracked and actioned.


Online live‐agent support available during regular 
office hours.  Enhancement of online FAQ’s is 
ongoing.  


G 


Develop and deliver a CSD 
Podcast providing 
information on the services 
in an online “learning‐on‐
demand” format.  Delivery 
will be interactive with 
“avatars” so that new and 
returning students will be 
familiar with the CSD 
offerings. 


Measure volume of usage on the 
site.  Solicit feedback from 
students on the prototype and 
implement changes as required.   


This project is now fully completed. “CSD Up 
Close” is launched on website, and is also 
televised on large screen in CSD enabling 
students and parents to view the information 
and learn more about our services and college 
readiness. This podcast was showcased at Make 
the Cut transition program to 65 educators from 
across the Ottawa Carleton region, and 
promotional information was emailed to all 
Eastern Ontario School Boards. Google Analytics 
is being used to track the number of hits to the 
site – 508 in the past 3 months.  


G 


3.6  Explore and 
evaluate new model for 
Health Services with 
implementation date 
Fall, 2013. 


Hire interim Health Services 
Administrator for transition 
years 2011‐2013. 


Administrator hired by July, 2011 
and Plan developed to address 
space and service level issues in 
Health Services by December, 
2011, for implementation in 
2012/13. 


Steering Committee in place for Health Services 
Project, consultant team selected, focus groups 
held, operational review underway, visioning 
session scheduled for February 6.  On track for 
short‐term recommendation to PEC in late 
February/early March and long‐term 
recommendations by June.  


G 


3.7  Begin to introduce 
more post‐admission 
testing to ameliorate 
the admission process. 


Using Accuplacer, support 
post‐admission testing by 
introducing new inclusive 
(accessible) and innovative 
practices for post‐
admission Math and English 
diagnostic testing to 
support student success. 


Track and report success rates for 
students identified as “at risk” and 
implement support initiatives.   


Post‐admission assessment services provided for 
200 Level 1 students in Heating, Refrigeration, 
and Air Conditioning; Cabinetry; Building 
Construction; Welding; and Motive Power 
programs in September 2011. All results 
delivered to and interpreted for Chair of Building 
Construction programs. 
Plans in place to continue this pilot and offer 
post‐admission assessment for at‐risk students in 
Winter 2012 intake.  


G 


3.8  Integrated 
communications 
strategy for new and 
returning students to 
increase the likelihood 
of their success. 


Cross‐College collaboration 
to develop a new template 
for ACSIS that will serve as 
the student portal (One‐
Stop Shopping). 


The look, feel and functionality of 
ACSIS will be updated and 
expanded to ensure new 
Algonquin students are better 
informed of and have access to 
both online and face‐to‐face 
services. 


To be implemented on release of CRM 
functionality by Advancement. 
 
ACSIS Re‐design project is in final testing stage.  


G 


3.9  Enhance support 
for students and clients 
who require services at 
non‐traditional times. 
 


Strategy developed and 
implemented to maximize 
the effectiveness of in‐
person and online student 
support (evenings, 
weekends, summer and 
online). 


Student support services available 
to 7:30 pm Monday to Thursday, 
and to 4:30 p.m. on Friday, and 
weekend hours. 


Extended hours in place once again this year.  
Enhanced online services continue to be 
released.  Additional mobile apps offered e.g. 
Student Handbook, student timetables, OSAP 
status information. 


G 


Online, live agent support available
during normal operational hours, 
and online FAQ's available and in 


 Online live‐agent (Live Chat) support available 
during regular office hours.  Enhancement of 
online FAQ’s is ongoing.  


G 







G = On Target for Completion          Page 7 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


place for September, 2011. 


3.10  A comprehensive 
pan‐College retention 
plan will address, 
measure and evaluate 
key determinants of 
student success. 


Develop a customized 
retention plan for each 
Faculty/School by June, 
2011. 


First phase of retention plan 
customized for each Faculty by 
June, 2011, with specific target 
metrics for improvement. 


Fall 2011 to Winter 2012 retention results by 
program and level will be available February 
2012. 
 


G 


Develop College‐wide 
support for retention 
strategy.   
 
 


All College Departments have 
communicated their understanding
and commitment to support 
appropriate efforts within the 
College retention plan to achieve 
retention target.   


 
The Student Success Committee, comprised of 
cross‐college representation, has been 
developing additional strategies to further align 
academic and service department efforts to 
support retention strategies. 
 


G 


High enrollment and high 
failure rate courses 
developed in modular 
format to assist with credit 
recovery options and as 
alternatives for traditional 
in class delivery. 


Convert 20 high enrolment/high 
failure rate courses to fully online 
modular format delivery by 
December, 2011.   


Pass/fail rates by course will be available 
February 1st.   As part of their mid‐semester 
reviews, Deans and Chairs conduct a full review 
of courses with failure rates over 30%.  Plans are 
developed to address challenges or 
opportunities, including curriculum changes and 
professional development requirements. 


G 


Improve pass rate (student 
success) of targeted 
courses where failure rate 
exceeds 30%. 
 


Increase the pass rate by 10% for 
all courses that have a failure rate 
higher than 30% to achieve 70% 
pass rate.   


High failure – high enrolment courses have been 
analyzed and identified. Trend analysis over 3 
years revealed 47 courses that have not reflected 
appropriate improvements over that time. 
Student success initiatives have been identified 
to address those courses and Learning and 
Teaching Service’s CIS team is working with 
schools to initiate improvement strategies. 


G 


Augment the quality 
assurance processes for 
targeted programs with an 
independent external 
review. 


All targeted program reviews 
include an external review 
component. 


Three Ontario College Credentials are scheduled 
to pilot the external review component this 
Winter/Spring.  These include Advertising 
(OCAD), Baking and Pastry Arts (OCC) and 
Biotechnology Technologist (OCAD). 


  
Additionally, an external review by a Program 
Evaluation Committee will be undertaken for the 
BAA ‐ Interior Design in late March as part of its 
Degree Consent Renewal. 


G 


Resource the roll‐out of 
academic advising College‐
wide. 
 


Select College coordinators, 
support staff and faculty assigned 
release time to roll‐out College‐
wide academic advising. 


A 25% increase in the number of programs (20 to 
25). In addition, a 38% increase in academic 
advisors participating in the controlled study is 
planned.  (40 to 55).  An academic advising 
manual will be available for fall 2012. 


G 


Pilot post‐admission 
success testing for all 
students for January, 2012 
intakes. 


Post‐admission success testing 
developed and piloted and impacts 
measured. 


Plans in place to continue the pilot initiated by 
School of Transportation and Building Trades in 
Fall 2011 and to offer post‐admission assessment 
for at‐risk students in Winter 2012 intake.  


G 


3.11  Promote student 
retention and increase 
graduation rate through
bursaries and 
scholarships. 


 


Increase endowments 
through the renewal of 
pledges and the creation of 
new awards and 
scholarships. 


$1.2 M (matched) raised by March 
31, 2012.  


$813,080 K confirmed to date in cash and 
pledges for endowments (matched). 
 


G 


Increase annual awards and 
scholarships through the 
renewal of pledges and the 


$250K in annual awards and 
scholarships by March 31, 2012. 


$253,700 K confirmed in annual awards and 
scholarships. 
 


G 







G = On Target for Completion          Page 8 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


creation of new awards and 
scholarships. 


Analyze international 
student retention and 
develop and execute a plan 
to improve retention. 


Increased retention by 40 students 
over 2010/11‐ level. 


Results being compiled of International Student 
Barometer Survey for ESL and programs of study 
completed in January 2012. Results to be 
presented by iGraduate.org to staff in April 2012.


G 


Increase the retention of 
Aboriginal and First 
Generation students. 


Increased retention by 5% from 
current KPIs of Aboriginal and First 
Generation students. 


Retention data being reviewed and strategies put 
in place through the Aboriginal Student Success 
Specialist and funding from the Ministry for First 
Generation Students. 


G 


3.12  Define and 
promote the One‐Stop 
Service model, 
engaging other related 
services in the 
discussion to improve 
retention.   


Implement a student 
service focused web 
presence to ensure direct 
access to one‐stop service. 


Student Services website and 
Phase 1 of Student Portal launched 
by August 31, 2011.  


Launch of the Student Portal and Student 
Services web presence was delayed due to delay 
in finalization of the overall College web 
template and structure.  Advancement is 
planning to have full Student Services web 
presence in production prior to the end of the 
fiscal year. 


G 


3.13  Promote student 
retention and increase 
graduation rate. 
  
 


Support the orientation of 
students through the 
deployment of a broad 
“Here 2 Help”  
communication effort at 
the start of the Fall and 
Winter terms. 


“Here 2 Help” Communication plan
drafted and approved by PEC by 
July 30, 2011, 


 Here 2 Help Campaign launch set for January 30, 
2012 
 


G 


Approved “Here 2 Help” 
Communication Plan deployed first 
two weeks of Fall and Winter term.


Here 2 Help Campaign launch set for January 30, 
2012 
 


G 


Host College forum on 
opportunities and 
challenges surrounding 
possible move from “equal 
access” to “best fit” student 
recruitment model. 


50 participants attend forum. 
 


Round table discussions held as part of Strategic 
Planning exercise Oct. 27 (Woodroffe), Nov. 4 
(Perth) and Nov. 17 (Pembroke) with a total 
attendance of 36 participants.  
 


G 


  4.  GRADUATION RATE:  The College will increase its graduation rate from 62.9% to 64% by 2011. 
 


Goals  Initiatives  Measures  3rd Quarter Report 
 


Status 


4.1  Participate in the 
Data Collection and 
Reporting Provincial 
Credit Transfer Project 
by scoping the 
requirements for the 
preliminary data system
changes to facilitate the 
tracking of transfer 
students and to build 
toward long‐term 
accountability system 
for credit transfer.  
System must ensure 
measurable and 
auditable data including 
making provisions for 
the use of the OEN in 
connection with the 
credit transfer system. 


 


Undertake credit transfer 
activities in accordance 
with the MTCU and 
Algonquin College 
contractual agreement 
dated January 17, 2011.  
Complete eligible activities 
as outlined in the Credit 
Transfer Institutional 
Grants Transfer Payment 
Agreement and timelines.   


Completion of activities by June 
30, 2011. 


The Registrar’s Office, in collaboration with Area 
5, has undertaken Phase I credit transfer 
activities in accordance with MTCU and 
Algonquin College contractual agreement dated 
January 17, 2011.  


G 







G = On Target for Completion          Page 9 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


4.2  Target specific 
programs with 
retention/graduation 
concerns and establish 
success strategies to 
address concerns or 
phase out programs. 


Success strategies are 
defined and a plan 
proposed to resource, 
implement or phase out 10 
programs with the lowest 
retention and graduate 
rate. 


Plans implemented.    The Vice President, Academic will provide an 
update to the Board of Governors at the 
February meeting.  
 


G 


5.  MOBILE LEARNING:  The College will continue to embrace the trend to mobile access by ensuring that all licensed software can be 
downloaded to mobile devices and that new apps are created to facilitate mobile access, learning and service acquisition. 


 


Goals  Initiatives  Measures  3rd Quarter Report 
 


Status 


5.1  Student mobile 
computing will be part 
of all College programs 
by 2015. 


27 programs with mobile 
learning launched for 
September, 2011. 


27 programs launched by 
September, 2011. 


A total of 76 programs have been identified as 
mobile learning programs for Fall 2012 (existing 
and new programs).  Meetings with chairs, 
coordinators and faculty will continue through 
the winter semester to ensure faculty and other 
appropriate college staff are prepared for this 
broader rollout. 


G 


Phase Two Mobile Learning 
rollout to include an 
additional 40 to 50 
programs to transition to a 
mobile format as 
determined by Deans’ 
Council. 


Specific identification of 50 Phase 
Two programs by October, 2011 
for September, 2012 
implementation. 


The Academic area has identified 49 additional 
new mobile programs for Fall 2012 
implementation.  
 


G 


Strategy for infrastructure 
and technology acquisition 
and faculty PD/training 
requirements for Phases 2 
and 3 to developed in 
consultation with Phase 1 
faculty. 


Mobile learning Phases 2 and 3 
roll‐out strategy presented to PEC 
by October, 2011. 


Planning is underway for determining the mobile 
classroom conversions required for Fall 2012.  


G 


5.2  Develop a strategy 
for increased use of 
student mobile 
computing to support 
the College’s direction 
of going mobile by 
2013. 


Mobile website strategy 
developed. 


Mobile website strategy presented 
to CTC by June 30, 2011. 


Discussions ongoing. 
 


G 


Phase 2 of mobile app 
development completed. 
(Including ASK Algonquin). 


Phase 2 of mobile app 
development completed and 
deployed by August 31, 2011. 


Phase 2 of mobile app launched in November, 
2011 with added functionality including; People 
search, mobile wayfinding, transit integration 
with OC Transpo and listing of food services 
hours of operation. 


G 


5.3  Target specific 
programs with 
retention/graduation 
concerns and establish 
success strategies to 
address concerns or 
phase out programs. 


Success strategies are 
defined and a plan 
proposed to resource, 
implement or phase out 10 
programs with the lowest 
retention and graduation 
rates. 


Plan implemented.  Updates on SPSP1 recommendations from have 
been obtained for programs and implementation 
plans have been identified.   A full review to 
identify program suspensions is ongoing.  
 


 







G = On Target for Completion          Page 10 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


 
6.  ONLINE LEARNING:  The College will expand its online learning offerings through hybrid and full online modules by reviewing and adapting 
20% of all courses and programs in each of the next five years. 


Goals  Initiatives  Measures  3RD Quarter Report 
February 13, 2012 


Status 


6.1 Commit to creating 
a student‐centred, 
flexible learning 
environment enhanced 
through the virtual 
delivery of programs 
and services within a 
mobile environment by 
September, 2013. 


Top 40 programs reviewed 
and assessed for 
development of online 
courses. 
 


25 additional, fully online 
programs identified for 
development by 2012. 


Deans Council was presented with a list of all 
current hybrid offerings.  Funding was approved 
in year to continue the development of hybrid 
courses that were committed.  A list of all new 
hybrid courses will be presented to Deans 
Council in February. 


G 


Convert 3 high enrolment 
in‐class programs to fully 
online offerings to better 
meet student demands. 


3 new programs developed for full‐
time online offering by December, 
2011. 


Three fulltime programs have been identified for 
development into online delivery format.  These 
programs are in high demand by students and 
have been determined to be appropriate for 
online delivery.   


G 


Identify suitable courses for 
hybrid and online 
development. 


100 hybrid and 20 online courses 
developed by December, 2011. 


This target has been exceeded (by almost 100%). G 


Re‐design the College’s 
technical support model to 
address the needs of the 
mobile client. 


Technical support model re‐
designed and implemented by 
December, 2011. 


Initial draft of Client Service Standards is under 
review within the department. Blackboard 
learning environment was rebuilt through Q3 to 
improve stability, with further work through Q4. 
Major reconstruction of the platform will take 
place in the summer to resolve root performance 
and reliability issues. Through Q3, extensive 
tuning and improvement work took place with 
the wireless and wired networking systems to 
increase stability and reduce down time. 


G 


6.2  The Academic Area 
will lead in the 
development of new 
standards and processes 
for ensuring that the 
learning environment 
and technology 
supports for students 
and faculty are of the 
highest quality. 
 


Under the leadership of 
Dean’s Council, the 
Learning Environment 
Quality (LEQ) committee 
will be re‐established and 
will provide guidance and 
recommendation related to
the standards and service 
support requirements for 
all learning environments 
and common study spaces. 
This will include the 
required technologies and 
SLA's required to support 
traditional, mobile, and 
digital learning 
environments. 


 


A detailed faculty/ student 
technology supports (FSTS) report 
on the level of service area support 
requirements to accommodate 
traditional, mobile and digital 
learners presented to PEC by 
November, 2011, for inclusion in 
budget and business plans for 
2012/13. 


LEQ standards report presented to 
PEC by November, 2011. 
 


LEQ working group continues to meet and work 
on standards.  LEQ continues to report to the 
College Technologies and College Space and 
Infrastructure Committees. 
 


G 


LEQ report used by the College 
Space and Infrastructure 
Committee to determine priority 
investments for 2012/2013. 


This committee (Learning Space Planning Group) 
continues to be involved in executing the mobile 
strategy.  Strategies related to wireless 
connectivity and power supply in the planned 
mobile classrooms is a primary priority at this 
time.    


G 


6.3  Provide integrated 
communications to new
and returning students 
to increase the 
likelihood of their 
success. 


 
Expand the use of 
Salesforce/Marketo 
broadcast email 
functionality to Student 
Services and additional 
interested College 
departments.  


CRM based broadcast email 
functionality implemented within 
Student Services by August, 2011. 


Completed. 
 


G 







G = On Target for Completion          Page 11 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


6.4  Improve the access 
and quality of the 
College’s online 
information. 


Expand the College’s Social 
Media efforts. 
 


College Social Media Strategy 
drafted and presented to PEC by 
September 30, 2011.   


Strategy completed. Facebook campaign set to 
launch January 30, 2012. Full presentation to 
BOG set for May, 2012. 


G 


Prospective Student Facebook 
level of engagement increases 
from 700 to 1500 monthly active 
users. 


1717 monthly active users as of December 31, 
2011. Over 400% year‐over‐year increase. 
 


G 


Referrals to College website by 
Social Media increase by 25%. 


As of Jan. 23, 2012, 12.6% increase year‐over‐
year, with a 16.4% increase in new visits. 
Facebook campaign set to launch January 30, 
2012. 


G 


2 Academic Program Blogs 
launched by departments by 
November, 2011. 


Marketing Blog launched Jan, 2012. Program 
blogs to be launched by Mar. 31, 2012. 


G 


6.5  Assess current 
Enterprise Resource 
Planning (ERP) and 
corporate systems and 
develop a strategy for 
the acquisition or 
development of new 
systems.  


Assess new corporate 
systems models including 
Software ‐As‐A‐Service 
(SaaS), open–source ERP 
systems and consumer‐
based apps and develop an 
acquisition and/or 
development strategy. 


New corporate systems models 
assessed and strategy developed 
by March 31, 2012. 


Restructured the PeopleSoft support team to 
improve performance and reliability of the 
platform in advance of a College wide plan. 
Through the pilot testing of a mid‐tier BI solution 
(Qlikview) a student enrollment data mart has 
been created and mapping has proceeded on 
the data mart to business systems. 
 


G 


7.  EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT:  The College will, through professional development, training, mentorship, and coaching, prepare its employees 
for new ways of delivering education and training and for leadership opportunities in the College. 


 


Goals  Initiatives  Measures  3rd Quarter Report 
 


Status 


7.1  Maximize 
professional 
development 
opportunities, (including 
mentoring, job‐
shadowing, cross‐
training) for each 
employee who expresses 
an interest in additional 
development. 


Examine all leadership 
training initiatives to align 
with the College’s 
succession planning and 
business plan objectives. 


Identify employees who have 
expressed interest and offer 
appropriate training, mentoring, 
coaching and one‐time special 
assignments. 


Physical Resources continues to increase the 
knowledge of department staff in sustainable 
facilities management practices and sustainable 
construction.  At present 3 staff members are 
undergoing LEED certification training. 
 
The development of a mentoring program in 
support of succession planning has been initiated.
  
All new, full‐time support staff are paired with a 
mentor for a 6‐month period. 
  
A mentorship program is a component of ALEI III.  
All participants in this program self‐select a 
mentor and engage in a mentorship relationship 
for the duration of the program. 


G 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G 


7.2  Ensure all full‐time 
and part‐time employees
are appropriately trained 
including mandatory 
AODA and WHMIS 
training. 


 
AODA and WHMIS training 
have been added to new 
employee orientation.  
Monitor compliance on a 
weekly basis. 


100% of all full‐time employees 
have completed this training. 


WHMIS training continues to be delivered to new 
employees.   The process is linked to the HRIS 
system for managers to oversee training 
requirements for their staff. 
 
As of January 11, 2012, 95.96% of full‐time staff 
and 89.34% of part‐time employees have 
completed AODA training. 2043 employees have 
completed the WHMIS training. 


G 


7.3  Examine the  HR to take lead role in  Government compliance achieved AODA Committee continues to monitor upcoming  G 







G = On Target for Completion          Page 12 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


requirements for AODA 
Employment 
Accessibility Standard. 


establishing the AODA 
Employment Accessibility 
Standard Working Group 
Committee. 


for all AODA requirements.  
Report training progress using 
AODA annual accessibility report.


compliance requirements and is developing 
resources required to meet our obligations.  


7.4  As part of the 
succession plan, identify 
positions that require a 
critical skill set that are 
at‐risk due to limited 
human resource capacity 
and determine the 
essential skill set of each,
thereby ensuring 
sustainability of 
operations. 


 


 


Implement cross‐training 
for “at risk” positions with  
backup plans for each 
position. 


Positions identified and cross‐
training initiatives are in place. 


3 modules of ALEI III have been delivered.  6 are 
remaining until the completion of the program in 
April 2012. Practicums are underway and groups 
within the cohort are exploring College challenges 
and will present to PEC at the close of the 
program in April. 


G 


Complete Phase 1 of the 
Succession Plan for the 
remainder of the College 
and Launch Phase 2 call. 


 Self Assessment. 
 Manager Assessment. 
 Employee/Manager 
Meeting 


 Performance 
Development Plan 


Phase 1 completed.   
Phase 2 launched.   
 


Phase 1 of the Succession Plan has been 
successfully completed with an overall 
participation rate of 98% for the pilot group.  This 
included the self‐assessments, Manager 
assessment, employee/manager meeting and the 
development of career development plans for 
each incumbent.  The overall talent assessment 
review meeting will be completed by the 
President’s Executive Committee on January 25th. 
Phase 2 is currently in planning phase. 


G 


7.5  Build the capacity to 
ensure internal 
resources are prepared 
for additional leadership 
roles. 


Complete the 
administrative evaluations 
and provide relevant 
workshops through Centre 
for Organizational 
Learning to align with the 
College’s business plan 
and succession 
opportunities. 


Evaluations completed. 
Appropriate workshops offered. 


The evaluation framework for Administrative Staff 
has been developed and a Resource Manual 
completed. Training for all Administrative 
personnel will take place in February. 


G 


7.6  Foster an 
environment where 
opportunities to lead are 
available to all 
employees. 
 
 
 
 
 


Increase leadership 
capacity and capabilities 
within the College by 
supporting those 
expressing interest via the 
Talent Assessment. 
 
Provide employees with 
the opportunity to lead a 
special project and/or 
assignment. 


Employees provided with 
opportunities for the following: 
 
● Leadership training, as 
available. 


● Taking a leadership role in 
special projects and/or 
assignments. 


 Ongoing. 


The Labour Analysis/workforce effectiveness 
review is in the final phase of completion.  This 
entails a detailed review of labour costs and hours 
across the College. 


G 


7.7  Establish faculty 
credential and 
experience hiring 
guidelines. 


Establish and 
communicate faculty 
credential and experience 
hiring guidelines to 
appropriate individuals 
and departments for hiring 
for Fall 2011.   


New faculty credential and 
experience hiring guidelines 
established by April, 2011. 


 Continued use of the new faculty credential and 
experience template for all job postings was seen 
in the Winter 2012 hiring period. 


G 


7.8  Professional 
development and 
technological training 
opportunities will 
align with the strategic 
directions of the 
College. 


Develop a specific 
training strategy to 
meet the needs of the 
College’s digital 
programming and 
mobile learning 
initiatives. 


Training modules available to 
staff and faculty by September, 
2011 with additional modules 
deployed by December 31, 
2011. 
 
Professional Development with 
a focus on diversity, digital 
programming and mobile 


Professional development was offered and 
delivered to faculty and Academic Coordinators in 
December 2011 and January 2012, specifically 
targeting those teaching in mobile programs in 
Winter 2012.  In collaboration with LTS, efforts will 
continue to support all faculty in mobile programs, 
with particular emphasis on mobile programs in 
Fall 2012. 
In coordination with the Accessibility Office, PD 


G 







G = On Target for Completion          Page 13 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


learning available beginning 
September 1, 2011. 


around accessibility and diversity is scheduled for 
Winter 2012. 


Provide professional 
development 
opportunities in the use of 
online tools and resources 
with a focus on 
collaborative tools, and 
social networking.  


Professional development in 
online collaborative tools and 
social networking resources 
provided by March 31, 2012. 


Formal professional development sessions have 
been offered and provided, specifically targeting 
faculty and Coordinators directly involved with 
programs designated to become “mobile.  
Informal support continues as required.  


G 


Develop and deploy 
College training 
programs/courses for 
WordPress CMS and social 
media best practices, in 
collaboration with the 
COL. 


Curricula for Beginner, 
Intermediate and Advanced levels
of WordPress and social media 
presented to COL by August 31, 
2011. 


 
WordPress course development completed. Social 
Media course development ongoing.  


G 


25 cross College staff registered 
for each stream (WordPress & 
Social Media) by March 31, 2012.


WordPress training first class held January 20, 
2012 with 21 registrants. 
Social Media by March 31, 2012. 


G 


Provide professional 
development 
opportunities in the use of 
online tools and resources 
with a focus on 
collaborative tools, and 
social networking. 


Pilot the use of Salesforce Chatter 
within the Advancement Division 
and present findings to CTC by 
December 31, 2011. 


Presentation to be made to CTC February 2, 2012.
 


G 


100% of recruitment staff, 
satellite College recruiters, and 
FLMOs have completed a 
minimum of 2 Salesforce Training 
sessions by Fall, 2011. 


Completed. 
 


R 


All recruiters attend the 
provincial recruitment 
Annual Business Meeting. 


100% attendance.  Recruitment staff completed day long sales 
training December 20, 2011 as replacement for 
provincial session. 


G 


7.9  Continuously review 
and update formal 
departmental 
orientation program for 
all new full‐time and 
part‐time employees. 


Enhance and update 
departmental orientation 
program 


Departmental orientation review 
completed by August 31, 2011 
and new program implemented. 


Orientation documentation revised and 
distributed to all departments. 
  
Orientation slides will be available online for all 
new full time employees before March 31, 2012. 


G 


7.10  Continue to seek 
productivity 
improvements in all 
areas of College 
operations. 


Establish automated 
reports for recruitment, 
marketing and 
communications. 


Solutions to be identified and 
scoped by August 31, 2011. 


Automated Recruitment reports now available for 
Recruitment (Presentations & Leads), Marketing 
(Web visits/conversions), and Communications 
(Social Media/Sentiment).   


G 


  Establish Cost per 
Recruitment and 
Marketing Generated Lead 
formula. 


Formula established and 
approved by College Enrolment 
Management Committee by 
September, 2011. 


Completed.  Y 


7.11 Develop an 
engagement survey for 
all employees for 
implementation in 
January, 2012. 


Work with a consultant 
and other colleges to 
prepare and administer an 
engagement survey. 


Survey completed in January, 
2012. 


Survey is proceeding as anticipated.  Presentation 
to PEC scheduled for February 15, 2012. 


G 


 
 







G = On Target for Completion          Page 14 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


8.  FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY:  The College will target opportunities for increasing revenue, decreasing expenses and improving overall 
operating margins through new business opportunities, process automation, program and service efficiencies and productivity improvements. 


 


Goals  Initiatives  Measures  3rd Quarter Report  
 


Status 


8.1  Physical Resources 
will initiate analysis of 
the impact of the 
AODA new Built 
Environment draft 
standards on 
upcoming College 
capital construction 
and renovation 
projects.  


Individual projects will be 
analyzed by the Planning 
and Design teams and 
decisions made regarding 
investment in the new AODA 
requirements. 
 
 
 
 


Analysis presented to PEC with 
each Capital Project.   
 
 


To date, all major projects delivered have included 
selected items from the new AODA Draft (not 
legislated) Standards. These inclusions, where 
significant, have been reviewed by PEC as part of 
the overall project approval.   


G 


All Capital projects are AODA 
compliant. 


All current College projects include selected items 
from the AODA Built Environment (proposed) 
Standards.   


G 


8.2  Continue to 
implement Human 
Resources Four‐Year 
Transformation Plan. 
 


2011‐2012 is Year 3 of HR 
four‐year Transformation 
Plan.   
Develop new HR Business 
Plan which includes three 
priorities: Workforce 
Effectiveness, Talent 
Management, and alignment 
of all Leadership Training 
initiatives to the College’s 
direction. 


Human Resources Business Plan 
developed, approved and 
implemented. 


Recruitment strategies and outreach programs are 
in place to effectively attract top talent to 
Algonquin College. 
  
Strategies for retention of staff have been 
developed which include solid succession planning 
programs and performance management 
programs. 
  
The Recruitment team has launched a “Lunch and 
Learn series” for internal staff on applying for 
positions within Algonquin College.  This initiative 
is aimed to prepare internal staff for upcoming 
opportunities within our workforce. 


G 


8.3  Continue to seek 
productivity 
improvements in all 
areas of College 
operations 


Examine both Collective 
Agreements to determine 
how the College can achieve 
productivity improvements. 


Report tabled with PEC in 
October, 2011, indicating the 
changes required to improve 
productivity. 


The Labour Analysis/workforce effectiveness 
review is in the final phase of completion.  This 
entails a detailed review of labour costs and hours 
across the College.  
 


G 


8.4  Build a baseline 
and monitoring 
procedures to reduce 
reliance on part‐time 
resources. 


Complete a workforce audit 
of all part‐time resources. 
 
Development of an audit 
tool for future organizational 
design exercises. 
 
Hire a dedicated HR 
Specialist to focus on 
workforce complement 
strategy for full‐time and 
part‐time. 


Baseline developed and 
monitoring process in place and 
targeted productivity metrics 
established.   


Workforce audit of all PT resources is being 
completed by HR.  Finance is preparing financial 
analysis of PT costs.  Both reports to be presented 
for PEC review in February ‘12.   
 
Monitoring and metrics development are to be 
addressed in Q4 subject to future direction of 
HRMS application. 
 
The Labour Analysis/workforce effectiveness 
review is in the final phase of completion.  This 
entails a detailed review of labour costs and hours 
across the College.  
 
 


G 


 
 


Develop a plan to mitigate 
the risks of relying on a part‐
time labour force while 
enhancing the College’s 
ability to retain necessary 
skill sets. 


Multi‐year plan developed to 
transition the College’s 
operations and resource capacity 
to support a workforce with 
enhance productivity, continuity 
and retention. 


The Labour Analysis/workforce effectiveness 
review is in the final phase of completion.  This 
entails a detailed review of labour costs and hours 
across the College.  
 


G 







G = On Target for Completion          Page 15 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


8.5  Revision and 
updating of training 
session for Academic 
Chairs on Collective 
Agreement provisions 
on staffing and 
management of the 
staffing process. 


Delivery of training program 
to all managers on managing 
staffing to meet all of the 
terms and conditions of the 
Collective Agreement. 
 
 


Chairs, Deans, Directors and 
Academic Managers up to date 
on all obligations of the Collective 
Agreement. 


Training session was delivered on December 6, 
2011 at Chairs Council with a follow up session on 
January 3, 2012 to discuss specific staffing issues.  
Regular attendance at Dean/Chairs Council. 


G 


8.6  Increased support 
for managers in 
grievance/ arbitration 
process. 


Grievance file is reviewed 
with appropriate manager in 
all cases in advance of step 
meetings and support is 
provided to manager 
throughout the process. 


Support services in place.    Arbitration meetings and support are ongoing with 
appropriate manager, in particular Article 2 
hearings and WRA’s. 


G 


8.7  Continue the 
Value Stream 
initiatives to achieve 
service improvements 
and savings and/or 
redeployment of 
resources. 


Implementation of value 
stream initiatives to achieve 
service improvements and 
savings/re‐deployment of 
resources. 


Measure overall usage of sick 
leave and develop wellness 
initiatives. 
 
Monitor reduction in vacation 
accumulation and temporary 
payroll dollars. 


As noted in previous report, vacation liability has 
decreased by $800k and is projected to continue 
decreasing over the next year. Finance is working 
with HR on a detailed temporary pay/contractor 
report. 
 
Since September 2010 the College’s vacation 
liability implementation has saved over $800,000.  
We will be reviewing the data again at the 
beginning of February and expect further savings 
to be achieved.  Also, as a result of the use of 
Shepell.fgi disability management a further 
savings of $45,000 has been achieved.  Reports 
have been created to monitor sick leave usage by 
all groups within the College.  Contact with 
Managers is being made as appropriate. 


G 


  Conduct business process 
review of Co‐op Department 
and Employment Services to 
maximize the benefit to 
Algonquin, its students and 
its employer contacts. 
 
Continue to work with 
Finance to implement and 
refine e‐commerce online 
payment functionality. 
 
Realize improved 
operational efficiencies and 
client service enhancements 
within selected processes. 


Service improvements realized 
and resources redeployed (if 
applicable), based upon Value 
Stream project results. 


Value Stream review in Finance has resulted in re‐
organization resulting in a Procure‐to‐Pay 
structure and processes.  
 
Asset procurement in ITS is under review with 
anticipated outcomes to be release of space, 
purchasing efficiencies, and better control on 
inventory levels. 
 
Second Career client processing is under review to 
reduce processing time, increase registration and 
improve retention. 
 
Counselling Dept is reviewing scheduling process 
to enable actual vs planned appointment 
comparisons, increase capacity to serve more 
students and improve productivity. 
 
Bursary application process is under review and 
will result in greater number of online applications 
and automated initial screening of applications.  


G 


8.8  Phase 2 SPSP 
Services Review: 
Measure and report 
service performance 
for each service 
offered. 


Implement service 
performance metrics (as 
established by March 31, 
2011 through SPSP review). 
 
 
 


Baseline service performance 
data available for each service. 
 


Complete.  Reports submitted to SPSP Office.  G 







G = On Target for Completion          Page 16 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


    SPSP2 launched for completion 
target of June, 2012. 


The Steering Committee for the College Services 
Analysis and Reporting launched its activity in 
November '11 and developed the Service Analysis 
and reporting template. 
  
Academic Office Services Task Group report is 
being reviewed in collaboration with Chair's 
Council. Web based reporting (SharePoint) report 
samples are in development. 


G 


8.9  Implement 
recommendations 
from Phase 1 of SPSP 
review. 


Action taken on all 
recommendations of Phase 
1 SPSP as approved June 28, 
2010. 


Report provided to the Board of 
Governors on the implementation
of recommendations for Phase 1 
SPSP by June, 2011. 


 
Several service areas have implemented 
recommendations from Phase 1 SPSP including 
Physical Resources, Vending Operations, Print 
Shop, Business Process Review, Procurement, 
Shipping/Receiving and Accounts Payable.  
 
Complete.  Reports submitted to SPSP Office. 


G 
 
 
 
 
 
G 


8.10  Continue to 
support Strategic 
Programs and Services 
Planning Project 
implementation. 


Implement 
recommendations emerging 
from value stream 
assessment to automate 
disbursement of bursaries. 
 


Recommendations implemented 
to automate disbursement of 
bursaries by March 31, 2012. 


Foundation deposit sheets now automated to link 
Raiser’s Edge with Finance. The largest 
endowment fund, Plant Some Roots, has been 
automated to receive and disburse bursaries. This 
pilot project was the test case. Automation of 
uploading of all bursaries will be undertaken given 
the success of the pilot project. Financial Aid and 
Finance will oversee the project’s implementation.


G 


Conduct value stream 
assessment of international 
agreement process. 


Assessment completed by March 
31, 2012. 


The international agreement process has been 
streamlined‐ primary content has been automated 
with process automation to be completed in Q4. 


G 


Develop and begin 
implementation of a five‐
year plan to cover the cost 
of the Foundations 
operations through funds 
raised. 


Cost recovery plan developed and 
implementation initiated by 
December, 2011. 


A cost recovery framework has been developed to 
cover the operating costs of the Algonquin College 
Foundation. 
 


G 


Support the SPSP secretariat 
with communication 
support.  


SPSP II Communication Plan 
drafted and approved by SPSP 
Secretariat by June 30, 2011. 


The new website launch was delayed due to the 
Labour Disruption and is now scheduled for a 
launch before the end of February. 


G 


Establish an annual Service 
Quality Review process, 
similar to the existing 
Program Quality Review 
process, to establish a 
framework that ensures that 
services are regularly 
assessed, measured, 
updated and enhanced. 


Draft framework established and 
resource requirements identified 
for next year’s budget by 
October, 2011. 


The Steering Committee for the College Services 
Analysis and Reporting launched its activity in 
November '11.  Work continues.  


G 


Establish a strategy to 
maintain and increase the 
College’s system share of 
WFUs is reported in the 
annual General Purpose 
Operating Grant calculation. 


In conjunction with the SPSP 
project, establish metrics that will 
identify programs with the 
highest WFU values. 


Academic Operations in conjunction with the 
SPSP team has developed metrics which identify 
programs with high WFU values. A WFU 101 
presentation has been developed to educate 
academic administration on the mechanics of the 
process and to help ensure that College’s share of 
WFU’s is maintained and where possible 
increased. 


G 


8.11 Realign  Develop updated policies  New policies approved and  College Perquisites Policy approved by PEC on  G 







G = On Target for Completion          Page 17 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


procurement and 
expenses processes to 
comply with the 
Ministry’s Broader 
Public Sector 
Accountability Act. 


and business processes, train
staff on new procedures and 
implement practices to 
monitor College compliance 
with the new Broader Public 
Sector Procurement and 
Expenses directives. 


posted on the College web‐site 
and facilitated training sessions 
for staff conducted. 


January 18, 2012.   College has implemented all 
policies to be compliant with BPS Accountability 
Act.  Training sessions for staff being delivered on 
an ongoing basis. 
 
 


8.12  Deliver $150M of 
new academically 
focused facilities by 
Fall 2012. 


1. Woodroffe: ACCE and 
associated City Transit 
Infrastructure: $107M‐
September, 2011 
2. Perth: 
Renewal/Expansion: 
$12.3M‐September, 2011 
3. Pembroke Relocation: 
$36.3M‐September, 2012 


All budget requirements and 
client needs met.   


Both the ACCE and Perth Campus were 
substantially completed on time.  ACCE is coming 
in under budget whereas Perth is coming in within 
the approved revised budget (approval granted as 
part of Annual Budget for 2011/12 on Apr 11/11). 
Deficiencies in both facilities scheduled to be 
completed in Q4. Building commissioning on 
schedule (need to be completed over all 4 
seasons). Pembroke relocation is currently on 
track for both time and budget. 


G 


8.13  Ensure that the 
College is compliant 
with the Payment Card 
Industry Data Security 
Standard (PCI‐DSS). 


Implement systems and 
processes to secure and 
protect payment cardholder 
data and mitigate the risk of 
fraud. 


Attestation prepared that 
confirms that the College is 
compliant with PCI‐DSS. 


The PCI project is progressing.  RFP process for 
card payment services concluded in December and 
the incumbent provider, Chase Paymentech, was 
awarded the contract.  Credit card payments for 
tuition fees is under review.  Online banking 
option at all major banks is now available to 
students paying tuition and Residence fees; these 
transactions do not require College to maintain 
credit card data and therefore reduces risk 
exposure.  


G 


8.14  Launch a one‐
card program 
incorporating 
appropriate College 
services across all 
campuses. 


Students will be able to use 
their ID cards as a tender 
type for most financial 
transactions taking place at 
the College, including Perth 
and Pembroke. 


Program launched throughout 
Ancillary Services and a number 
of College departments at all 
campuses August 31, 2011.  
Students will have the option to 
use their one card for all fiscal 
transactions at the College by 
March 31, 2012. 


Vending contract has been awarded enabling the 
addition of approx. 35 vending machines to the 
inventory of those able to accept the One Card. 
Discussions are underway to introduce the use of 
the One Card in the TestCentre; the back‐end 
integration must be completed. A design 
recommendation for the staff ID card has been 
presented to PEC and launch of this initiative is 
pending the outcome of the branding project. 


G 


8.15  Continue the 
project to prepare a 
Campus Development 
Plan for the Woodroffe
Campus by June, 2011. 


 


Campus development plan 
to address the City of 
Ottawa requirements 
including storm water 
management, sanitary and 
storm sewer conditions, land 
use planning, and projected 
growth needs.  Guidelines to 
address the sustainable 
development plan for the 
College. 


City of Ottawa requirements met 
for issuing a site plan approval for 
the Student Commons facility.  
Meets the College planning needs 
for a Sustainable Development 
Plan for the next 20 years. 


The level of requirements from the City to 
complete the Woodroffe Master Campus Plan is 
more stringent than anticipated.  The College 
continues to dialogue with the City, maintain a 
good working relationship and is making progress 
on developing the Plan.  An update on the 
Integrated College Development Plan will be 
presented to the Board in March ‘12. 
 


G 


Identify strategies to further 
reduce the reliance on bricks 
and mortar expansion to 
accommodate growth while 
leveraging technology 
solutions as a means to 
increase enrolment and 
graduation rates. 


Strategy developed for 
consideration by the Alternative 
Growth Strategies Working Group 
by October, 2011. 


Using the College’s new draft Strategic Plan for 
guidance on input, the College is in the process of 
refining the Digital College concept, and 
integrating planning activities of LTS, ITS, Physical 
Resources, and Advancement into an Integrated 
College Development Plan. 


G 


8.16  Continue to work Continue to assist TDM  Complete transportation demand Marketing program for the use of the VirtuCar and  G 







G = On Target for Completion          Page 18 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


on a strategy to 
address the current 
parking excess 
demand. 


initiatives as identified by 
Physical Resources.  
Investigate and support 
alternatives to parking in 
order to alleviate current 
demand on parking 
resources. 


analysis for the Woodroffe 
Campus. Development of a 
transportation management 
strategy compiled by December, 
2011. 


the development of a corporate model are 
underway. Transportation Demand Management 
analysis is under development as part of broader 
Master Campus Development Plan.  


8.17  Initiate the 
development of an 
Enterprise Risk 
Management/ 
Business Continuity 
Plan framework. 


The College has an 
established ERM/BCP 
framework that includes a 
prioritized risk catalog to 
support strategic and 
operational decision making. 


Enterprise Risk Management 
policy drafted and presented to 
PEC for approval by November, 
2011. 


Invitational RFP to three vendors issued December 
23, 2011, and closed on January 19th. Selection to 
be completed by end of January and successful 
firm will be presented to Audit Committee in 
February.  


G 


Complete assessment of 
disaster recovery in the 
cloud and implement 
business continuity and 
disaster recovery strategy 


Business Continuity Plan drafted 
and presented to PEC by 
November, 2011 and 
implemented by March 31, 2012.  


As the Information Communications & 
Technology/Business Intelligence reviews are 
completed, it is highlighting the level of 
complexity that is a factor in completing the 
IT/Disaster Recovery Plans.  The IT/DRP is a key 
component of the Business Continuity Plan.  
Progress is being made on completing the 
Business Continuity Plan. 


G 


8.18  Continue to 
reduce paper 
consumption. 
 


Implement online fee 
deferral for OSAP recipients 
(via ACSIS) and online Late 
Application process. 


10% reduction in paper usage 
achieved. 
 


Completed, as reported at Q2.  
  
 
Discussions are ongoing with Finance and external 
auditors to determine the need for photocopying 
and filing of HRIS print screens into the employee 
personnel file.  The streamlining of this practice 
could eliminate up to 75% of the hardcopy filing, 
thus reprioritizing the scanning project as a top 
priority. 


G 


Provide data electronically, 
whenever possible, to the 
College community.  Post 
increased amounts of 
information to the web. 


  Every attempt is made to do this and Live Chat is 
also being utilized.  


G 


All student support services 
publications will be available 
electronically in accessible 
format.  Printing of these 
publications will be on‐
demand only. 


  Student Services continues to move to providing 
electronic copies only e.g. Graduate Employment 
Report, New Staff Orientation Manual, 
departmental promotional brochures. 
 
Student Employment Services has achieved the 
goal of implementing an electronic invoice system 
with the Finance Department to streamline our 
Career Fair payment system. 


G 


Explore other scanning 
opportunities within all 
departments. 


  Discussions are ongoing with auditors to 
determine the need for photocopying and filing of 
employee screens. 


G 


Implement online system in 
the entire School of Business 
in Fall, 2011, with expansion 
to all Schools by Fall, 2012. 


  Goal fully completed. Entire School of Business 
and School of Nursing students now booking 
testing online. Next area of focus will be Part Time 
Studies. The system is working well, student 
feedback is very positive. Have implemented CSD 
Survey to receive feedback from students and 
faculty on the new booking system.  


G 







G = On Target for Completion          Page 19 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


A test was conducted in October for the School of 
Business.  This online format was adapted for 
implementation January 2012. 


Elimination of hard copy 
transcripts (annual savings 
of $30K), completion of 
numerous automation 
projects. 


Paper transcripts eliminated.  Continued reduction in paper consumption across 
Area 3. Increased number of reports available 
electronically. Automatic mail‐out of paper 
transcripts to students eliminated and automated 
on ACSIS. Unofficial transcripts available to staff 
and students 24/7. Official transcripts available 
from the Registrar's Office, on request. 


G 


Pilot an Electronic Document 
Management System that 
will scan all full‐time 
employee HR files.   


Pilot completed by September, 
2011.   


Progress is continuing on this project and will be 
complete later this year. 


Y 


Re‐develop the prototype 
for CSD online system for 
scheduling tests. 


Increase the number of 
tests/exams booked online. 


Goal fully completed. Entire School of Business 
and School of Nursing students now booking 
testing online. Next area of focus will be Part Time 
Studies. The system is working well, student 
feedback is very positive. Have implemented CSD 
Survey to receive feedback from students and 
faculty on the new booking system. 


G 


8.19  College program 
development will be 
guided by a multi‐year 
programming strategy. 
 


Identify and define program 
growth clusters, program 
roll‐out to include degrees, 
certificates, diplomas, 
advanced diplomas, and 
graduate certificates for 
both domestic and 
international audiences. 


College‐wide Programming 
Strategy will be developed and 
presented to VPA by June 30, 
2011. 


A working group is developing an execution plan 
that will consider the recommendations 
emerging from Value Streaming that is currently 
in process.  


G 


8.20  Represent the 
expectations of a 
polytechnic by 
providing students 
with a full range of 
Ministry‐approved 
credentials. 


Initiate development of 3 
new baccalaureate degree 
programs.  Finalize the 
development of the four 
degrees currently in 
development. 


3 new baccalaureate degree 
program proposals developed. 
 


Degree development continues as per Q2 update. 
In addition, the academic area has identified 10 
additional degrees opportunities that are 
undergoing review and exploration.  


G 


4 baccalaureate degrees, 
currently under development, 
completed and submitted to 
PQAB by October, 2011. 
 


As per above, several new degree opportunities 
are being developed and researched including 
business programs and a collaborative degree 
related to e‐Health that is a joint effort between 
the Faculty of Tech and Trades, and the Faculty of 
Health and Community Studies. 


G 


8.21  
Internationalization 
will be integrated into 
all College programs 
(as part  of The 
Algonquin Experience). 


Continue to integrate 
internationalization learning 
outcomes within new 
programs and programs 
undergoing cyclical PQR. 


Internationalization learning 
outcomes integrated within a 
minimum of 30 programs. 
 


As per Q2 update. the new sustainability and 
internationalization outcome was approved by the 
Credentials Validation Service for inclusion as a 
vocational learning outcome in Ontario College 
Credential programs going forward for validation. 


G 


Establish an implementation 
strategy to integrate 
internationalization learning 
outcomes within Annual 
Curriculum Review. 


Implementation strategy to 
integrate internationalization 
learning outcomes within Annual 
Curriculum Review completed 
and approved by June 30, 2011. 


As per above. 
 


G 


8.22  Expand applied 
research opportunities 
for staff, faculty and 
students.  


Build a culture of innovation 
through increased 
opportunities for research 
and experimentation with 


Each Faculty and School will 
engage in one new research 
project or experiments with a 
new teaching methodology and 


Student sustainability project with 
recommendations for recycling and reuse in 
health laboratories has been completed. Ongoing 
research projects underway.  


G 







G = On Target for Completion          Page 20 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


new teaching methodologies 
and research projects. 


be ready to present at the 
Applied Research Day in April, 
2012. 


Additional projects are underway, many of which 
are embedded in the programs of study as 
capstone projects.  These will be presented at the 
annual April Applied Research day. 


8.23  Prepare for 
potential future 
funding reductions. 


Develop a College financial 
contingency plan. 


Plan completed and presented to 
PEC by October 28, 2011. 


As part of the 2012/13 budget development 
exercise, the College is revising its budget so that 
‘funded’ operating costs are contained within 
‘funded’ revenue sources (ie. grants, fees, other).  
This will allow the College to use resources 
generated from non‐funded activities for strategic 
investments and to serve as a contingency to 
absorb the financial impact of adverse events.   


G 


8.24  Develop a 
general IT strategy for 
the College. 


Conduct stakeholder 
consultation and develop an 
Information 
Communications Technology 
(ICT) strategy for the 
College. 


ICT strategy completed by August 
31, 2011. 


The final ICT report was presented to PEC and 
other stakeholders in Q3. Transformation of the 
findings of the report into an ICT action plan is 
ongoing. 
 


G 


8.25  Develop new 
training programs to 
address needs 
identified by key 
sectors. 


Assess industry training 
needs through selected 
Sector Councils and develop 
training to address needs 
identified. 
 


New training initiatives 
undertaken in partnership with 
two Sector councils by March 31, 
2012. 


Offered a certification program for  Facilities 
Management professionals. ACCT is working in 
partnership with Building Owners and Manager 
Association (BOMA) to introduce a series of 
professional workshops for Ottawa region Building 
Managers and Technicians. Working in partnership 
with Greater Ottawa Homebuilders’ Association 
(GOHBA) to design, develop, co‐brand and market 
two specialized Customer Service Training 
programs tailored for home building industry. 


G 


Identify and prioritize high 
value industry training 
requirements aligned with 
expertise and resources of 
the College to develop new 
training offerings. 


Ten new customized training 
offerings developed by March 31, 
2012 with key industry sector 
associations/councils. 


Two new training offerings developed and 
delivered for Aboriginal students: Heavy 
Construction Planning and Scheduling and 
Fundamentals of Records Management. 
 


G 


8.26  Create the 
foundation for  the 
virtual delivery of 
Corporate Training 
Services. 


Implement new digital 
design and delivery 
methodologies for the 
delivery of public and 
custom training offerings. 


Three new technology‐enabled 
training offerings delivered by 
March 31, 2012. 


ACCT developed and implemented on‐line 
assessments for two courses in Fundamentals of 
Leadership Certificate Program; Interpersonal 
Communication and Leadership Skills using survey 
software application ‐ Timba. 


G 


8.27  Build and 
strengthen 
relationships with 
employment sectors 
and increase revenue 
through contract and 
non‐traditional 
revenue activity. 


Increase annual corporate 
training revenue to $4 M. 
 
 


Secured $4 M in corporate 
training revenues by March 31, 
2012. 
 


To date, $1,739, 805 secured in corporate training 
revenues. Revenue expected to reach $2.5 M by 
March 31st.  An additional $500 K in contract 
training has already been sold for 2012‐13.  2011‐
12 revenue short fall will be covered by other 
contract activity. 


G 


Secure $875 K in revenue 
from government funded 
contract activity. 


$875 K secured by March 31, 
2012 in revenue from  
government funded contract 
activity. 


Target exceeded ($1, 129, 496) 
 


G 


8.28  Strengthen 
relationship with 
regional office of 
Employment Ontario 
to become the lead 


Partner with Employment 
Ontario in the execution of 
two labour market 
initiatives. 
 


Two labour market initiatives 
executed by March 31, 2012. 
 
 


Leading the LMI project in partnership with 32 
partner organizations. Evaluation and feedback 
sessions currently underway. 
 


G 







G = On Target for Completion          Page 21 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


agency for labour 
market development 
initiatives in Eastern 
Ontario. 


 


8.29  Expand business 
development 
opportunities. 


Work with Employment 
Ontario to develop and 
implement a new labour 
market planning model. 


Model developed and 
implemented by March 31, 2012.


Two projects are in process through the Ottawa 
Labour Market Integration planning committee 
and six projects are planned for next year. 


G 


Liaise with community 
agencies, Employment 
Ontario and unemployed 
clients to maximize 
participation under the 
Second Career Strategy and 
achieve SCS revenue target. 


$1.25 M Second Career Strategy 
revenue target achieved by  
March 31, 2012. 


On target to meet revenue expectations. 123 new 
Second Career students enrolled in 2011. 
 


G 


Increase number of clients 
(industry, government, non‐
profits, and College 
departments) served. 


165 employer clients receive 
corporate training services by 
March 31, 2012 for re‐skilling of 
their workforce. 


To date, a total of 189 employer clients received 
corporate training services for re‐skilling of their 
workforce. 


G 


Develop and implement a 
Strategic Partnership Model. 


Five strategic partnerships 
implemented by  
March 31, 2012. 


A strategic partnership framework has been 
developed and presented to the Foundation Board 
of Directors and the Academic Deans Council. The 
partnership with Hydro One and three other 
colleges has been extended for four more years. 
Hydro One’s new funding of $750 K for Algonquin 
will cover: a capital campaign gift, instructional 
equipment, bursaries and scholarships, applied 
research and diversity initiatives. 


G 


8.30 Increase efforts 
to seek external 
funding for applied 
research. 


Submit applications to 
targeted research funding 
agencies. 
 
 


One application to the Canada 
Foundation for Innovation’s 
College program submitted by 
September 30, 2011. 


Letter of Intent submitted to NSERC CCI 
Innovation Enhancement program for medical 
devices. Application submitted to new NSERC CCI 
Industrial Research Chair for Colleges program in 
the area of Digital Media. 


G 


8.31  Strengthen 
alumni outreach 
activities, including 
fundraising, by aligning 
Foundation and 
Alumni Office 
operations.  


Review and update the 
Alumni Strategy. 


Revised strategy implemented by
March 31, 012. 


Initiative underway to complete the revised 
Alumni Relations Strategy with the assistance of 
Good Works marketing advisers. 


G 


Develop a plan for e‐
fundraising. 


Plan completed and implemented 
by March 31, 2012. 


An e‐fundraising plan is being completed as part of 
the Alumni Relations Strategy. 


G 


Redevelop College Alumni 
website in accordance with 
the Alumni Tactical Plan. 


Alumni website launched by July 
31, 2011. 


Re‐designed Alumni website launched September, 
2011. 


G 


Increased attendance at 
Alumni events. 


100 guests attend the Alumni 
AGM in June, 2011. 


Completed.  G 


Transition to the use of 
Salesforce as the Alumni 
CRM. 


Alumni Salesforce CRM installed, 
operational and handed over to 
the satisfaction of the Foundation 
by August 31, 2011. 


Awaiting an analysis of the linkages between 
Salesforce and Raiser’s Edge. 
 


G 


Develop an online giving 
capacity as part of the 
Alumni website redesign. 


Online giving launched by June 
30, 2011. 


Completed.  G 







G = On Target for Completion          Page 22 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


8.32 Develop a 
Business Intelligence 
strategy to support 
strategic decision 
making. 


Complete Phase I of the 
business intelligence 
strategy and assess business 
intelligence models and 
technologies for future 
implementation. 
 
 


Phase I of business intelligence 
strategy completed by September 
30, 2011. Assessment of BI 
models and technologies 
completed by December 31, 
2012. 


The College BI strategy has continued to evolve, 
focusing on defining the needs of three 
increasingly sophisticated user communities (users 
of Excel, business users in supporting technology 
and statistical/predictive users). Size up of a 
sufficient infrastructure to host entry level access 
to core data through Excel within Sharepoint has 
been completed. A pilot of a business user BI 
platform, Qlikview, has been completed. Plans are 
in place for an equivalent pilot of a Cognos 
product for Q4. 


G 


8.33  Raise the 
awareness of 
challenges and 
opportunities with the 
internal community.  


Engage the College 
stakeholders in the 2013‐
2015 Strategic Plan 
development.  


Strategic Plan Stakeholder 
Engagement Plan submitted to 
PEC April 30, 2011. 


Completed.  G 


500 College stakeholders 
participate in Strategic Plan 
Stakeholder engagement 
activities. 


Over 1000 stakeholders participate in Strategic 
Planning engagement activities. Strategic Plan 
approved in principle subject to final presentation 
on financial implications by April, 2012. 


G 


8.34  Engage the 
external community to 
increase contributions 
through gifts‐in‐kind 
and activities 
associated with the 
College’s capital 
development plans. 


Conclude capital campaigns 
for Perth ($ 1 M), ACCE ($7 
M) and Pembroke ($2.5 M). 
 
 
 


Additional $1.5 M raised for the 
ACCE capital campaign by March 
31, 2012 achieving the $7M 
campaign goal. 


ACCE campaign has reached $7, 590, 501 (108.4% 
of campaign goal achieved.)  
 


G 


Additional $670 K raised for Perth 
capital campaign by March 31, 
2012 to reach 100% of the target.


Perth Campaign has reach $436, 050 (43.7% of 
campaign target of $1 M) 
 


Y 


Additional $900 K raised for the 
Pembroke capital campaign by 
March 30, 2012 to reach 100% of 
the target. 


Pembroke campaign has reached $1,965, 651 
(78.6% of the campaign goal: $2.5 M) 
 


G 


Establish new gifts‐in‐kind 
through corporate linkages 
and strategic partnerships. 


$1M in gift‐in‐kind donations 
raised by March 30, 2012. 


Gifts‐in‐kind received as of December 31, 2011 
stand at $66, 652. Pledges for over $1.7 M in gifts‐
in‐kind have been confirmed by corporate 
partners engaged in applied research projects. 
Due to time lines for approval of government 
funding applications that will provide matching 
funds, a number of gifts‐in‐kind items may be 
realized after March 31, 2012. 


G 


8.35  Investigate and 
action opportunities to
establish partnerships 
with external 
organizations and 
leverage resources. 


 
Collaborate with the 
Students’ Association in 
delivering the Student 
Commons Project by Fall, 
2012. 


Project is on budget and on 
schedule by March 31, 2012. 


Student Commons project remains on budget and 
on schedule for opening by start of Fall semester 
2012. 
 


G 


Examine Alternative 
Financing and Procurement 
options to identify strategies 
to leverage other public 
sector and private sector 
resources with the objective 
of increasing the College’s 
programming and service 
capacity. 


Report with options identified for 
consideration for future capital 
expansion projects. 
 


Meeting scheduled with Infrastructure Ontario in 
March 2011 to discuss IO framework and 
opportunities.  Meetings with other Colleges 
working with IO are taking place.   Meeting 
scheduled with PPP Canada to discuss 
opportunities.     
 


G 


Identify options for 
partnerships with other 


Review of services to students 
available at other post‐secondary 


Parking Services is investigating automated online 
issuance of visitor passes.  Other corporate 


G 







G = On Target for Completion          Page 23 
Y = Delayed or at Risk     
R = Not Complete 


organizations to provide 
services to students. 
 


institutions and potential 
opportunities identified. 


services are being reviewed for potential to 
partner or share best practices including space 
management and PeopleSoft financial system 
shared service model.  


Review the market for 
corporate services that may 
be provided by outside 
partners that enhance 
service levels while 
containing or reducing costs. 


Completed review of payroll 
services with recommendations 
identified and presented for 
decision. 


HR Management System Business Case drafted for 
PEC review in Winter ‘12.  Changes to payroll 
services depend on future direction of HRMS.  
Payroll Service has undergone value stream 
review. 


G 


 








 1


 


Presentation to: Board of Governors 


Subject: 2011/12 3rd Quarter Financial Report and Funded Positions 


Date: February 13, 2012 


Presenter(s):  Duane McNair, Vice-President, Administration 
 
Purpose 
 
To present the 2011/12 3rd Quarter Financial Report including a Summary of 
Funded Positions. 
 
Background 
 
On April 11, 2011, the Board of Governors approved the 2011/12 Annual Budget 
with a net cash flow of $1 million and a net contribution after Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP) adjustments and expenditures from internally 
Restricted funds of $1.7 million.  
 
When the budget is approved each spring, there are many unknown factors 
affecting the revenue and expenditure projections that must be estimated.  The 
quarterly financial reporting process provides the Board with updated forecasts 
based on the most current information as well as updated projections for the 
fiscal year end results. 
 
Discussion/Considerations 
 
Q3 Financial Projection 
 
This financial report reflects the projected revenue and expenditures using the 
most current information available from vice-presidents, deans, directors, chairs 
and managers throughout the College. The Q2 projections presented on 
November 14, 2011 showed a net cash flow of $3.7 million.  Since then the 
forecast for the year end cash flow has improved further to $6.8 million primarily 
due to a net decrease in expenditures.                
 
Further details explaining the variances can be found on pages 5, 7 and 9 of the 
3rd Quarter Financial report attached. 
        
Revenue Outlook 
 
The revenue forecast was increased during the Q2 period and has been 
significantly reduced in Q3 primarily due to updated forecasts related to the 
capital projects such as the OFA loan proceeds and the Student Association 
contribution to the new Student Commons building.  There is also a 







 2


corresponding decrease in expenditures for these capital projects.   
 


The year-end revenue forecast is estimated to be $5.7 million lower than 
estimated in the Approved Budget presented in April 2011.  This is comprised of 
increased revenue for grants and investment income and decreases in all other 
revenue lines including tuition fees, contract revenues, ancillary fees, 
International Education Centre and capital revenues. 
 
Expenditures Outlook 
 
A current estimate for Q3, based on an analysis of actual expenditures, confirms 
the Q2 forecast indicating that that some budgets are highly likely to achieve in-
year savings. These savings have been updated in the revised expenditure 
forecasts.   
 
Salaries and benefits is forecast to be $3.6 million lower than the approved 
budget and $0.3 million lower than projected in Q2 due to various reasons 
including lower enrolment, vacancies, sick leave and the labour disruption.  The 
Q3 Funded Positions Report is also attached to the 3rd Quarter Financial Report 
which shows current staffing levels in comparison to the approved budget 
positions. 
 
Internally Restricted Funds 
 
At the time the budget was approved, final results for 2010/11 were not yet 
known; year-end net asset balances were subsequently determined and a 
portion of the net assets were allocated to fund various projects and initiatives in 
support of the strategic plan and objectives under the Multi-year Accountability 
Agreement. 
 
The approved expenditures from internally restricted funds in the 2011/12 Annual 
Budget totaled $9.2 million (including $6.3 million from the Reserve Funds to 
complete construction of the Perth and Algonquin Centre for Construction 
Excellence facilities). 
 
On June 13, 2011, the Board of Governors approved the 2010/11 Financial 
Statements which included authority to spend an additional $7.8 million from 
Internally restricted funds. In total for 2011/12, the Board gave authority to spend 
$17 million from internally restricted funds.   
 
Current estimates indicate that approximately $4.5 million including $2.2 million 
for capital projects may remain unused at year-end.  The unused budgets will 
remain in the internally restricted fund and will be reported in the year-end 
financial statements.  
 
Recommendation 
 
That the Board of Governors approves the report as presented. 
 








3rd QUARTER FINANCIAL REPORT  | 2011 - 2012


A Presentation to the Board of Governors
February 13, 2012











2011/2012 3rd Quarter Financial Report
SUMMARY
(all figures in $ 000's)


Approved 
Annual Budget


Q2 Year-End 
Projection


Q3 Year-End 
Projection


Q3 vs. 
Approved 


Variance F/(U)


Revenue
Grants 102,519$           111,360$           114,349$           11,830$             


Tuition Fees 69,076               66,761               66,867               (2,209)               


Contract Educational Services 30,810               30,803               30,732               (78)                    


College Ancillary Services Sales 40,245               39,710               39,362               (883)                  


International Education Centre 12,641               12,641               12,283               (358)                  


Other 71,500               68,943               57,477               (14,023)             


TOTAL REVENUE 326,791             330,218             321,070             (5,721)               


Expenditures
Salaries & Benefits 131,096             127,712             127,477             3,619                 


Funding for Strategic Investment Priorities 74,721               78,205               66,908               7,813                 


Contract Activity 24,211               24,381               24,212               (1)                      


College Ancillary Services 35,937               35,707               35,446               491                   


International Education Centre 5,080                 4,967                 4,788                 292                   


Other 54,746               55,479               55,386               (640)                  


TOTAL EXPENDITURES 325,791             326,451             314,217             11,574               


NET CASH FLOW* 1,000                3,767                6,853                5,853                


Adjustments to Comply with Generally Accepted 


Accounting Principles (GAAP) 1 9,913                 7,849                 7,147                 (2,766)               


NET CONTRIBUTION before Expenditures 
from Internally Restricted Funds 10,913$            11,616$            14,001$            3,088$              


Expenditures from Internally Restricted Funds 9,202                 15,849               12,475               (3,273)               


NET CONTRIBUTION as per GAAP 1,711$              (4,233)$             1,526$              (185)$                


* Net Cash Flow Breakdown


College Operations (17,468)             (14,332)             (11,078)             6,390                 


Contract Activity 6,599                 6,422                 6,520                 (79)                    


College Ancillary Services 4,308                 4,003                 3,916                 (392)                  


International Education Centre 7,561                 7,674                 7,495                 (66)                    


Total Net Cash Flow 1,000                 3,767                 6,853                 5,853                 


1 See Schedule of Adjustments for GAAP on Page 2 for details.


Q3 Report 11-12 - BOG Summary 1







2011/2012 3rd Quarter Financial Report
ADJUSTMENTS FOR GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
(all figures in $ 000's)


Approved 
Annual Budget


Q2 Year-End 
Projection


Q3 Year-End 
Projection


Q3 vs. 
Approved 


Variance F/(U)


Adjustments to Comply with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP)
Less: Capital Grants and Donations to be 


recorded as Deferred Capital Contributions (33,800)$           (40,265)$           (33,684)$           116$                  


Add: Expenditures to be Capitalized - Equipment 


& Construction Projects 78,158               81,962               66,430               (11,728)             


Add: Principal Portion of Debt Payments 


Recorded as Expenditures 1,745                 1,745                 1,745                 -                        


Less: Loan Proceeds Recorded as Revenue (33,319)             (32,139)             (26,150)             7,169                 
Add: Contributions to Internally Restricted Funds 


Recorded as Expenditures 3,998                 3,998                 4,367                 369                   


Add: Amortization of Deferred Capital 


Contributions 5,446                 5,240                 5,337                 (109)                  


Less: Amortization of Capital Assets (11,959)             (12,229)             (12,039)             (80)                    
Less: Change in Accrued Vacation, Sick Leave & 


Post-Employment Benefits                   (356)                   (463)                  1,141 1,497                 


TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS TO COMPLY WITH GAAP 9,913$              7,849$              7,147$              (2,766)$             


Note: The College manages and reports its Annual Budget on a cash flow basis with a targeted $1 million Net Cash Flow.  


Capital expenditures (new buildings, equipment costing more than $1,000, etc.), the principal portion of debt servicing 


payments and budgeted contributions to Internally Restricted Funds are treated as cash flow expenditures. Capital grants, 


donations for capital buildings and equipment, and loan proceeds are treated as revenue. Amortization of capital assets and 


deferred capital contributions (i.e. capital grants and donations) and the change in accrued vacation, sick leave and post-


employment benefits are not recorded in the Net Cash Flow budget.


The adjustments shown in the above table are required to convert the College’s reported net contribution from a Net Cash 


Flow basis to a GAAP basis.


Q3 Report 11-12 - BOG GAAP 2







2011/2012 3rd Quarter Financial Report
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(all figures in $ 000's)


March 31, 2012
Approved 


Annual Budget


March 31, 2012
Q2 Projected


March 31, 2012
Q3 Projected


Q3 vs. 
Approved 


Variance F/(U)


ASSETS
Current Assets


Cash & Short Term Investments 47,147$             37,122$             42,816$             (4,331)$             


Accounts Receivable 21,555               21,555               21,555               -                        


Inventory 2,112                 2,112                 2,112                 -                        


Prepaid Expenses 402                   889                   889                   487                   


71,216              61,678              67,372              (3,844)               


Investments 35,493              46,475              47,704              12,211              
Endowment Assets 15,271              15,271              15,271              -                        
Capital Assets 268,618            269,767            254,423            (14,195)             


TOTAL ASSETS 390,598$          393,191$          384,770$          (5,828)$             


LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities


Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities 23,593$             26,285$             26,285$             (2,692)$             
Accrued Salaries & Employee Deductions 


Payable 7,704                 10,049               10,049               (2,345)               


Deferred Revenue 21,635               21,635               21,635               -                        
Current Portion of Long Term Debt 1,862                 1,862                 1,862                 -                        


54,794              59,831              59,831              (5,037)               


Long Term Debt 79,100              75,702              69,713              9,387                
Vacation, Sick Leave & Post-Employment Benefits 16,144              16,004              14,647              1,497                
Deferred Capital Contributions 156,652            160,345            153,666            2,986                
Interest Rate Swaps 9,369                9,369                9,369                -                        


Net Assets
Unrestricted 1,000                 1,000                 1,000                 -                        


Investment in Capital Assets 31,541               31,859               29,183               (2,358)               
Vacation, Sick Leave & Post-Employment Benefits (16,144)             (16,004)             (14,647)             1,497                 


Internally Restricted 52,240               49,183               56,106               3,866                 


Interest Rate Swaps (9,369)               (9,369)               (9,369)               -                        


Endowment Fund 15,271               15,271               15,271               -                        


74,539              71,940              77,544              3,005                


TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS 390,598$          393,191$          384,770$          5,828$              


Q3 Report 11-12 - BOG Balance Sheet 3







2011/2012 3rd Quarter Financial Report
REVENUE SCHEDULE
(all figures in $ 000's)


Approved 
Annual Budget


Q2 Year-End 
Projection


Q3 Year-End 
Projection


Q3 vs. 
Approved 


Variance F/(U)


Grants
Post Secondary Activity 87,212$             88,162$             88,505$             1,293$               


Capital & Equipment 8,585                 16,179               18,828               10,243               


Apprentice 4,910                 5,207                 5,204                 294                    


Flow-Through Student Aid 1,812                 1,812                 1,812                 -                         


TOTAL GRANTS 102,519             111,360             114,349             11,830               


Tuition Fees
Full-Time Post Secondary 49,973               48,505               48,646               (1,327)                


Full-Time Non-Funded 1,785                 1,723                 1,723                 (62)                     


Part-Time 12,082               11,485               11,308               (774)                   


Adult Training 2,003                 1,811                 1,781                 (222)                   


Student IT & Mobile Computing Fees 3,233                 3,237                 3,409                 176                    


TOTAL TUITION FEES 69,076               66,761               66,867               (2,209)                


Contract Educational Services
Provincially Funded Programs 8,279                 8,223                 8,435                 156                    


Corporate & Other Programs 18,005               17,964               17,669               (336)                   
Grants, Fees and Other Income Associated with 


Contract Activity
4,526                 4,616                 4,628                 102                    


TOTAL CONTRACT EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 30,810               30,803               30,732               (78)                     


Other


Ontario Financing Authority Loan Proceeds 


(Student Commons & Pembroke Campus)
33,319               30,269               24,265               (9,054)                


Students' Association Contribution 21,844               20,909               15,333               (6,511)                
Capital Campaign 3,200                 3,400                 3,257                 57                      
Early Learning Centre 955                    913                    913                    (42)                     
Student Ancillary Fees 4,016                 3,918                 4,027                 11                      
Student Services Grant 100                    100                    100                    -                         
Investment Income 1,387                 2,887                 2,575                 1,188                 
Miscellaneous 6,679                 6,547                 7,007                 328                    


TOTAL OTHER 71,500               68,943               57,477               (14,023)              


COLLEGE ANCILLARY SERVICES SALES 40,245               39,710               39,362               (883)                   


INTERNATIONAL EDUCATION CENTRE 12,641               12,641               12,283               (358)                   


TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 326,791$           330,218$           321,070$           (5,721)$              


Q3 Report 11-12 - BOG Revenue Schedule 4







2011/2012 3rd Quarter Financial Report


REVENUE SCHEDULE


Variance Analysis (all figures in $ 000's)


Description Variance F/(U)


Post Secondary Activity Grants 1,293$               Enrolment Bridging Grant and increase in Apprentices with Disabilities grant announced after 


the budget was approved. Offset by lower than expected KPI Performance grant.


Capital & Equipment Grants 10,243$             See Funding for Strategic Priorities Schedule.


Apprentice 294$                  Additional funding from MTCU.


Full-Time Post Secondary Tuition Fees (1,327)$             Lower than expected enrolment in various programs across the college, including Design 


Studies, Construction Project Management and Global Studies. Offset by higher than 


expected enrolment in Distance Education programs and E-Business Supply.


Part-Time Tuition Fees (774)$                Lower than expected enrolment in several programs including Business and Community 


Studies.


Corporate & Other Programs (336)$                Activity not expected to meet targeted growth this year.


Ontario Financing Authority Loan Proceeds (9,054)$             See Funding for Strategic Priorities Schedule.


Students' Association Contribution (6,511)$             See Funding for Strategic Priorities Schedule.


Investment Income 1,188$               Higher cash balance than anticipated as well as higher yields on longer term investments.


Miscellaneous Income 328$                  Higher host fees for distance education due to higher than expected enrolment.


College Ancillary Services Sales (883)$                Lower bookstore revenue due to reduced traffic as a result of construction and labour 


disruption; summer hotel revenue did not meet expectations; and lower parking revenue due 


to deferral of the construction of an additional parking lots as a result of City storm water 


International Education Centre (358)$                Lower than expected enrolment and contract activity.


Total Explained Variances (5,539)$             


Other Minor Variances (182)$                


Total Variance (5,721)$             


Comments


Q3 Report 11-12 - BOG Revenue Variances 5







2011/2012 3rd Quarter Financial Report
EXPENDITURES SCHEDULE
(all figures in $ 000's)


Approved 
Annual Budget


Q2 Year-End 
Projection


Q3 Year-End 
Projection


Q3 vs. 
Approved 


Variance F/(U)


SALARIES & BENEFITS 131,096             127,712             127,477             3,619                 


Other Operating Costs
Mandated Student Aid 5,309                 1 4,959                 4,747                 562                   


Contingencies 4,536                 4,072                 3,871                 665                   


Debt Servicing 968                   968                   968                   -                        


Contract Services 10,068               2 11,383               11,436               (1,368)               


Instructional Supplies & Equipment 3,285                 2 3,276                 3,244                 41                     


Promotion 2,273                 2,266                 2,339                 (66)                    


Software 2,398                 2,472                 2,488                 (90)                    


Building Maintenance & Utilities 5,753                 2 5,751                 5,898                 (145)                  


Flow-Through Student Aid 1,800                 1,800                 1,800                 -                        


Other 18,356               1, 2 18,532               18,595               (239)                  


TOTAL OTHER OPERATING 54,746               55,479               55,386               (640)                  


FUNDING FOR STRATEGIC INVESTMENT PRIORITIES 74,721               78,205               66,908               7,813                 


CONTRACT ACTIVITY 24,211               24,381               24,212               (1)                      


COLLEGE ANCILLARY SERVICES 35,937               35,707               35,446               491                   


INTERNATIONAL EDUCATION CENTRE 5,080                 4,967                 4,788                 292                   


TOTAL EXPENDITURES 325,791$           326,451$           314,217$           11,574$             


1 Approved Budget has been restated to correct the classification of expenditures included under Mandated Student Aid.
2 Approved Budget has been restated due to reclassifcation of expenditures.


Q3 Report 11-12 - BOG Expenditure Schedule 6







2011/2012 3rd Quarter Financial Report
EXPENDITURES SCHEDULE


Variance Analysis (all figures in $ 000's)


Description Variance F/(U) Comments


Salaries & Benefits 3,619$               Savings due to vacancies, sick leave, reduced/modified workload, internal 


assignments and labour disruption.


Mandated Student Aid 562$                  Required amount lower than initial estimate.


Contingencies  $                 665 Reserves updated based on latest information.


Contract Services (1,368)$             Services required to backfill short term vacancies in Information Technology 


Services and Marketing Services; increase in Distance Education activity.


Funding for Strategic Investment Priorities 7,813$               See Funding for Strategic Priorities Schedule.


College Ancillary Services 491$                  Lower cost of goods sold due to lower sales.


International Education Centre 292$                  Less contract activity than expected.


Total Explained Variances 12,074$             


Other Minor Variances (500)$                


Total Variance 11,574$             


Q3 Report 11-12 - BOG Expenditure Variances 7







2011/2012 3rd Quarter Financial Report
FUNDING FOR STRATEGIC INVESTMENT PRIORITIES SCHEDULE
(all figures in $ 000's)


Approved 
Annual Budget


Q2 Year-End 
Projection


Q3 Year-End 
Projection


Q3 vs. 
Approved 


Variance F/(U)


Revenue
Facilities Renewal 585$                  585$                  601$                  16$                   


College Equipment Renewal Fund -                        559                   559                   559                   


Knowledge Infrastructure Program 8,000                 12,592               12,592               4,592                 


Apprenticeship Enhancement Fund -                        943                   943                   943                   


Ontario Financing Authority (OFA) Loan Proceeds 


(Student Commons & Pembroke Campus)
33,319               30,269               24,265               


(9,054)               


Students' Association Contribution 21,844               20,909               15,333               (6,511)               


Capital Campaign 3,200                 3,400                 3,257                 57                     


Enabling Accessibility Fund -                        1,500                 2,000                 2,000                 


Digital College Grant -                        -                        2,133                 2,133                 


TOTAL REVENUE 66,948               70,757               61,683               (5,265)               


Expenditures
Campus Expansion


Algonquin Centre for Construction Excellence 10,068               13,935               13,792               (3,724)               
Perth Campus 1,932                 2,857                 2,857                 (925)                  
Pembroke Campus 19,482               19,482               18,213               1,269                 
Student Commons 34,881               32,395               22,585               12,296               


Total Campus Expansion 66,363               68,669               57,447               8,916                 


Other


College Technologies 2,000                 1,894                 1,835                 165                   


College Space & Infrastructure 2,585                 2,978                 2,961                 (376)                  


New Program Initiatives 250                   200                   250                   -                        


Academic & Other Equipment 1,513                 1,754                 1,754                 (241)                  


Business Plan Priorities 2,010                 1,767                 1,718                 292                   


Apprenticeship Enhancement Fund -                        943                   943                   (943)                  


Total Other 8,358                 9,536                 9,461                 (1,103)               


TOTAL EXPENDITURES 74,721               78,205               66,908               7,813                 


NET CONTRIBUTION (7,773)$             (7,448)$             (5,225)$             2,548$               


Q3 Report 11-12 - BOG Strategic Priorities Schedule 8







2011/2012 3rd Quarter Financial Report
FUNDING FOR STRATEGIC INVESTMENT PRIORITIES SCHEDULE


Variance Analysis (all figures in $000's)


Description
Variance 


F/(U)
Comments


College Equipment Renewal Fund  $                 559 College Equipment Renewal Fund (CERF) grant announced after the budget was approved.


Knowledge Infrastructure Program  $              4,592 Revised cash flow projection for ACCE and Perth construction projects.  Both projects are still on 


budget.


Apprenticeship Enhancement Fund  $                 943 Apprenticeship Enhancement Fund grant announced after the budget was approved.


Ontario Financing Authority (OFA) Loan Proceeds  $             (9,054) Revised cash flow projections for Student Commons and Pembroke campus construction projects.


Students' Association Contribution  $             (6,511) Revised cash flow projection for Student Commons construction project.  


Enabling Accessibility Fund  $              2,000 Enabling Accessibility funding awarded for Pembroke campus construction project.


Digital College  $              2,133 Digital college project approved after budget was approved.  


Algonquin Centre for Construction Excellence  $             (3,724) Revised cash flow projection (offset by grant).


Perth Campus  $                (925) Revised cash flow projection (offset by grant).


Pembroke Campus  $              1,269 Revised cash flow projection. 


Student Commons  $            12,296 Revised cash flow projection. 


College Space & Infrastructure  $                (376) Higher than anticipated costs for some projects (offset by savings on projects paid for out of internally 


restricted funds).


Business Plan Priorities  $                 292 Revisions to various projects.


Apprenticeship Enhancement Fund  $                (943) Apprenticeship Enhancement Fund expenditures (offset by matching grant).


Total Explained Variances 2,551$               


Other Minor Variances (3)$                    


Total Variance 2,548$               


Q3 Report 11-12 - BOG Strategic Priorites Variances 9







2011/2012 3rd Quarter Financial Report
INTERNALLY RESTRICTED FUNDS SCHEDULE
(all figures in $ 000's)


Approved 
Annual Budget


Approved 


June 2011 1
Total Approved 


Expenditures
Q2 Year-End 


Projection
Q3 Year-End 


Projection


Q3 vs. Total 
Approved 
Variance 


F/(U) 2


Appropriations 193$                  258$                  451$                  445$                  357$                  94$             


Specific Reserves
Delivering High Quality Facilities 1,395                 2,127                 3,522                 3,304                 2,981                 541             


Employee Development -                        413                   413                   413                   268                   145             


Financial Sustainability 108                   383                   491                   536                   487                   4                 


Innovation 418                   886                   1,304                 1,146                 946                   358             


Mobile College/Online College 221                   1,304                 1,525                 1,241                 1,195                 330             


Recruitment/Enrolment 174                   1,441                 1,615                 1,481                 1,164                 451             


Retention/Graduation Rate 393                   789                   1,182                 1,130                 821                   361             


TOTAL SPECIFIC RESERVES 2,709                 7,343                 10,052               9,251                 7,862                 2,190          


Capital Projects 6,300                 -                        6,300                 5,953                 4,097                 2,203          


College Ancillary Services Reserves -                        200                   200                   200                   159                   41               


TOTAL INTERNALLY RESTRICTED FUNDS 9,202$               7,801$               17,003$             15,849$             12,475$             4,528$        


1


2
Projected expenses will be less than approved for various reasons including deferral of the construction of an additional parking lot.


At the time the budget was approved, final results for 2010/11 were not yet known; year-end net assets balances (i.e. internally restricted funds) were estimated to 


determine capacity to fund appropriations and specific reserves.  Once the final net assets balances were determined, additional internally restricted funds totalling 


$7.801 million were approved.  The final net assets balances were reported in the 2010/11 Financial Statements and approved by the Board of Governors on June 


13, 2011.


Q3 Report 11-12 - BOG App & Res - Alt Vers 10







2011/2012 3rd Quarter Financial Report
SUMMARY OF FUNDED POSITIONS


Total Staffed Total Vacant 


Admin Support Academic Total
Positions 
Opened


Positions 
Closed


Positions 
Transferred Admin Support Academic Total


at 
Dec. 31/11


at 
Dec. 31/11


President & Board of Governors 
President's Office 3            -              -                  3                 3               -                  -                  3                 3                    -                      


Total 3            -              -                  3                 -                   -                   -                     3               -                  -                  3                 3                    -                      


Human Resources
Human Resources 21          -              -                  21               4                    22             2                 1                 25               24                  1                     


Total 21          -              -                  21               -                   -                   4                    22             2                 1                 25               24                  1                     


Administration
Vice-President's Office 2            -              -                  2                 2               -                  -                  2                 2                    -                      


College Ancillary Services 17          68           -                  85               (1)                 17             67               -                  84               81                  3                     


Finance & Administrative Services 7            28           -                  35               7               28               -                  35               35                  -                      


Physical Resources 14          39           -                  53               14             39               -                  53               46                  7                     


Total 40          135         -                  175             -                   (1)                 -                     40             134             -                  174             164                10                   


Student Services
Vice-President's Office 2            -              -                  2                 2               -                  -                  2                 2                    -                      


Student Support Services 7            22           16               45               7               22               16               45               42                  3                     


Registrar 10          58           -                  68               10             58               -                  68               67                  1                     


Total 19          80           16               115             -                   -                   -                     19             80               16               115             111                4                     


Business Development
Vice-President's Office 3            1             -                  4                 3               1                 -                  4                 4                    -                      


Applied Research & Development 2            -              -                  2                 2               -                  -                  2                 1                    1                     


Algonquin College Foundation 3            2             -                  5                 3               2                 -                  5                 5                    -                      


Institutional Research & Planning 2            -              -                  2                 2               -                  -                  2                 1                    1                     


International & Corporate Business 


Development 9            11           21               41               9               11               21               41               36                  5                     


Workforce & Personal Development 2            3             -                  5                 2               3                 -                  5                 4                    1                     


Information Technology Services 1 7            66           -                  73               7               66               -                  73               67                  6                     


Total 28          83           21               132             -                   -                   -                     28             83               21               132             118                14                   


Academic Services
Vice-President's Office 11          2             20               33               7                  (16)                 12             3                 9                 24               14                  10                   


Faculty of Arts, Media & Design 6            28           100             134             8                    7               28               107             142             138                4                     


School of Business 5            9             77               91               4                    5               9                 81               95               92                  3                     


School of Hospitality & Tourism 3            9             34               46               1                    3               9                 35               47               44                  3                     


Faculty of Technology & Trades 8            37           146             191             (2)                 2                    8               35               148             191             188                3                     


Faculty of Health, Public Safety & Community 


Studies 8            32           120             160             1                  (1)                 2                    8               31               123             162             157                5                     


Centre for Continuing and Online Learning 2 5            17           -                  22               (1)                   4               17               -                  21               20                  1                     


Algonquin College in the Ottawa Valley 5            27           25               57               1                  6               27               25               58               57                  1                     


Learning & Teaching Services 6            24           6                 36               (1)                 (4)                   5               22               4                 31               29                  2                     


Total 57          185         528             770             9                  (4)                 (4)                   58             181             532             771             739                32                   


Advancement


Executive Director's Office 3            6             -                  9                 (1)                 (3)                   3               2                 -                  5                 5                    -                      


Recruitment 3 -             -              -                  (1)                 9                    2               6                 -                  8                 6                    2                     


Marketing Services 3 4            12           -                  16               (6)                   2               8                 -                  10               8                    2                     


Total 7            18           -                  25               -                   (2)                 -                     7               16               -                  23               19                  4                     


COLLEGE TOTAL 175        501         565             1,241          9                  (7)                 -                     177          496             570             1,243          1,178             65                   


1 Information Technology Services was included under President & Board of Governors when the budget was approved.
2 School of Part-time Studies has been renamed Centre for Continuing and Online Learning  since budget was approved.
3 Advancement has undergone a realignment since budget was approved - the new structure is shown here.


The complement report represents the total number of positions for each of the College’s major areas.  


Not all positions are 100% funded in the budget as some positions are vacant at the start of the year and other positions have a start date projected for other than April 1st.


Full-Time Approved Budgeted Positions Position Changes Full-Time Funded Positions at Q2


Q3 Report 11-12 - BOG Funded Positions 11








  Board of Governors #470 
February 13, 2012 


 
 


Motion to amend the CAAT Supplementary Pension Plan  
 


RESOLUTION 


MOVED & SECONDED        &        


“Be  it  resolved  that  the Board of Governors approve  the  three CAAT Supplementary Pension 
Plan  amendments,  as  recommended  by  the  RCA  Sponsors’  Committee:  (i)  Move  to 
supermajority for approvals, (ii) Explicit limited rights of non‐college employers and (iii) Adding 
clarity to the approval of changes to the Terms of Reference.” 


 


 


_Algonquin College__________________ 


College 


 


 


__________________________________ 


Michael Dunlop, 
Chair – Board of Governors 


 


 


_February 13, 2012___________________ 


Approval Date 


1 
 







 
 


Ratification of the amendments to the 
CAAT Supplementary Plan or RCA 
What is the RCA? 
The CAAT Supplementary Plan (also known as a Retirement Compensation Arrangement or RCA) was 
established by the Ontario Council of Regents in 1994 to provide pensions to CAAT Pension Plan 
members on that portion of earned annual income above the maximum allowed under the Income Tax 
Act, currently $149,869. The benefits are identical to all other CAAT Pension Plan members. The RCA is 
the funding vehicle to pay promised benefits and such arrangements are common among public sector 
and broader public sector pension plans. 
 


Authority delegated to the RCA Sponsors’ Committee 
Under the terms of a subsequent agreement, the Council of Regents delegated responsibility for 
governance and the administration of the CAAT Supplementary Plan (RCA) to the RCA Sponsors’ 
Committee. The delegation agreement was approved July 1, 1998. 
 
The boards for each of Ontario’s colleges, passed resolutions that: 


• accepted the role as sponsor of the RCA, including funding obligations 
• ratified the governance structure giving the RCA Sponsors’ Committee responsibility for its 


governance and administration 
• authorized the RCA Sponsors’ Committee to act on behalf of the colleges on all funding, 


governance and administration issues concerning the RCA. 
 
As part of the delegation agreement, the RCA Sponsors’ Committee adopted the, Terms of Reference 
which sets out the composition and the powers, duties and obligations of the committee. The RCA 
Sponsors’ Committee is made up of the four employer representatives on the CAAT Sponsors’ 
Committee and an OPSEU representative sitting on either the CAAT Board of Trustees or the CAAT 
Sponsors’ Committee. 
 


The need to amend the CAAT Supplementary Plan (RCA)  
Since the approval of the delegation agreement 13 years ago, an amendment to the CAAT 
Supplementary Plan (RCA) text requiring employer consent has not been needed. The RCA Sponsors’ 
Committee has exercised its responsibilities and obligations for the administration and operation of the 
RCA in accordance with the Terms of Reference. 
 
The RCA Sponsors’ Committee reviewed the CAAT Supplementary Plan (RCA) text with an eye to refining 
the governance standards and to reflect recent amendments to the CAAT Pension Plan. The CAAT 
Supplementary Plan (RCA) text was amended to clearly define the roles and responsibilities of the RCA 
Sponsors’ Committee; recognize the current provisions of the CAAT Pension Plan and the RCA; and to 
provide explicit documentation for the operation of the RCA and the determination of benefits. 







 
 


Recommended change #1: Supermajority to approve basic changes 
Rule  Amendment 
Unanimous Approval  Supermajority 
Changes beyond those delegated to the RCA 
Sponsors’ Committee require written agreement 
of all the colleges. 


Changes beyond those delegated to the RCA 
Sponsors’ Committee require written agreement 
of a two‐thirds majority, or 16 of 24 colleges. 


 
Changes include creating benefits that are different than the CAAT registered pension plan; a change to 
the member contribution rate that makes it different from the CAAT registered pension plan; and 
employer contributions in excess of full funding of the CAAT Supplementary Plan (RCA).   
 
Why the change? Current veto power creates unacceptable risk to the CAAT RCA. 


• Any change could be vetoed by a single college 
• The amendment ensures changes to the plan must still have strong support of the colleges. 


Recommended change #2: Explicit limits for noncollege employers 
Rule  Amendment 
Implicit limited rights of non‐college employers  Explicit limited rights of non‐college employers 
The intent of the participation agreements is that 
non‐college employers have limited rights 


Explicitly states that only college employers can 
amend the CAAT RCA 


 
Why the change? It ensures clarity of who has rights under the RCA. 


Recommended change #3: Extraordinary changes to Terms of Reference 
Rule  Amendment 
Every change  Extraordinary changes 
Any change to the Terms of Reference requires 
prior written approval from a majority of colleges 
 
 
 
Indemnification of RCA Sponsors’ Committee is 
unclear 


Only changes to the Terms of Reference 
inconsistent with the rights and powers delegated 
to the RCA Sponsors’ Committee would require 
prior written approval from a majority of colleges 
 
Indemnification of RCA Sponsors’ Committee 
clarified 


 
Why the change? The current rule is inconsistent with the authority delegated to the RCA Sponsors’ 
Committee by the Council of Regents in 1998. The amended Terms of Reference will also include an 
explicit indemnification clause. 


Questions? 
If you have any questions or would like to request the key RCA documents (CAAT Supplementary Plan 
(RCA) text, Terms of Reference and the CAAT Funding Policy), please contact Derek Dobson, CEO & Plan 
Manager, CAAT Pension Plan, 416‐673‐9001, or ddobson@caatpension.on.ca.  



mailto:ddobson@caatpension.on.ca





Amendments to Supplementary Plan (RCA)


Derek W. Dobson, CEO & Plan Manager







2


Agenda


1 Wh t i th S l t Pl (RCA) d1. What is the Supplementary Plan (RCA) and 
why it needs to be amended?


2. The specific amendments
i M t S j it li. Move to Supermajority approvals
ii. Explicit limited rights of non-college employers
iii Adding clarity to the approval of changes to theiii. Adding clarity to the approval of changes to the 


Terms of Reference







3


The CAAT Registered Pension Plan (RPP)


D fi d b fitDefined benefit 
Jointly sponsored, bicameral governance
32,000 active and retired members
$5.5 billion in net assets
12.6% net investment return for 2010
30th largest pension fund in Canada
Surplus of $88 million at January 1, 2011







4


29 employers including Ontario’s 24 colleges







5


History 


Ontario Council of 
Regents creates the 


Authority 
delegated to the 
RCA Sponsors’CAAT Supplementary 


Plan (RCA)
RCA Sponsors  


Committee


199819941967 2012
CAAT Pension 
Plan is created







RCA t i j ti ith CAAT Pl


6


RCA operates in conjunction with CAAT Plan


RCABenefits beyond 
ITA limit


CAAT Pension 
Plan (RPP)


Benefits to ITA 
earnings limit 


($149,869)







7


Retirement Compensation Arrangement (RCA)


Th RCA id l t iThe RCA provides supplementary pension 
benefits to members whose earnings result in 
a pension that exceeds the maximuma pension that exceeds the maximum 
pension permitted under the Income Tax Act 
for RPP
The RCA is administered as part of the 
overall Plan, but its assets are held in a 
segregated account.







8


Funding vehicle because of Income Tax Act


P ti ll f d d bli ti th t tPartially pre-funded obligations that can not 
be funded in the RPP because of tax rules
M b ith l i f > $149 869Members with annual income of > $149,869


Wh t f ll f d?Why not fully fund?
Because 50% refundable tax is inefficient
Results in more volatile contributions







9


Valuation update (January 1, 2011)


$ illi


100


120
$ million


Going 
concern 
(


60


80
(Fully 
funded)


0


20


40


Minimum 
funding 
target0


Assets Wind up
target







10


CAAT Pension Plan (RPP) compared to RCA


CAAT Pension Plan RCA
Member contribution 
rate (2012)*


12.9% 12.9% above ITA limit
rate (2012)*
Benefits Defined Benefit Defined Benefit
Assets $5,500 million $30 million
Members (active/retired) 34,000 175
Approval process Sponsors’ Committee Colleges via governors
Deficit sharing 50/50 Employere c t s a g 50/50 p oye


* Above the YMPE







11


Roles and responsibilities


Colleges delegate authorityColleges delegate authority


RCA Sponsors’ CommitteeRCA Sponsors  Committee 
acts on behalf of members 
and employers


CAAT Pension Plan 
administers the RCA







12


The RCA Sponsors’ Committee


Member Profile
Barbara Cameron, CMA Vice-President, Finance and Administration, 


at Fleming Collegeat Fleming College
Stephen Campbell, CFA Director, Financial Services for the Canadian 


Medical Protective Association
Alec Ip Vice Chair of the Board of Trustees andAlec Ip Vice Chair of the Board of Trustees and 


President for OPSEU Local 124
Peggy McCallum Partner and head of the pension and 


benefits practice at the law firm of Faskenp
Martineau DuMoulin


Jeff Zabudski President and CEO Sheridan Institute of 
Technology and Advanced Learning







13


Delegation agreement mitigates financial risk


Li biliti ll ti l h ld b ll lLiabilities are collectively held by all employers
Good governance structure 
Reported as an expenditure on financials
Expert administration by CAAT Pension Plan







14


First amendment to RCA – Supermajority


Current Rule Amendment
Unanimous Approval SupermajorityUnanimous Approval


Changes beyond those delegated to 
the RCA Sponsors’ Committee 


i itt t f ll th


Supermajority


Changes beyond those delegated to 
the RCA Sponsors’ Committee 


i itt t f trequire written agreement of all the 
colleges.


require written agreement of a two-
thirds majority, or 16 of 24 colleges.







15


First amendment to RCA – Supermajority 


Why the change?


Veto power creates unacceptable risk to RCA


Any change could be vetoed by a single college – gridlock


Amendment ensures changes must still have strong support of colleges







16


Second amendment to RCA – non-college rights


Current Rule Amendment
Implicit limited rights of non E plicit limited rights of nonImplicit limited rights of non-
college employers unclear


The intent of participation 


Explicit limited rights of non-
college employers


Explicitly states that only colleges p p
agreements is that non-college
employers have limited rights


Other governance documents


p y y g
can amend the RCA


Other governance documents 
should mirror this intent







17


Second amendment to RCA – non-college rights


Why the change?


Ensures clarity and consistency in governance documents







18


Third amendment to RCA – Terms of Reference


Current Rule Amendment
Every change Extraordinary changesEvery change


Any change to the Terms of 
Reference requires approval by a 


j it f ll


Extraordinary changes


Only changes inconsistent with the 
rights and powers of the RCA 
S ’ C itt imajority of colleges 


Indemnification of Committee 


Sponsors’ Committee requires 
approval by the majority of colleges


Clarify intent to indemnify 
members unclear.


y y
Committee members.







19


Third amendment to RCA – Terms of Reference


Why the change?


Consistent with delegated authority to RCA Sponsors’ Committee 
and with the amending provisions of the CAAT Pension Plan


Unnecessary cost and time to have operational changes go to theUnnecessary cost and time to have operational changes go to the 
governors for approval 
Indemnification provision will be clearer and form part of the Terms of 
Reference







20


Conclusion


The amendments lea e delegated a thoritThe amendments leave delegated authority 
unchanged


The amendments will make the governance 
and administration of RCA better moreand administration of RCA better, more 
efficient, and clear







21


One motion before each Board of Governors


“Be it resol ed that the Board of Go ernors“Be it resolved that the Board of Governors 
approve the three CAAT Supplementary 
Pension Plan amendments as recommendedPension Plan amendments, as recommended 
by the RCA Sponsors’ Committee: (i) Move to 
supermajority for approvals, (ii) Explicit limited p j y pp ( ) p
rights of non-college employers and (iii) Adding 
clarity to the approval of changes to the Terms 


f R f ”of Reference.”







22


Next steps


Th B d f G f h ll tThe Board of Governors for each college to 
pass motion


Support available on requestSupport available on request


CAAT to provide annual updates on the RCACAAT to provide annual updates on the RCA





		caat1

		09.1  CAAT Motion

		Motion to amend the CAAT Supplementary Pension Plan 



		09.2  RCARatificationSummaryFinal

		What is the RCA?

		Authority delegated to the RCA Sponsors’ Committee

		The need to amend the CAAT Supplementary Plan (RCA) 

		Recommended change #1: Supermajority to approve basic changes

		Recommended change #2: Explicit limits for non-college employers





		caat2






 
 
 


PRESENTATION TO THE 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 


Advisory Committee Annual Reports 
Academic Year 2010‐2011 


 
PURPOSE 
   
To  provide  the  Board  of  Governors  with  an  overview  of  the  activities  undertaken  by  the  Advisory 
Committees during the academic year 2010‐2011. This is an information item. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In its binding policy directive Framework for Programs of Instructions, the Ministry of Training, Colleges 
and  Universities  requires  that  the  Board  of  Governors  establishes  an  advisory  committee  for  each 
program or cluster of programs made up of a cross section of persons external to the college who have a 
diversity  of  experience  and  expertise  related  to  the  particular  occupational  area  addressed  by  the 
program.  Membership  is  drawn  from  industry,  business,  and  professional  organizations.  Recent 
graduates  are  also  invited  to  sit  on  advisory  committees.  College  professors  and  academic 
administrators  serve as  resource persons  to advisory  committees. Each advisory  committee has  from 
eight to fifteen members.   
  
The mandate of an advisory committee is to assist the College in establishing and maintaining programs 
relevant to the needs of employers and in response to student demand. Each year, advisory committees 
are asked to submit an annual report detailing the main activities they have undertaken during the year. 
If  required,  advisory  committees  can  address  recommendations  to  the  Board  on  issues  related  to 
program delivery.  
 
In  the  fall  2000,  the  Board  of  Governors  directed  the  Administration  to  take  immediate  action  on 
operational  issues raised by the Advisory Committees and refer to the Board of Governors, only those 
issues requiring board action. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS  
 
Over the past two years, the Strategic Programs and Services Planning project has allowed the College to 
review its academic operations, including the work of the advisory committees.   
 
During the 2010‐2011 academic year, the College had 96 advisory committees; 8 of which did not meet 
during the year.  Four of the advisory committees that did not meet were for programs that were being 
phased out as per recommendations in the Strategic Program and Services Planning project report. They 
were: 
 


o Horticulture Technician 
o Professional Illustration 
o Florist 
o E‐Publishing 


 


Advisory Committee Annual Report 2010‐2011– Board of Governors    Page 1/2 







Advisory Committee Annual Report 2010‐2011– Board of Governors    Page 2/2 


The following advisory committees are refreshing membership to help renew the program: 
 


o Interactive Multimedia Developer  
o Print Media  
o Theatre Arts 
o Bartending 


     
During  the past year, advisory  committees participated  in  the 33  scheduled Program Quality Reviews 
(approximately  1/5  of  programs  participate  in  this  comprehensive  review  every  year).  Advisory 
committee members provided  input on their perception of the program, the program’s ability to meet 
employers’ demands, as well as trends affecting the future of the program.   Note:   26 programs were 
reviewed  in 2009‐2010. Advisory committees reviewed and approved recommendations for curriculum 
changes, as appropriate, which have been  implemented by  the Schools as part of Annual Curriculum 
Review. 
 
A number of Advisory Committees were  involved  in organizing Career Forums, and job placement fairs 
for the graduating class. These are well attended by both employers and graduates and contribute to the 
successful placement rates of  the programs. Advisory committee members are  instrumental  in  finding 
co‐op placements and clinical placements for our students.   
 
 
OBSERVED TRENDS AND CONSIDERATIONS AT EACH COMMITTEE   
 
The review of the Advisory Committees annual reports reveals that the following trends and topics were 
of most interest to the members: 


• Strategic Programs and Services Project Report recommendations  
• Curriculum recommendations for program relevancy 
• Program marketing  
• The merits of field placement versus co‐operative experience relative to the program 
• KPI results and program implications  
• Mobile learning 
• Articulation agreements 


 
 
OTHER CONSIDERATIONS   
 
All  program  specific  recommendations  addressed  to  the  Board  of  Governors  by  the  Advisory 
Committees have been actioned by program staff. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION    
 
That the Board of Governors receive the Advisory Committee report for 2010‐2011. 
 
 
Submitted by Kent MacDonald, Vice President, Academic 








 
Board of Governors #470 


February 13, 2012 
 
RESOLUTION 
 
MOVED & SECONDED          &        
 
That  the  Board  of  Governors  approve  the  President  Selection  Criteria  and  Position 
Description as discussed via teleconference on Monday, January 9th.   








     
ACADEMIC 


MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
February 13, 2012 


Page 1 


 
1.   RECRUITMENT: The College will increase the number of applications for programs outside of the 
top sixty high demand programs by 10%. 
As part of Algonquin College’s sponsorship of Skills Canada‐Ontario, the Algonquin Centre for 
Construction Excellence will host a Skills Canada‐Ontario Day Camp this summer geared towards grades 
5 and 6 students.  
 
The Academic Area continues to participate in recruitment activities, as well as respond to requests for 
information and for hosting visits from groups such as the Upper Canada District School Board and the 
Ottawa‐Carleton District School Board. Visits to external sites are accommodated to the extent possible. 
 
2.  ENROLMENT:  The College will find unique ways to create more access to the top sixty high 
demand programs while also increasing enrolment in the middle ninety programs by 10%. 
All winter, 2012, program intakes were successfully launched with the exception of Green Business 
Management. 
 
396 Dual Credit applications have been processed for 732 winter 2012 seats.  This does not include 
applications to be received for February start courses or Perth activity.  
 
Two new Training Delivery Agent statuses have been granted to Algonquin College:  Assisted Cook 
Apprenticeship and Institutional Cook. 
 
The International Education Centre has identified a number of graduate certificate programs that could 
be marketed abroad.  The Academic Area will be working with the Centre to develop these programs for 
CVS approval and Ministry‐funding approval over the course of the next few years. 
 
3.  RETENTION:   The College will increase its semester retention rate from 81.9% to 83%. 
Enrolment and Program meetings were held at the end of the fall 2011 semester for all programs. 
Where appropriate FSP (Failure with supplemental privileges) grades were assigned, with students 
having to complete the supplemental exams in time to continue courses in the winter term. Students 
who were unsuccessful in their program in the fall term were transferred, when appropriate, to 
alternate programs such as General Arts and Science. 
 
The Dual Credit retention rate for fall 2011 increased by 4% over fall 2010 numbers. 
 
A variety of retention initiatives have been implemented by the Schools to help raise the retention rate 
from fall to winter. 
 
Analysis continues on high enrolment/high failure rate courses to identify initiatives to address the 
issues specific to those courses. 
  
4.  GRADUATION RATE: The College will increase its graduation rate from 62.9% to 64% by 2011. 
N/A 
 







     
ACADEMIC 


MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
February 13, 2012 


Page 2 


 
5.  MOBILE LEARNING:  The College will continue to embrace the trend to mobile access by 
ensuring that all licensed software can be downloaded to mobile devices and that new apps are created 
to facilitate mobile access, learning and service acquisition. 
The Mobile Learning Working Group continues to meet to address questions and issues for the 
implementation of mobile learning into additional academic programs in 2012‐2013. 
 
6.  ONLINE COLLEGE: The College will expand its online learning offerings through hybrid and full 
online modules by reviewing and adapting 20% of all courses and programs in each of the next five 
years. 
The online Virtual Assistant program launched successfully in January, 2012. 
 
Developers have been hired to commence development of courses for online delivery for the first year 
of the Child and Youth Worker program, scheduled to launch in September 2012, as well as for Level 3 of 
the full‐time online Early Childhood Education program. 
 
The part‐time Forensic Accounting and Fraud Investigation graduate certificate program will now also be 
delivered as full‐time online program effective spring, 2012. 
 
Online curriculum has been obtained to assist in the development of the hybrid delivery of the 12 weeks 
of didactic learning in the Advanced Care Paramedic program. 
 
The Faculty Support Central Blackboard in the School of Media and Design has been launched. This 
initiative was spearheaded by Cath Kenney as a one‐stop shop where faculty can learn tips and tricks for 
hybrid development, as well as teaching methodology. 
 
7.  EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT:  The College will, through professional development, training, 
mentorship, and coaching, prepare its employees for new ways of delivering education and training and 
for leadership opportunities in the College. 
The Construction Trades and Building Systems Department held a full‐day professional development 
session on December 21, 2011, with a theme of “use of technology in the classroom.” Topics ranged 
from how to do a lecture capture, use of goose neck cameras for close‐up work, use of light pens, how 
to assess students with disabilities, results of departmental math assessments, use of Blackboard and a 
presentation on piloting the use of iPADs in the Heating, Refrigeration and Air Conditioning program. 
This is the first of a series. 
 
During the first week of January, a learning strategist from the Woodroffe Campus delivered two 
workshops to faculty at the Perth Campus, with one being specifically delivered for trades programs. 
 
Staff in the School of Media and Design participated in a workshop on understanding the 
communication activities of Generation Y/Z. 
 
Staff in the Centre for Continuing and Online Learning participated in a Diversity Training session in 
December.  







     
ACADEMIC 


MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
February 13, 2012 


Page 3 


 
 
On December 22, 2011, and January 5, 2012, the School of Hospitality and Tourism held general school 
meetings.  Several objectives were met and new School operating models were discussed including 
Communications Model, Working Model, Knowledge Base Model, Program Mix and new Organizational 
Chart. Six functional teams have now been established to move the School forward. These teams are 
individually focused on Program Costing and Financial Sustainability; Retention and Graduation Rates; 
Mobile Learning; International Projects; Program Mix and Growth; and Marketing and Branding.    
 
8.  FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY:  The College will target opportunities for increasing revenue, 
decreasing expenses and improving overall operating margins through new business opportunities, 
process automation, program and service efficiencies and productivity improvements. 
Algonquin College in the Ottawa Valley has secured two new Skills Link Youth Employment contracts 
through Service e‐Canada; one each in Pembroke and Renfrew. The Pembroke project stretches ten 
months and has total revenue of approximately $266K, while the Renfrew contract is four months with 
total revenue of $95K. The School has also confirmed a contract with Service Canada to support the 
Options 2012 Skills Trades Fair, valued at $26K. 
 
Employment Services at the Perth Campus has secured an additional $55K through a special funding 
envelope which enables an expansion to include a classroom/workshop area with 16 workstations to 
better serve clients and referral agencies. 
 
The Centre for Continuing and Online Learning (CCOL) reviewed all of its continuing education programs 
for long‐term sustainability. As a result, four Graduate Certificate Health program have been suspended 
due to historically low enrolment. Two of the four programs are currently offered online. 
 
9.  Student Activity 
The School of Business Awards and Recognition Evening was held on November 22, 2011. It was very 
well attended with over 60 donors who showed their support and generosity to honor outstanding 
students and their achievements. The event gave the students a chance to network with representatives 
and executives in their field of study.   
A Mechanical Engineering Technician & Technologist Student Chapter (METT Chapter) has now been 
formed. It targets a number of programs including Heating, Refrigeration and Air Conditioning (HRAC), 
Civil Engineering, Architectural Technician and Mechanical Engineering.  They are meeting regularly in 
the ACCE and have begun to plan events. The faculty advisor is Ken Hill, Professor, HRAC. 
Two students in the General Arts and Science – Aviation Management program, Kaitlyn Mullins and 
Alborz Mirenayat, received a bursary of $500 each from the Cornwall Flying Club. The presentation was 
made on December 8, 2011, and was attended by Bruce Dwyer, Coordinator.  
 
On November 22, 2011 the Culinary students under the supervision of Chef Robert Gelinas prepared 
hors d’oeuvres for the opening of the Algonquin Centre for Construction Excellence.     
 
On November 26, 2011, the Culinary and Restaurant Team Competition, called Battle of the Blades was 
held at the College.  This competition gave the opportunity for students to participate in a culinary team 







     
ACADEMIC 


MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
February 13, 2012 


Page 4 


 
competition that encourages them to develop their communication, culinary and serving skills.  There 
were 14 culinary students and 7 hotel students competing. They had to prepare, cook and serve their 
creations to guests.  The main sponsor of this event from Canadian Cutlery, Bill Trout mentioned, “how 
the event differed from all the others he has been involved in. “ 
 
On December 1, 2011, Culinary students, under the guidance of Chef Patrick Kostiw, participated in the 
sold‐out Savour Ottawa Dinner. 
 
On November   11‐13, 2011, twenty‐six students from the Event Management program volunteered at 
the Food and Wine Festival Show at the Ottawa Convention Centre.   
 
Martin Taller, Professor, Bachelor of Hospitality and Tourism Management and his third year students 
have been awarded an Ottawa Young Entrepreneurship grant to develop their “Virtual Wedding Planner 
App”. 
 
Broadcasting ‐ Television students assisted at the public event honoring Jean Piggott, by filming tributes 
from friends and family. The final video will be presented to the family at a later date. 
 
The Loggersports Team hosted a Lumberjack Fundraising Dinner on November 21, 2011 at Algonquin 
College in the Ottawa Valley. The event was a huge success with approximately $1K raised. 
 
The fifth annual Multicultural Day was held on November 28, 2011, at Algonquin College in the Ottawa 
Valley. Approximately 100 students participated in various activities and sampled ethnic food.  
 
10.  Faculty Activity 
Algonquin Centre for Construction Excellence (ACCE) Administrators and Staff organized an event to 
recognize ACCE staff for their dedication and commitment to achieving their part in the completion of 
the ACCE building and related academic work to revise, renew, and integrate their programming into the 
new facility. This Awards Gala evening took place on December 21, 2011, in the atrium of ACCE and was 
extremely well received by staff. 
 
Mark Anderson, from Money Sense Magazine, interviewed Chef Ramsay, which was featured in the 
online November issue at www.moneysense.ca/2011/11/14/make‐your‐inner‐chef‐happy.  The article, 
called “Make your Inner Chef Happy”, included helpful hints and expertise from Chef Ramsay who 
commented on conventional thinking, cool fridges, cutting edge, pan handling and kitchen “must – 
haves”.    
 
The second annual Les Emmerson Fundraiser event for General Arts and Science bursaries is scheduled 
for March 2, 2012. 
 
Led by TV Broadcasting Coordinator, Jeremy Atherton, the School of Media and Design reached out to 
the Ottawa Regional Youth Choir to perform a Flash Choir at the Algonquin Centre for Construction 
Excellence building over exam week. The purpose was to showcase the talents of students and at the 



http://www.moneysense.ca/2011/11/14/make-your-inner-chef-happy





     
ACADEMIC 


MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
February 13, 2012 


Page 5 


 
same time communicate that Algonquin was great place to go to study. The final product was a clip on 
YouTube featuring Darth Vader, who conducted the choir. The flash mob video received a lot of 
attention within the Algonquin community and is currently at approximately half a million views. The 
video was featured on the CBC National, G4TV, Memebase, CBS in New York, Wired Magazine, countless 
bloggers, Satchi and Satchi posted it on their Global Facebook page. The video was even posted and 
tweeted by Lucas Films. Jeremy did a live interview on CBC morning radio and received inquiries from as 
far away as the Philippines.  During the peak, it received more than 100,000 views a day.  It was listed as 
the 6th most viewed video on YouTube for December (Comedy).   Needless to say ‐ it surpassed our 
expectations. A great example of how small idea can go a long way in promoting our school. 
 
11. COMMUNITY ACTIVITY AND DONATIONS 
Algonquin College in the Ottawa Valley is the platinum sponsor of the Upper Ottawa Valley Chamber of 
Commerce Business Achievement Awards Gala being held on January 28, 2012, in Pembroke.  Dean 
Karen Davies is the co‐host for the event. 
 
The Pembroke Legion donated $10K to the College to establish a new endowed bursary in recognition of 
the College’s building of a new waterfront campus. 
 
The Construction Trades and Building Systems Department was approached by Steve Barkhouse from 
Amsted Construction and Tony Bond from The Boys and Girls Club of Ottawa to partner with them to 
build three bunkhouses as part of the Building Construction Technician (BCT) program in 2012‐13. An 
Inter‐Professional Education opportunity will be created and will involve other programs including 
cabinet making, electrical and architecture.  
 
On January 13, 2012, Nissan Canada donated a 2007 Altima Hybrid car with a book value of $18K to the 
Mechanical and Transportation Technology Department.  Arrangements are also underway for the 
donation of a bus by OC Transpo. 
 
The Vice President, Academic provided the opening address to Catholic School Board Principals. The 
topic was focused on changes and challenges of education in 2012 and Algonquin College’s response to 
this rapidly changing environment.   
 
Dentists from the Ottawa Valley have provided $500 to each Dental Assisting student successfully 
entering Level 02.  We currently have five students from the Valley. 
 
The Police Foundations program donated thirteen Christmas Gift Baskets to the Youville Centre in 
support of young unwed mothers and their children. 
On November 15, 2011, the Restaurant International hosted a “Master of Wine” event hosted by Tim 
Hanni and attended by trade/industry professionals.  Tim is a professionally‐trained chef, who is one of 
the first two resident Americans to successfully complete the examination and earn the title Master of 
Wine which is regarded as the highest accolade in the international wine industry. 
Chef Michael Sobcov, Chef Andrew Skorzewski, and two Culinary students participated in the College 
Days MPP Reception on November 29, 2012 hosted by College’s Ontario at Queen’s Park. This provided 







     
ACADEMIC 


MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
February 13, 2012 


Page 6 


 
our students an opportunity to showcase Algonquin’s student expertise in hospitality, culinary arts and 
entertainment, and to gain valuable experience.   
 







    ADMINISTRATION     
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 


February 13, 2012 
Page 1 


1.   RECRUITMENT: The College will  increase the number of applications  for programs outside of the 
top sixty high demand programs by 10%. 


N/A 
 
2.  ENROLMENT:    The  College will  find  unique ways  to  create more  access  to  the  top  sixty  high 


demand programs while also increasing enrolment in the middle ninety programs by 10%. 
N/A 
 
3.  RETENTION:   The College will increase its semester retention rate from 81.9% to 83%. 
N/A 
 
4.  GRADUATION RATE: The College will increase its graduation rate from 62.9% to 64% by 2011. 
N/A 
 
5.  MOBILE LEARNING:  The College will continue to embrace the trend to mobile access by ensuring 


that all licensed software can be downloaded to mobile devices and that new apps are created to 
facilitate mobile access, learning and service acquisition. 


N/A 
 
6.  ONLINE  COLLEGE:  The  College will  expand  its  online  learning  offerings  through  hybrid  and  full 


online modules by  reviewing and adapting 20% of all courses and programs  in each of  the next 
five years. 


N/A 
 
7.  EMPLOYEE  DEVELOPMENT:    The  College  will,  through  professional  development,  training, 


mentorship,  and  coaching,  prepare  its  employees  for  new  ways  of  delivering  education  and 
training and for leadership opportunities in the College. 


N/A 
 
8.  FINANCIAL  SUSTAINABILITY:    The  College  will  target  opportunities  for  increasing  revenue, 


decreasing  expenses  and  improving  overall  operating  margins  through  new  business 
opportunities,  process  automation,  program  and  service  efficiencies  and  productivity 
improvements. 


Finance and Administrative Services:   
 
Finance  staff  continues  to work with  all  areas  of  the  College  to  update  and  refine  assumptions  and 
estimates in the preparation of the 2012/13 annual budget.   Requests for Proposals for Audit Services 
have  closed  and  the  selection  committee meetings  have  been  scheduled.    Deloitte was  awarded  a 
contract  to  work  with  the  College  on  an  Enterprise  Risk  Management  Framework.    Finance  is 
coordinating the Q3 2011/12 Financial Projection exercise, preparing for the February 13, 2012, Board of 
Governors  meeting.    The  College’s  auditors  are  currently  performing  interim  audit  procedures  in 
preparation  for  year  end.    Significant progress  is being made  towards  addressing  the Broader Public 
Sector Directives recommendations to ensure compliance with the BPS Directives. 
 







    ADMINISTRATION     
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 


February 13, 2012 
Page 2 


Physical Resources: 
Algonquin Centre for Construction Excellence (ACCE): 
• Commissioning is ongoing.  Expected completion date is August, 2012. 
• Deficiencies and minor outstanding  issues are being addressed.   Expected completion date  is April, 


2012. 
 
Pedestrian Bridge (City of Ottawa Funded Project): 
• Complete. 


 
Perth Campus Renewal and Expansion: 
• Deficiencies are being addressed.  Expected completion date for landscaping is June, 2012. 
• Commissioning is ongoing.  Expected completion date is August, 2012. 


 
Pembroke Campus Relocation: 
The project is on budget and scheduled for completion and occupancy for the start of the academic year 
in September, 2012. 
• Integrated  Design  Process  meetings  with  stakeholders  and  Campus  Development  Consultants 


continue. 
• The 90% Design has been completed and the Compliance Team’s comments are being addressed by 


the Design/Build Team. 
• Design Project Review Team (DPRT) meetings continue on a bi‐weekly basis. 
• The erection of steel structure and installation of steel deck is complete. 
• Masonry block work is approximately 25% complete. 
• Exterior metal studs and insulation boarding to the exterior walls is underway. 
• Underground mechanical and electrical services are 70% complete. 
 
Student Commons 
The project is on budget and scheduled for completion and occupancy for the start of the academic year 
in September, 2012. 
• 100% Design review drawings are expected by January 27, 2012. 
• Integrated  Design  Process  meetings  with  stakeholders  and  Campus  Development  Consultants 


continue. 
• Slab on grade has been poured 70%. 
• Concrete shear walls and beams and slab  in the auditorium continue with a scheduled completion 


by mid February, 2012. 
• Erection of structural steel in the Commons third floor to roof is complete. 
• Drywall steel studs have commenced. 
• Mechanical and electrical work has commenced. 
• Book Store swing space fit‐up is under way and on schedule. 
 
Technical Services and Energy Conservation: 
The planned upgrade  to Algonquin’s  central plant  through  the addition of an 800  ton  chiller and  the 
phase out of a 400 ton chiller and all remaining R‐11 refrigeration remains on budget and on track for 
completion before the beginning of the next cooling season in early May, 2012.  The TRANE chiller is due 







    ADMINISTRATION     
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 


February 13, 2012 
Page 3 


for delivery at  the end of March  and  the  installation was  tendered, posted on MERX,  and  closed on 
January 30, 2012. 


 
Energy: 
The Request for Proposals for an ESCO Contract, phase 2, was posted on MERX and closed on December 
22, 2011, with 12  interested companies responding. The process calls for selecting the top 4 proposals 
from  the RFQ’s  submitted, proceeding  to  the Request  for Proposal  stage and  selecting  the  successful 
contractor to deliver an Energy Savings contract that is acceptable to the College. 
 
College Ancillary Services: 
Q3 results for Ancillary Services reflect the impact of lower than forecasted revenues for Retail Services 
due to the closing of the D entrance as a result of the construction of the Student Common and summer 
business shortfalls in the Residence. 
 
Retail Services will be moving into a temporary location, the old Woodworking Shop, during the week of 
February  13th.    Conference  Services will  be moving  into  A  building  and  the  Coin  Ops  office will  be 
relocated to the Parking offices in the basement of C building. 
 
Food Services has been reviewing menus and will introduce an offering of Chinese food in the Taste of 
Asia kiosk  in the Marketplace Food Court.   Following SPSP recommendations, a third party will now be 
responsible  for snack vending machines  for Woodroffe Avenue.    Implementation will occur during the 
end of January and early February and will increase the number of machines to 28 where the One Card 
can be used.  
 







    ADVANCEMENT 
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 


February 13, 2012 
Page 1 


1.   RECRUITMENT: The College will increase the number of applications for programs outside of the 
top sixty high demand programs by 10%. 


Recruitment Activities 
The Recruitment team is concentrating on grade 12 Career Class presentations.  To date: 
 


• 37 School Visits/Campaigns – September 2011 (45 in 2010) 
• 193 School Visits/Campaigns – October 2011 (85 in 2010) 
• 126 School Visits/Campaigns – November 2011 (105 in 2010) 
• 75 School Visits/Campaigns – December 2011 (11 in 2010) 
• 72 School Visits/Campaigns – January 2012 (14 in 2010) 


 
A total of 10,754 leads have been collected by the end of January.  35% of the leads collected came from 
high school visits and 32% from the web. 


 
College Information Fair  
Recruiters attended a ‘mini dialogue’ to update Guidance Counsellors in the York Region. 
 
Recruitment Marketing Initiatives 
The Web Services team has received 302 work tickets (requests for assistance) through Zendesk (a web 
change order request system which tracks the quantity of web changes and automates client 
communication with receipt and completion responses) since October 24th.  Of these tickets, 249 have 
been successfully resolved and the remaining 53 are either pending a response from the client or are of 
a recurring nature.   
 
The first two weeks of the January online recruitment campaign generated over 2,100 direct visits to the 
Future Students website. 
 
Google Search Engine Marketing generated 11,290 visits to the Future Students website and program 
pages in December. 
 
Web banner campaigns have been implemented and have successfully leveraged web traffic through 
the homepage to the Future Students website.  For example, more than 10,000 visits to the Future 
Student site were generated via the rotation of five banners. 
 
Posting the Television Broadcasting Students’ Darth Vader You Tube video to the website generated 
almost 2,100 visits to the Future Students website over a three‐week period. 
 
Pay Per Click campaigns generated 15,784 visits to the Future Students website in October and 
November.  
 
Media Relations 
Major media stories include:  
 
November 3 – Metro Ottawa published a story about Algonquin College radio station (CKDJ) trying to 
convince Stephen Harper to grow a mustache for Movember.  







    ADVANCEMENT 
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 


February 13, 2012 
Page 2 


December 8 – Ottawa South EMC reported that Paulette Young, part‐time Early Childhood Education 
teacher at Algonquin, received the Prime Minister’s Award for Excellence in Early Childhood Education. 
 
December 15 – CBS, Your Ottawa Region and The Huffington Post all featured stories on the Darth Vader 
Christmas flash mob at the College. The video went viral and was also featured on many blogs.    
 
December 21 – CBC and Your Ottawa Region featured stories about the outrage of the faculty union 
leader after he learned details of president Robert Gillett’s retirement package.  
 
January 5 – Openfile featured a story about David Hall, former Algonquin College communications 
officer, and his predictions on social media trends.   
 
January 12 – The Arnprior EMC featured a story about Algonquin’s Hire Me! Reach Higher! project 
receiving funding from the federal Skills Link program. It focused on how the project will help 30 youth 
develop skills and experience to find a job or the confidence to return to school.  
 
January 19 – The Nepean/Barrhaven EMC featured a story on Bob Rae’s visit to the Algonquin trades 
building. It featured Rae’s remarks about needing a national strategy for post‐secondary education and 
the funds raised to construct the building.  
 
January 23 – The Ottawa Citizen published stories from Jan. 20 – 23 about labour relations between 
Algonquin College and the faculty union. The stories focused on the high number of outstanding 
grievances filed by the faculty union and how they are a symptom of a larger problem. 
 
January 26 – The Nepean/Barrhaven EMC reported on Hydro One’s $750,000 grant to Algonquin College 
electrical engineering technology students. Algonquin was also mentioned in stories about the other 
grant recipients in The Barrie Examiner. 
 
2.  ENROLMENT:  The College will find unique ways to create more access to the top sixty high 


demand programs while also increasing enrolment in the middle ninety programs by 10%. 
N/A 
 
3.  RETENTION:   The College will increase its semester retention rate from 81.9% to 83%. 
Program Marketing Services 
The  following  sites  have  been  updated  to  the  new  WordPress  environment  and  are  now  live:  
Ombudsman, Health Services, Student Affairs and Orientation, Student Success Centre, and Employment 
Services. 


 
4.  GRADUATION RATE: The College will increase its graduation rate from 62.9% to 64% by 2011. 
N/A 
 
 
 
 







    ADVANCEMENT 
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 


February 13, 2012 
Page 3 


5.  MOBILE LEARNING:  The College will continue to embrace the trend to mobile access by ensuring 
that all licensed software can be downloaded to mobile devices and that new apps are created to 
facilitate mobile access, learning and service acquisition. 


N/A 
 
6.  ONLINE COLLEGE: The College will expand its online learning offerings through hybrid and full 


online modules by reviewing and adapting 20% of all courses and programs in each of the next 
five years. 


N/A  
 


7.  EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT:  The College will, through professional development, training, 
mentorship, and coaching, prepare its employees for new ways of delivering education and 
training and for leadership opportunities in the College. 


Coffee Break with the President Series 
The  President’s  Christmas  Coffee  Break  was  held  on  December  16th  in  the  Students’  Association 
Observatory  Lounge  at  the Woodroffe  Campus  where  approximately  400  faculty  and  staff  chatted 
informally with President Gillett.    
 
Breakfast with the President Series 
New Staff Breakfast 
On Tuesday, January 17th, 12 new employees were invited to join President Gillett for a breakfast in the 
Staff  Dining  Lounge  to  discuss  their  experiences  as  the  newest  staff  members  and  to  share  any 
suggestions they may have to enhance the programs and services provided to the College community.  
 
Marketing 
Marketing  and  Web  Services  provided  the  support  to  develop  and  launch  the  President’s  Search 
Website. 
 
8.  FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY:  The College will target opportunities for increasing revenue, 


decreasing expenses and improving overall operating margins through new business 
opportunities, process automation, program and service efficiencies and productivity 
improvements. 


Visit by Bob Rae, Interim Leader, Liberal Party of Canada, and MP Toronto Centre 
On Monday, January 16th, the College was the first stop on Mr. Rae’s two‐week cross Canada college 
tour called “Skills Training and Jobs Tour”.  The purpose of his tour was to show Canadians what is 
happening across Canada in terms of post‐secondary skills training available to prepare students for the 
workforce.   Mr. Rae’s team requested to focus on construction training at Algonquin.  The visit included 
a one‐hour tour of the Algonquin Centre for Construction, followed by a round‐table discussion with the 
President’s Executive Committee and Students’ Association President , Jacob Sancartier. 
 







    BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT   
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 


February 13, 2012 
Page 1 


1.   RECRUITMENT: The College will  increase the number of applications  for programs outside of the 
top sixty high demand programs by 10%. 


International Education Centre 
Meetings have been completed with all Deans, Chairs and Program Coordinators to prepare a multi‐year 
international enrolment plan.   Discussions are on‐going  regarding  the development of new Graduate 
Certificate Programs to attract more international students. 
 
One hundred  and  ten new  international  students  attended  the winter, 2012 Orientation.  In  January, 
recruitment managers were  in Nigeria,  Kenya,  Zambia,  Zimbabwe  and Mexico  attending  educational 
fairs and conducting agent visits. 
 
Information, Institutional Research and Technology Services (IIRTS)  
The Algonquin College profile and  related metrics continue  to be updated  for use and posted on  the 
Polytechnics  Canada  website  to  assist  in  recruitment  and  advocacy  efforts  for  its  nine  member 
institutions across Canada. 
 
A preliminary data mapping  review has been carried out on  the measurements and metrics available 
from  the  cloud hosted  (Amazon EC2  services) Advancement web  sites  (via Google Analytics) and  the 
CRM  installations  in Salesforce.com.   Completing  this mapping with Advancement will provide  crucial 
input to the Strategic Enrollment Management working group. 
 
Workforce and Personal Development (WPD) 
Workforce and Personal Development recruited 22 new Second Career students in January. 
2.  ENROLMENT:    The  College will  find  unique ways  to  create more  access  to  the  top  sixty  high 


demand programs while also increasing enrolment in the middle ninety programs by 10%. 
Algonquin College Corporate Training (ACCT)  
At the end of January, 2757 employees from 213 public and private sector organizations have enrolled 
and re‐skilled in ACCT public and customized workshops in 2011‐12.  
 
Information, Institutional Research and Technology Services 
The Qlikview pilot has concluded and  the  findings of  the exercise are being  compiled  (the evaluation 
reviewed enrolment reporting and dashboard creation).  A similar pilot will be conducted in February to 
evaluate the same objectives with the comparable Cognos product. 
 
Workforce and Personal Development (WPD) 
The Personal Development Institute increased offerings to the luxury learner by offering an additional 8 
courses in January 2012. 
 
International Education Centre 
Enrollment projections for  international students entering programs of study for 2012‐2013 have been 
completed. As of January 24th, there are 202  level 1 International students and 754 returning students 
for a total of 956 international post‐secondary students enrolled in winter, 2012. 
 
 







    BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT   
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 


February 13, 2012 
Page 2 


The January 2012 enrolment for the Language Institute is as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


LANGUAGE INSTITUTE ENROLMENT 


Program  Enrolment Number 
ESL International  256 
ESL Canadian  135 
CE Winter (excluding ENL)  838 
Teaching English As A 
Second Language 


33 


3.  RETENTION:   The College will increase its semester retention rate from 81.9% to 83%. 
Language Institute 
The Student Success Specialist served approximately 210 students in January, 2012 who were at risk or 
requested a transfer from one section to another.    
 
Algonquin College Foundation 
A  bursary  endowment  was  established  in  memory  of  Colin  J.  Everett,  a  former  Rideau  Campus 
Biochemistry  program  faculty member,  for  students  enrolled  in  either  the  Biotechnology  or Medical 
Radiation programs. 
 
The following funds have been established: the Ivan Carr endowment fund for Children’s Aid Foundation 
youth studying at Algonquin College; the Frank and Maria Hatz endowment fund for students enrolled in 
the Personal Support Worker and/or the Practical Nursing program; and the Katherine J. King Lorraine 
Chapter I.O.D.E. endowment to support students enrolled in any program at the Woodroffe Campus. 
 
Three new  annual  awards were  established:  Faucet  Fix Award  for  students  enrolled  in  the Plumbing 
program,  the  Bill  and  June  Joe  Scholarship  for  students  enrolled  in  the  Bachelor  of  Hospitality 
Management program and the Renfrew Dental Association Scholarship fund for students enrolled in the 
Dental Assisting Program. 
 
Information, Institutional Research and Technology Services (IIRTS) 
Efforts continue to re‐engineer the technologies most required by students resulting in higher levels of 
availability  for  wireless  networking  and  Blackboard  as  well  as  increased  bandwidth  to  access  the 
internet.   The available hours  for  the Blackboard  system have been extended by  reducing  the nightly 
maintenance window.  Effort and investment is ongoing to eliminate the need for a nightly maintenance 
window through implementation of online backups. 
 
IIRTS  is working with University of Ottawa and the Enterprise Policy Research  Initiative to undertake a 
longitudinal  study  to  determine  the  persistence  and  outcomes  of  students  transferring  between 
Algonquin and the University of Ottawa. The long term goal of this research is to identify at risk students 
to raise the retention of these identified students. 
 
Workforce and Personal Development (WPD) 
 The Second Career office met with 37 current students and 97 prospective students over the past two 







    BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT   
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 


February 13, 2012 
Page 3 


months. Currently, the Education to Employment program, supported by First Generation funding, has a 
waiting list of students wishing to access the program.  
 
Applied Research and Innovation 
In‐Class Projects (ICPs) are the focus for the winter semester.  To date, 10 projects have been registered 
through our dedicated portal for the January – April term, representing over 35 students.   
 
The  College  received  36  inquiries  from  potential  external  partners  between October  and  December 
2011.   Many  of  these  clients  submitted  First  Contact  Forms  providing  a  high  level  overview  of  their 
proposed project. 
4.  GRADUATION RATE: The College will increase its graduation rate from 62.9% to 64% by 2011. 
Information, Institutional Research and Technology Services 
Organization, communication and coordination activities are underway for the KPI Student Satisfaction 
Survey  that will  take place  from February 6‐17, 2012. 13,000 FTPS(full  time post  secondary)  students 
enrolled in 154 programs will be surveyed.  
5.  MOBILE LEARNING:  The College will continue to embrace the trend to mobile access by ensuring 


that all licensed software can be downloaded to mobile devices and that new apps are created to 
facilitate mobile access, learning and service acquisition. 


Information, Institutional Research and Technology Services 
Wireless  networking  and  Blackboard  enhancements  have  taken  place  to  improve  the  availability, 
reliability and resiliency of Blackboard and the wireless network to support mobile learners. 
6.  ONLINE  COLLEGE:  The  College will  expand  its  online  learning  offerings  through  hybrid  and  full 


online modules by  reviewing and adapting 20% of all courses and programs  in each of  the next 
five years. 


Algonquin College Corporate Training (ACCT)  
ACCT  developed  and  implemented  online  assessments  for  two  courses  in  the  Fundamentals  of 
Leadership  certificate  program,  Interpersonal  Communication  and  Leadership  Skills,  using  survey 
software  application  called  Timba.  This  online  assessment  is  integrated  with  ACCT’s  CRM  system 
(Salesforce)  and  automatically  quantifies  survey  results  for  more  rapid  and  responsive  course 
modifications and targeted sales follow‐up.  
 
Language Institute 
The hybrid components of the FSL Levels 1 to 6 that began in September have been fully redesigned to 
use Blackboard.  Work has begun on the development of the hybrid curriculum for FSL Level 7. 
 
Information, Institutional Research and Technology Services 
 A presentation entitled ‘From Data to Decision‐Making’ was given in January to Algonquin staff enrolled 
in the Advanced Leadership program. 
7.  EMPLOYEE  DEVELOPMENT:    The  College  will,  through  professional  development,  training, 


mentorship,  and  coaching,  prepare  its  employees  for  new  ways  of  delivering  education  and 
training and for leadership opportunities in the College. 


Algonquin College Corporate Training (ACCT)  
ACCT Learning Consultants  (5) and Managers  (2) completed  training  in LinkedIn,  including how  to use 
this social media tool to increase targeted business development opportunities and sales. 







    BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT   
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 


February 13, 2012 
Page 4 


 
Language Institute 
The Acting Chair of the Language Institute completed Leadership Level 1 training in January.  15 full‐time 
faculty  and  staff  participated  in  professional  development  courses  in  December,  2011  and  January, 
2012. 
 
Workforce and Personal Development (WPD) 
Administrative support staff attended training on online Ministry payment processes. 
 
Applied Research and Innovation 
The Director attended a CONII Professional Development event.   The Director, a Project Manager and 
the Project Officer attended Hydro One Applied Research Consortium meeting with three other colleges.  
A  Project Manager  started  the  Leadership  Level  1  training  program.    The  Administrative  Assistant 
attended the Service Excellence program. 
8.  FINANCIAL  SUSTAINABILITY:    The  College  will  target  opportunities  for  increasing  revenue, 


decreasing  expenses  and  improving  overall  operating  margins  through  new  business 
opportunities,  process  automation,  program  and  service  efficiencies  and  productivity 
improvements. 


Algonquin College Corporate Training (ACCT)  
At the end January, ACCT has secured $1,739,805 in revenue.  
 
International Education Centre 
An MOU has been completed with a college in Sarajevo (FMPHTM) to deliver Business Administration – 
Ontario College Advanced Diploma  (3 yrs) and Hospitality Management – Hotel & Restaurant‐ Ontario 
Diploma (2yrs).     Program delivery will commence in September, 2013. 
 
Language Institute 
The Language Institute has become an official IELTS (International English Language Testing System) Test 
Centre.   Training sessions for the administrator and examiners are scheduled to begin in March. 
 
The first CELPIP (Canadian English Language Proficiency Index Program) test session was completed on 
January 30, 2012.  
 
Algonquin College  Foundation 
The Constructing OUR  Future  (ACCE) Campaign,  to date, has  reached $7,590,501 exceeding  the $7M 
goal.  The Pembroke Campaign has reached $1,965,651 of the $2.5M goal and the Perth Campaign has 
reached $436,050 of the $1M goal.   
 
The Gifts‐in‐Kind total to date  is $66,653.21.   New partnerships are being developed that will translate 
into future donations.  
 
A  four‐year extension  to  the partnership with Hydro One has been approved.   Algonquin College will 
receive  $750K  for  a  capital  campaign  gift,  instructional  equipment,  bursaries,  scholarships,  applied 
research and diversity initiatives. 
 







    BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT   
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 


February 13, 2012 
Page 5 


Information, Institutional Research and Technology Services 
An enterprise SharePoint environment  is being  set up within  the College  to host automation projects 
that originally would have either been paper processes or built in the .NET environment.  Commissioning 
of  the  projects will  take  place  through  February  and March with  the  first  automation  and  analysis 
projects being deployed in March.   The SPSP analysis dashboard and data management system will be 
deployed to this infrastructure in April. 
 
IIRTS  provided  consultation  services,  vendor  location  and  recommendations  for  the  SPSP  SharePoint 
analysis dashboard and data management automation projects. 
 
Workforce and Personal Development (WPD) 
Workforce and Personal Development was the successful bidder on two contracts with the Ministry of 
Citizenship  and  Immigration. One  contract  is  for $1M  for  the Biotechnology  bridge program  and  the 
second contract of $300K is funding for an Internationally Educated Professionals Conference.  
Workforce and Personal Development  is partnering with the Building Greener Futures to offer a series 
of workshops to youth in the region. 
 
Work  is  nearing  completion  on  the  mapping  and  value‐streaming  of  operational  processes  in  the 
Experienced Worker Centre, WSIB and First Generation student support areas under WPD. 
 
Applied Research and Innovation  
The  College  was  successful  in  its  application  to  the  Ontario  Centres  of  Excellence  (OCE)  for  the 
Connections In‐Class Project grant and was awarded $57,150 for 22 projects. 
 
A  Letter of  Intent was  submitted  to  the NSERC College and Community  Innovation  (CCI)  ‐  Innovation 
Enhancement program for a proposed research program in health and wellness, with a focus on medical 
devices.  The College will find out in February if it is being invited to submit a full application for this $2.3 
million grant. 
 
An  application  has  been  submitted  to  the  new  NSERC  CCI  Industrial  Research  Chair  for  a  College 
program in the area of Digital Media.  If successful, the College would receive a 5‐year, $1 million grant 
that would fund the Chair’s salary, some research costs, student engagement and administration. 
 
Following Algonquin’s  successful deployment of  the  FedDev Applied Research and Commercialization 
(ARC)  Pilot  program  grant,  the  College  applied  to  the  FedDev  ARC  Extension  program  for  a  further 
$750,000 in funding for 2012‐2013. 
 
Two photonics projects were  successful  in  their bids  to  apply  for  funds  from  the NSERC CCI Applied 
Research and Development program – each project received $25 K. 
 







                                              
HUMAN RESOURCES 


MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
February 13, 2012 


Page 1 
1.   RECRUITMENT: The College will increase the number of applications for programs outside of the 


top sixty high demand programs by 10%. 
During  the months  of December  and  January  there were  forty‐three  competitions  posted.    The  two 
Recruitment Officers participated on numerous selection committees to provide guidance and HR advice 
on the competitions.   Twenty‐one competitions were successfully completed with new hires beginning 
in December and January.  
 
In comparing 2010 and 2011, the number of competitions posted in 2010 was 220 postings versus 298 in 
2011.   This  increase also  reflected  the need  to  find alternate  recruitment strategies  for difficult  to  fill 
positions. 
2.  ENROLMENT:  The College will find unique ways to create more access to the top sixty high 


demand programs while also increasing enrolment in the middle ninety programs by 10%. 
N/A 
3.  RETENTION:   The College will increase its semester retention rate from 81.9% to 83%. 
 
4.  GRADUATION RATE: The College will increase its graduation rate from 62.9% to 64% by 2011. 
N/A 
5.  MOBILE LEARNING:  The College will continue to embrace the trend to mobile access by ensuring 


that all licensed software can be downloaded to mobile devices and that new apps are created to 
facilitate mobile access, learning and service acquisition. 


N/A 
6.  ONLINE COLLEGE: The College will expand its online learning offerings through hybrid and full 


online modules by reviewing and adapting 20% of all courses and programs in each of the next 
five years. 


The AODA Advisor made a presentation  to  Learning & Teaching Services  staff on  the new  Integrated 
Accessibility Regulations and the impact that it will have on the College’s on line course offerings. 
 
The  implementation of Halogen’s e‐learning performance management module  is approximately 80% 
complete. A  catalogue of  leadership development  training programs has been  created  in  the  system 
which will form part of the development plans to be made available to College employees. The roll‐out 
of  this module will  allow  the College  to  track  the  learning  and development  activities  for  all College 
Administrators. 
 
The  prototype  of  the  Administrative  performance  evaluation  review  has  been  completed  within 
Halogen.  A demonstration was provided to the President’s Executive Committee at the end of January. 
7.  EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT:  The College will, through professional development, training, 


mentorship, and coaching, prepare its employees for new ways of delivering education and 
training and for leadership opportunities in the College. 


Succession Planning 
Work continues on the Succession Planning project.   A Talent Assessment Review is scheduled with the 
President’s Executive Committee in March.   
 
 







                                              
HUMAN RESOURCES 


MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
February 13, 2012 


Page 2 
Part‐time Orientation Sessions 
In December, 2011, and January, 2012, there were 21 part‐time faculty orientation sessions provided to 
624 attendees.   
 
Teaching Adult Lifelong Learners (TALL) Certificate Program  
These sessions are ongoing.  
 
Winter 2012 
Woodroffe 
TTA5501: Teaching Adults: Getting Started (Jan 17‐Feb 21) 
TTA 5502: Learning Theory and Managing the Learning Environment (Mar 6‐Apr 24) 
TTA 5506: Teaching Practicum (Mar 8‐Apr 26) 
TTA 5507: Strategies for Effective E‐Learning (Jan 18‐Mar 14) 
TTA 5509:  Presentation Skills (Jan 16‐Mar 26) 
 
Pembroke 
TTA 5501:  Teaching Adults: Getting Started (Jan 17‐Feb 21) 
 
Getting Connected Support Staff Conference  
12 Algonquin support staff employees and 40 colleagues  from other eastern  region colleges attended 
the Support Staff Eastern Region Conference held on November 23‐25, 2011.  
 
Faculty Cyber Connections 
In winter 2012, a module on effective design of multiple choice evaluations is being offered.  There are 
six Algonquin employees enrolled in this online professional development program.   
 
Advanced Leadership in Education Institute III‐Organizational Leadership Program 
Four sessions have been delivered with the most recent held on January 26/27, 2012. The same cohort 
of 12 participants is proceeding through. 
 
Leadership Development Program and Advanced Leadership Development Program 
The Leadership Development program was offered Oct 6/7, Nov 15/16, Dec 5/6, 2011.   The Advanced 
Leadership Development program was offered Oct 19/20, Nov 24/25, Dec 15/16, 2011.   24 participants 
successfully completed both programs.  
 
Service Excellence Program 
Twenty‐four employees successfully completed the fall offering of the Service Excellence program held 
on November 2nd, 14th, and 21st, 2011.  A winter session is scheduled for February 15th, 29th, March 7th, 
and 21st for 24 employees. 
 
Faculty Professional Development 
Professional  development  was  offered  and  delivered  to  Faculty  and  Academic  Coordinators  in 
December, 2011, and January, 2012, specifically targeting those teaching  in mobile programs  in winter 







                                              
HUMAN RESOURCES 


MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
February 13, 2012 


Page 3 
2012.   
 
WordPress PD Program 
On  January  20th,  the  Centre  for  Organizational  Learning  assisted  in  the  offering  of  a  professional 
development WordPress session. 
Other  
The Centre  for Organizational  Learning  (COL) provides  support  to  the CIS  team  in developing PD  for 
faculty in mobile programs. 
 
The  new  COL  website  is  available  on  the  www3platform.    The  new  format  can  be  used  as  a  PD 
repository.  The COL is in the process of developing an online Orientation Tutorial for new administrative 
staff. 
 
AODA 
The AODA Advisor attended the Web Accessibility Matters Conference on January 19, 2012. 
 
The AODA Advisor  is working with  the Accessibility  for Government on  Line  (A4GOL) organization  to 
bring their training courses on campus for Algonquin employees. 
 
Lunch and Learn series 
The Recruitment team offered a series of three workshops  in the month of January to College staff on 
interview skills.  These workshops have been well received and the feedback has been very positive. 
 
The Recruitment  team offered a workshop  to World Skills on ways  to  find employment at Algonquin 
College.   There were 22 participants  in  this workshop and  it was  focused on assisting newcomers  to 
Canada to find employment. 
  
8.  FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY:  The College will target opportunities for increasing revenue, 


decreasing expenses and improving overall operating margins through new business 
opportunities, process automation, program and service efficiencies and productivity 
improvements. 


Due to the 2011 Support Staff labour disruption, 85 pension buyback estimates were completed.  A total 
of 58 employees purchased their pension buyback.  Documentation was submitted to CAAT by the due 
date of December 23, 2011.   
 
Human Resources  is working with  ITS and Finance  to  incorporate  the new CAAT pension contribution 
rates and process, and is also working on the data collection tool for CAAT and the T4 preparations.  
 
In  January,  2012,  a  refund  of  $110,553  was  received  representing  the  2011  New  Experimental 
Experience Rating Plan (NEER) statement from the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board in comparison 
to the 2010 (NEER) Statement for which the College had a surcharge of $250,000.   
 
The  business  case was  completed  for  the  investment  in  a  new HRIS  (Human  Resources  Information 







                                              
HUMAN RESOURCES 


MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
February 13, 2012 


Page 4 
System) system to assist the College to leverage new technology to focus on people management.  This 
business case will be presented to the President’s Executive Committee in February.  In addition, Human 
Resources  has  commenced  the  value  streaming  of  the HRIS  access  process  to  streamline  the  entire 
process. 
  
A framework has been developed and  is being used to audit all accounts  in the system to ensure that 
unauthorized access to the system is reduced. To date all areas of the College have been provided with a 
report of all users  In their units and HR has been receiving responses which are being used to remove 
any unauthorized users. 
 
Twenty  seven  College  Administrators  received  training  and  coaching  on  the  Halogen  Talent 
Management system. 
 
Ten College employees received training on the HR/PAY /HRIS systems over the reporting period.  Two 
systems Administrators received training during this period. 
 







    STUDENT SERVICES 
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 


February 13, 2012 
Page 1 


1.   RECRUITMENT: The College will  increase the number of applications  for programs outside of the 
top sixty high demand programs by 10%. 


STUDENT SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
Centre For Students With Disabilities 
On November 23rd, Algonquin College’s Centre  for Students with Disabilities and Carleton University’s 
Paul Menton Centre ran the annual joint initiative, “Make the Cut”.   This is a transition program for high 
school students with learning disabilities or attention deficit hyperactivity disorder who are considering 
attending  college  or  university  in  the  fall.    The  program  provides  prospective  students  with  an 
orientation to the post‐secondary environment, with a focus on specific resources available for students 
with  disabilities.    Several  CSD  counsellors  and  the  learning  strategist  provided  joint workshops with 
Carleton staff for students and educators.  Over 250 people attended this transition day. 
 
Residence 
On December 5th, Residence  Life opened  the application process  for  the Resident Advisor and Senior 
Staff positions for Summer, 2012, and the 2012‐2013 academic year.  An online application is being used 
for the first time to reach out to a greater number of students.  
2.  ENROLMENT:    The  College will  find  unique ways  to  create more  access  to  the  top  sixty  high 


demand programs while also increasing enrolment in the middle ninety programs by 10%. 
REGISTRAR’S OFFICE 
 
Registration Statistics 
Full‐time Registration in Post‐Secondary/Post‐Diploma Programs 
For the 2012 Winter Term, as at January 20, 2012 (10th day of term and last day to withdraw and receive 
partial refund), net registered students numbered 14,754 or 99.4% of the projected enrolment.  
 
The breakdown of the 14,754 registered, as at January 20, is as follows: 


Faculty/School 
 


Approved Projected  Net Registered 


Entry 
Level 


Returning 
Entry 
Level 


Returning 


School of Business  420  2,852  353  2,864 


School of Hospitality & Tourism  327  971  293  958 


Faculty of Arts & Media Design  239  2,992  203  2,887 


Faculty of Technology and Trades  443  2,589  429  2,697 


Faculty  of  Health,  Public 
Safety/Community Studies 


263  3,002  303  2,969 







    STUDENT SERVICES 
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 


February 13, 2012 
Page 2 


International  &  Corporate  Business 
Development 


0  28  0  31 


Centre  for  Continuing  &  Online 
Learning 


85  69  100  114 


Algonquin College in the Ottawa Valley 0  557  20  533 


College Totals  1,777  13,060  1,701  13,053 


 
Continuing Education Registrations 
For the 2012 Winter Term as at January 20, 2012, registrations stood at 10,675 as compared to 10,470 
at the same time last year.  The term registrations to January 20, 2012 represent 89.4% of the projected 
enrolment.  Registration continues throughout the term. 
 
Admissions Statistics  
2012 Fall Term 
As  at  January 23, 2012, OCAS  statistics  for  the 2012  Fall Term  indicate  that,  for College Choices  (i.e. 
number of individual applicants to Algonquin College), our Non‐Secondary School applicants are down ‐
2.6% from last year, Secondary School applicants are down ‐0.7%, with an overall decrease in applicants 
of ‐1.5%.  Province wide, the variances are ‐5.9%, ‐5.4% and ‐5.6% respectively. 
 
As at January 23, 2012, for Program Choices (applicants are allowed a maximum of 5 program choices, 
with up to 3 at any one College), our Non‐Secondary School applicants are down ‐5.2% from  last year, 
Secondary School applicants are down ‐1.4%, and overall we show an decrease of ‐2.9%.  Province wide, 
the respective variances are ‐7.2%, ‐6.4% and ‐6.7% respectively. 
 
STUDENT SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
Centre for Students with Disabilities (CSD) 
In December, two meetings were held with the Coordinator, Dual Credit Programs, regarding Dual Credit 
students who are currently being supported by  the CSD, both at Algonquin and  those on‐site at  their 
high schools.  Issues regarding students on the Autism Spectrum Disorder were discussed, to ensure that 
teaching strategies and supports were consistent with what students will experience when coming  to 
College.  The CSD is also developing a handout for Dual Credit students. 
 
Test Centre 
November and December  serve as  the preparation period  for  the 2012‐2013 application cycle, which 
peaks from mid‐January to early‐March.  In preparation for this period, the Test Centre and Admissions 
Department  of  the  Registrar’s Office  participated  in  discussions with  other Ontario  Colleges  and  the 
Ontario College Application Service  for an automatic means  for  transferring  the  results of  the Health 
Occupations Aptitude Exam to all colleges.   
 
 







    STUDENT SERVICES 
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 


February 13, 2012 
Page 3 


3.  RETENTION:   The College will increase its semester retention rate from 81.9% to 83%. 
REGISTRAR’S OFFICE 
 
30% Off ‐ Ontario Tuition Grant (OTG) 
On  January 5, 2012,  the Ontario government  formally announced  the new 30% Off – Ontario Tuition 
Grant (OTG). Eligibility is as follows:  


 You are a full‐time student at a public college or university in Ontario; 
 You are in a first entry program; 
 You are a Canadian citizen, permanent resident, or a protected person;  
 You are an Ontario resident;  
 It has been less than four years since you left high school (or less than six years for students 


with a  permanent disability); and, 
 Your parent(s)’ gross income is $160,000 or less.  


 
The  benefit  delivered  by  this  new  program  is  $1,600  on  a  full  year  basis  for  university  and  college 
students in a degree program, and $730 for college students in a diploma or certificate program. For the 
January 2012 term, eligible students will receive half of the full year benefit, that is, either $800 or $365. 
Students will be eligible for the grant for up to two terms per academic year. 
 
Students eligible  for OSAP  are  automatically  assessed.    For eligible  students not on OSAP,  applicants 
must apply online at ontario.ca/30off. 
 
The program will be administered  in  two phases.   The Ministry has not yet provided details regarding 
operationalization of the 2012‐2013 process. 
 
STUDENT SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
Student Support Services  first ever event  for  International  students was held on November 23, 2011, 
with approximately 40 students in attendance.  There were three keynote speakers and seven panelists 
from  Y  Employment Access Centre  (transferrable  skills  and  job  search  strategies), Ottawa Centre  for 
Regional  Innovation  (OCRI)  (entrepreneurship),  Ottawa  Community  Immigrant  Services  Organization 
(OCISO)  (mentorship),  Vanier  Community  Service  Centre  (Experica  –  the  Practice  Firm),  Pinecrest‐
Queensway  Community  Health  Centre  (from  Volunteerism  to  Employment  Program),  and  Volunteer 
Ottawa (importance of volunteer work).  Emanuel Miulescu from the Vanier Community Service Centre 
spoke on  job development and  two past Algonquin graduates with  international status spoke of  their 
experiences transitioning into the Canadian workforce. 
 
The  panel  discussion  was  followed  by  a  mini  trade  show.    Exhibits  included  Student  Employment 
Services, Career Cruising, Alumni Association and each of the community organizations represented on 
the panel.  In addition to the guests from the community organizations, Della Siemens from the Alumni 
Association and Michelle Cameron  from the  International Education Centre came to network with the 
students.  Feedback from the attendees was excellent.   
 
 







    STUDENT SERVICES 
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 


February 13, 2012 
Page 4 


Health Services 
In December, the volume of Health Services visits was 2,500 compared to 2,462 the previous year.   Of 
these visits, 596 were  to  see a physician, which accounts  for 24% of  the  total visits. There were  five 
accident reports generated for on‐campus injuries/incidents. 
 
Student Employment Services 
The  Employment  Coach  for  the  Aboriginal  Student  Education  to  Employment  Program  presented 
“Personality  Dimensions”,  a  self‐assessment  tool,  to  36  students within  General  Arts  and  Science  – 
Aboriginal Studies.   The objective was  to ascertain  the effectiveness of  the  tool when combined with 
Aboriginal educational methodologies.  The tool focused on students identifying their strengths, areas of 
personal  development,  understanding  and  appreciating  the  differences  of  others,  and  building 
communication skills. 
 
Two additional Tim Hortons  franchises were engaged within  the program and accepted  students  into 
their  retail outlets.   A meeting was held at Algonquin College with  the Senior Vice President and  the 
National Human Resources Manager of Tim Hortons to present the program business plan.  Additionally, 
the Senior Vice President engaged Spirit Creative, an Aboriginal advertising and promotion company to 
work on the logo and mission statement for the program.  Related costs will be covered by Tim Hortons.  
Two meetings were held at the College with Spirit Creative to discuss the branding. 
 
The  annual Health  Care  Job  Fair was  held  on  January  12th, with  19  employers  exhibiting  at  the  fair.  
Employers  represented  included: Montfort Hospital, Ottawa Hospital,  the Canadian Forces,  the Royal 
Ottawa Hospital, and At Home Hospice.   Approximately 300  students  from  the health  care programs 
participated. 
 
Student Success Centre 
At  the  end  of  November,  Dan  Cuddy,  Student  Success  Specialist,  toured  several  post‐secondary 
campuses to research “One‐stop Service” models currently in use.  The campus visits included Durham, 
Seneca,  George  Brown,  Sheridan,  Brock  University  and  Fanshawe  College.    Durham  College  was 
identified as being  the most comparable  to Algonquin’s Student Commons and will be considered  for 
future follow‐up visits.    
 
Student Affairs and Orientation 
Blackboard training sessions were made available to students beginning a program in January, 2012.  A 
total of 43 students participated in the in‐class sessions and six students participated in the online live‐
streamed session.   
 
Winter Orientation was held on Thursday, January 5, 2012.   The College hosted between 450 and 500 
students  to  help  them  learn  about  the  important  basics  of  the  College  experience.      The  evening’s 
agenda  included a welcome  from President Gillett, a keynote address  from motivational  speaker Bob 
Harris, a welcome from the Students’ Association President and Board of Directors, information on how 
to get involved on campus, an information session for parents, and a one‐hour program orientation. 
 
Centre for Students with Disabilities 







    STUDENT SERVICES 
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 


February 13, 2012 
Page 5 


During Final Assessment Week,  the CSD Test Room  facilitator administered 780 exams with disability‐
related accommodations  in place.   This  includes students requiring assistive technology, alternative to 
print exams, a quiet writing environment, scribing, or other accommodation.  Of these exams, 150 were 
booked online. 
 
The Acting Manager and Test Room Facilitator made a presentation to the School of Business regarding 
the online booking system.   Beginning  January 9, all programs  in the School of Business will book and 
approve tests/exams online. 
 
Counselling Services 
On November 24th, the Parent Resource Network (PRN) hosted  its annual Christmas Party for students 
with  children.  Over 100 parents and  children attended  the  two‐hour event  in Salon A of  the Market 
Place Food Court.  Coffee and snacks were provided, but Santa was the hit of the party; taking time to 
pose for a picture and providing a present for each child.  Each child was also asked to choose a donated 
book to take home; a practice that aligns with the PRN’s focus on parent/child  literacy.  The Students’ 
Association  assisted  both  financially  and with  volunteers  for  set‐up/clean‐up  for  the  event.   Parents 
expressed their gratitude for the opportunity to share their College  life with their children, meet other 
parents on campus, and have the opportunity to help celebrate Christmas during the busy end‐of‐term 
period.  
 
Residence Life 
Residence Life provided a variety of opportunities for students during Final Assessment Week to provide 
a break from studies and stress relief.  Offerings included:  pictures and cookies with Santa; Karaoke and 
wing night; Drum Circle; giant board games (Chess, Snakes & Ladders, and Connect 4); Mexican Fiesta; 
hot chocolate and movie night with the SA Outreach; and Zumba.   
4.  GRADUATION RATE: The College will increase its graduation rate from 62.9% to 64% by 2011. 
REGISTRAR’S OFFICE 
 
Convocation, Spring 2012 
The 2012 Spring Convocation Ceremonies (Ottawa Schools) will be held at Scotiabank Place on Monday, 
June 18, Tuesday, June 19 and Wednesday, June 20, 2012.  
 
Convocation Ceremonies are scheduled for Saturday, June 9, 2012, in Pembroke and Thursday, June 14, 
2012, in Perth.   
 
STUDENT SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
Counselling Services 
Peer Tutoring scheduled 882 sessions  in December, which  represents a 17%  increase  in sessions over 
the same time last year.  Of particular note, two programs initiated retention pilot projects involving in‐
class peer tutoring strategies, including: 
 


• Computer Systems Technician program – five tutors were available 12 hours per week in the CST 
8182 laboratory (under the supervised guidance of the instructor) to assist students with course 







    STUDENT SERVICES 
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 


February 13, 2012 
Page 6 


material;     
• Police  Foundations program  –  four  tutors were placed  in  each  section of PFP1000  (Career & 


College Success) (eight sections in all), where they reviewed math concepts with small groups of 
students.   The goal was to assist students  in the mastering of math concepts required to meet 
learning objectives of program and post‐graduation examinations.   


5.  MOBILE LEARNING:  The College will continue to embrace the trend to mobile access by ensuring 
that all licensed software can be downloaded to mobile devices and that new apps are created to 
facilitate mobile access, learning and service acquisition. 


REGISTRAR’S OFFICE 
 
Algonquin College Student Information System (ACSIS)  
The  Registrar’s  Office  and  Information  Technology  Systems  are  collaboratively  testing  a  redesigned 
Algonquin College Student Information System (ACSIS) with improved functionality. 
6.  ONLINE  COLLEGE:  The  College will  expand  its  online  learning  offerings  through  hybrid  and  full 


online modules by  reviewing and adapting 20% of all courses and programs  in each of  the next 
five years. 


STUDENT SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
Student Success Centre 
On December 12th, the Student Success Centre funded the development of a separate online application 
of  the ACSAS  (Algonquin College Student Advising System)  for  the Student Success Specialist  team at 
Algonquin.  This system will permit the Student Success Specialists to capture and track interactions and 
meeting  notes  from  student meetings  through  a  database  that will  produce  consistent  reports  and 
necessary follow‐up reminders for staff and students alike.  Dan Cuddy is coordinating several meetings 
with  the computer programmer and  the Student Success Specialist Team  to develop  the site  for  their 
unique needs.  Work on this initiative will continue through to the end of March, 2012. 
7.  EMPLOYEE  DEVELOPMENT:    The  College  will,  through  professional  development,  training, 


mentorship,  and  coaching,  prepare  its  employees  for  new  ways  of  delivering  education  and 
training and for leadership opportunities in the College. 


REGISTRAR’S OFFICE 
 
The Registrar’s Office Data Analyst is registered in Level II of the Microsoft.Net Framework Programming 
certificate program. 
 
STUDENT SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
On December 1st,  two Student Employment Services employees attended  the Eastern Region Ontario 
College Career Educators’ meeting held at Loyalist College in Belleville.   Loyalist, Fleming, Durham, and 
Algonquin Colleges were all in attendance.   Updates and changes at each College were discussed, and it 
was also  learned that almost every college  is now using a career services web‐based solution powered 
by ORBIS Communications.    
 
The  Acting  Manager,  Health  Services  and  the  Acting  Manager,  CSD  attended  a  webinar  entitled 
“Defining Mental Health”  on  December  8th.    This webinar  provided  insight  into  the  signs  of mental 







    STUDENT SERVICES 
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 


February 13, 2012 
Page 7 


health issues and reviewed how managers can most appropriately handle sensitive employee situations 
that may impact on workplace productivity and performance. 
 
The CSD  Learning  Strategists  attended  the  Learning  Specialists Association of Canada  Eastern Region 
Conference  in  Toronto.    One  of  the  sessions,  Strategies  for  Reducing  Anxiety,  included  10  realistic 
strategies  that can be shared with students who have anxiety or who experience  test anxiety.   These 
strategies have also been shared with all of the CSD counsellors. 
 
Two CSD Counsellors attended the two‐day Suicide ASSIST program in December to ensure we provide 
support to students in crisis with disabilities. 
 
On January 4th, Residence Life hosted senior staff training and new staff orientation.  Three senior staff 
participated in a morning session entitled: “Behind Closed Doors: Assessing and Triaging Situations when 
on Call” and a year‐in‐review of 2011. The training for new staff included an afternoon highlighting the 
following policies and procedures: Mediation Skills: Dealing with Roommate Conflict, Bulletin Board and 
Programming, and the College Service Tour. 
 
On  January  11th,  the Acting Manager  of  Residence  Life,  participated  in  a  virtual  roundtable  entitled, 
“What truly makes a great Residence Life/Housing Program”.  The roundtable was organized and hosted 
by  the  Association  of  College  and  University  Housing  Officers‐International  (ACUHO‐I)  and  the 
Association of Higher Education Facilities. 
8.  FINANCIAL  SUSTAINABILITY:    The  College  will  target  opportunities  for  increasing  revenue, 


decreasing  expenses  and  improving  overall  operating  margins  through  new  business 
opportunities,  process  automation,  program  and  service  efficiencies  and  productivity 
improvements. 


REGISTRAR’S OFFICE 
 
Tuition and Ancillary Fees 
Algonquin College continues to await an updated Tuition and Ancillary Fees policy from the Ministry of 
Training, Colleges and Universities (MTCU).   As reported last month, and in the absence of an approved 
MTCU framework, comprehensive fees schedules are not available for Board of Governor’s approval. 
 
Offers of Admission packages will be distributed on  the  February 1, 2012, Equal Consideration Date.  
Revisions to the text of all Offers of Admission letters for the 2012‐2013 academic year will be made to 
indicate that the fees for 2012‐2013 are not yet available, and that the College will provide the new fees 
schedules as soon as possible. 
 





		08.  Management Summary February 13 2012

		Academic Management Report - January 2012

		Administration Mgmt Summary Feb 2012

		Advancement Management Summary January 2012

		BD Mgmt Summary Feb 2012

		HR Management Summary Report Feb 2012



		SSManagement Summary Report Feb 2012



